R oL NN R b

ST 18 2007 | ROCESSED

o
Loss | ocr 2 t;‘m?




annual report

2

0

0

7

corporate officers

Paul F. Folino

Executive Chairman

James M. McCluney
Chief Executive Officer and President

Michael J. Rockenbach
Executive Vice President, Chiet Financial Qfficer,
Secretary and Treasurer

William F. Gill
Executive Vice President,
Worldwide Sales

Sadie A. Herrera
Executive Vice President,
Human Resources and Facilities

Marshall D. Lee
Executive Vice President,
Engineering

Michael E. Smith

Cxecutive Vice President,
Waorldwide Marketing

board of directors

Fred B. Cox
Chairman Emeritus
Emulex Corporation

Michael P. Downey
Private Investor and Executive Consultant

Bruce C. Edwards
Executive Chairman of the Board
Powerwave Technologies, Inc,

Paul F. Folino
Executive Chairman
Ernulex Corporation

Robert H. Goon
Attorney

Don M. Lyle
Principal
Technology Management Company

James M. McCluney
Chief Executive Officer and President
Emulex Corporation

Dean A. Yoost
Financial Advisor




annual report
2 0 0 7

2007
president’s letter

in my letter to investors a year ago, | commented that fiscal
2007 would usher in the next phase of our growth and
diversification strategy while focusing on solid execution
and driving the business to success in the marketplace.
{ am happy to report we did just that!

The four key objectives we had for fiscal 2007 were: to
grow our Fibre Channel products at a rate faster than the
market by winning new platforms and new customers; to
broaden our reach into new higher growth platforms and
environments that we believe will play a key role in driving
overall demand for Fibre Channel Storage Area Networks
(SANs) — primarily in blade servers and virtualized servers;
to focus on expanding our leadership position in the
embedded storage components sector; and to increase
our overall market and revenue opportunity for Emulex
through diversification into different protocols across our
product portfclio.

We executed very well against those objectives. We have
led the market in the four Gb/s Fibre Channel Host Bus
Adapter {HBA) link speed transition, and in addition, we
now support all the major operating systems. We gained
market share at each of the blade server CEMs, won new
platforms at existing customers like IBM System x for our
standard HBAs and continued to expand our business
at Sun Microsystems, a new customer in fiscal 2006.
Server virtualization will be a driver of SAN expansion
over the next several years and we are demonstrating our
leadership position in this fast growing market. Finally,
we continued to diversify our business by completing the
integration of our acquisitions of Sierra Logic, Inc. (Sierra
Logic) and Aarohi Communications, Inc. (Aarohi). The
Sierra Logic acquisition expanded our embedded product
offering, providing us with a leadership paosition in the
embedded storage sector, while the Aarohi acquisition
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provides the platforms and expertise to broaden our market
reach into storage virtualization and 10 GbE converged
networking in the data center as these trends develop.

8

We have focused the Company on three product ines, Host
Server Products {HSP), Embedded Storage Products (ESP)
and Intelligent Network Products (INP). Let me give some
color on our progress last year in each of these product
lines.

In HSP, we extended our time-to-market advantage over the
competition as we drove the transition from two Gb/s to four
Gb/s Fibre Channel HBAs and custom mezzanine soiutions
for OEM blade servers. Throughout fiscal 2007, we moved
our market share percentage up from the high thirties to
the low forties. Share gains were evident particularly in the
back half of the year, as gur design wins on new customer
platiorms and focused sales and marketing campaigns
began to deliver meaningful results. This momentum
exiting fiscal 2007 gives us ¢confidence that market share
gains will continue into fiscal 2008.




HSP had numerous growth drivers in fiscal 2007. The
initial shipments of four Gb/s mezzanine cards for blade
servers to Hewlett-Packard and IBM in the first quarter
and additional design win launches at Dell, NEC and
Fujitsu-Siemens were significant contributors.  In the
second quarter we started shipments into IBM’s System x
platform for the first time. Historically, this platform has
been sole sourced to a competitor. Finally, in the second
half of the year we cemented our leadership in the server
virtualization market by enhancing our virtual HEA
technology in partnership with VMware, and delivered our
VMPilot product in conjunction with Microsoft to simplify
the creation of virtual machines. Server virtualization
enables the consolidation of expensive hardware, which
lowers management costs, provides greater flexibility,
and allows more efficient use of resources within the data
center. The deployment of virtualized servers is expected
to grow 200% over the next several years, according 10
industry analysts, and because of the inherent benefits
of utilizing external storage in these environments,
an estimated 80% of virtualized servers are attached
to SANs. The virtualization trend is good news for our
host server products and when combined with the new
customer momentum we saw in fiscal 2007, HSP is very
well positioned for continued growth in fiscal 2008 and
beyond.

Also within HSP, we recently announced our new eight
Gh/s HBAs. Emulex already has design wins on multiple
platforms with these products and expects to begin
sampling in the first half of fiscal 2008. Our commiiment
to being first to market with four Gb/s products enabled
us to gain market share during the last speed transitior,
and repeating that success with our eight Gb/s products
will enable us to continue the market share momentum
we have achieved.

ESP, which encompasses SATA bridges and routers, Fibre
Charnnel embedded switches, and single and multi protacol
embedded controller products, enjoyed a breakout year in
fiscal 2007. Qur revolutionary InSpeed embedded Fibre
Channel switch products accounted for 15 percent of net
revenues in fiscal 2006. With the addition of embedded
SATA bridge and router products through our acquisition
of Sierra Logic, combined with continued market growth
of SAN storage arrays, ESP expanded {o 23 percent of net
revenues in fiscal 2007, The success in this business is
being driven by the trend toward implementing storage

arc hitectures that can run multiple protocols concurrently,
commonly referred to as tiered storage. As customers
devloy tiered storage arrays and remote connectivity
solutions, the ability to connect devices across multiple
protocols maximizes system design flexibility and provides
mare aptions for data access at a very attractive cost point.
Emulex provides products that support muliiple protocols
including embedded routers that enabie Fibre Channel
and SATA drives 1o be mixed within a single drive shelf,
SATA bridges that enable the mixing of Fibre Channel and
SATA arrays within a single system and multi protocol
embedded controller products which provide a high
degree of flexibitity in storage controller interface designs.
As we concluded the fiscal year, the Company had over
30 unannounced design wins for ESP, the majority of
which are expected to be launched during fiscal 2008. As
these incremental design-wins launch and start to ramp
up, tiered storage will become more pervasive in the data
center. We expect the percentage of revenue coming from
ESP to expand and keep our growth and diversification
strategy well on track through fiscal 2008.

INP is focused on developing data networking soluticns,
which we believe will become market standards over
the next several years. The key initiative that Emulex
is helping to drive became public at the beginning of
April 2007, with the general announcement of a new
technology specification called Fibre Channel over
Ethernet (FCoE). This new specification was presented to
the T11 committee of ANSIINCITS with our key partners
including Cisco, IBM, Intel and Sun. Once the standard
is ratified, the products that result will give data center
rranagers an imporiant new opticn for server and storage
connectivity.  FCoE allows for the direct mapping of
thie Fibre Channel protocol over Ethernet, which allows
existing Fibre Channel investments to be leveraged into
naw environments for customers that prefer Ethernet.
Further, FCoE paves the way for converged networks,
which will provide efficient transport of storage, network,
and server clustering data traffic over a single wire,

Some of the numeraus benefits of FCoE include: protecting
end users’ and OEMs' existing investments in Fibre
Channel SANs, the use of a field proven management
niodel that is used in the Fibre Channel SANs today,
and lower long-term operating costs resulting from
consolidated connectivity and management of storage
and data networks on Ethernet.

consolidation. virtualization. convergence.
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The value proposition for Emulex is that we can
meaningfully expand our addressable market by
leveraging our expertise in Fibre Channel and capitalizing
on existing OEM relationships to extend our presence in
the data center.

During the past fiscal year, our product and market
successes and our focus on solid execution translated into
strong financial results. Met revenues rose 17 percent to
$470.2 million representing our ninth consecutive year
of top line growth. By product line, HSP net revenues
were $357.3 million, an increase of 5 percent, ESP
net revenues were $107.6 million, an increase of 82
percent, and INP net revenues increased $3.9 miltion
from essentially zero in fiscal 2006.

Non-GAAP fully diluted earnings of $1.14 per share for
the year represented an increase of 13 percent over fiscal
2006. On a GAAP basis, fully dituted earnings per share
were $0.34. Our continuing commitment to deliver a
strong balance sheet to our shareholders complemented
our strong operational performance for the year. Buring
fiscal 2007, we generated $130 million in cash from
operations, purchased Sierra Logic for cash, paid off
the outstanding balance of our convertible debt, and
repurchased approximately $70 mitlion of outstanding
stock. At the end of the year, our cash position was $271
million {including current investments),

To sum up, our goal in fiscal 2007 was to deliver strong
results while laying a solid foundation for future growth.
Now as we focus on fiscal 2008 and beyond, we are
looking to build on this foundation in a number of ways:
first, to continue to grow our HSP products faster than
the market by winning market share; second to grow our
ESP revenues by converting existing OEM design wins
inte revenue and by further expanding our portfolio of
products to support multi protocol, multi-tiered storage
environments; and third, to roll out new products to
capitalize on our leadership position and expertise in the
data center, leveraging emerging protocols like FCoE and
features including converged networks.

In closing, | am proud of the commitment and execution of
the Emutex management team, and all of our employees in
fiscal 2007. | anticipate that fiscal 2008 will be a year in
which the Company incubates new products and focuses
on new market opportunities that wifl position Emulex for
high growth into the next decade.

pet@dy

James M. McCluney
Chief Executive Officer and President
Emulex Corporation
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Reconciliation of diluted GAAP earnings per share
to diluted non-BAAP earnings per share:

-

\

share computabions (in thousands)

“Safe Harbar™ Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995:
With the exception of historical information, the statements set forth above coatain
forward-kocking statements that involve risk and uncerainties. Reference is made to the
*Safe Harbor* language conlained on page 28 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K included in this Annual Repert for certain factors that could cause actual resulls to
ditfer materialty from those in the forward-looking statements.

Note Regarding Non-GAAP Financial Information: To supplement the financial
information presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
{GAAP}, the Company has included references to non-GAAP earnings per share. Each
of these non-GAAP figures are adjusted from results based on GAAP o exclude certain
enpanses. As a general matter, the Company uses thesa non-GAAF measures in addition
to and in conjunction with results presented in accordance with GAAP. Among other
things, the Company uses such non-GAAP financial measures in addition to and in
conjunctien with corresponding GAAP measures to help anatyza the performance of its
core business, in connection with the preparation of annual budgets, and in measuring
performance for some forms of compensation. In addition, ithe Company believes
that non-GAAP financial information is used by analysts and others in the investment
commuaity i analyze the Company’s historical results and in providing estimates of
future performance and that failure to report these non-GAAP measures could result in
confusion amang analysts and athers and a misplaced perception that the Company's
results have underperformed or exceeded expeclabions.

Thesa non-GAAP financial measures reflect an aoditional way of viewing aspects of the
Company's operations that, when viewed with the GAAP resulls and the reconcilialion to
the carresponding GAAP financial measures, provide a more complete understanding of
the Company's resu!ts of operations and the factars and trends affecting the Company’s
business. However, these non-GAAP measures should be considered as a supplement
fo, and not as a substitute for, or superior to, the correspanding measures calculated
in accardance with GAAP. Non-GAAP net income per share excludes the effects of
(i) stock-based compensation expense, (ii} amortization of imangible assets, (i) sell
through of marked-up to fair value inventery acquired in acquisition, {iv) write off of
in-process research and development, {v) impairment of goodwill and other intangible
assets, (vi) impairment of strategic investment net of recovery, (vil} net insurance
settlement [racovery) associated with the settlement of certain shareholder lawsuits, and
{viii) gain (loss) on repurchase of convertible subordinated notes.

The Cormpany believes that presentation of net income per share measures that exclude
the impact of stock-based compensation expense assists management and investors in
evaluating the period aver period performance of the Company's ongaing core business

\

Year Ended
July 1, J|:||y _2 . -J-uly-3_,
2007 2006 2005

Diluted GAAP earnings per share $0.34 $0.46 $£0.80
Ilems exciuded from diluted GAAF; earnings per share o Calculate
diluted non-GAAP pamings pef share, net of tax effect:
Stack-based compensation $0.24 $0.19 5003
Amortization of intangibles 027 $0.17 $0.18
SGH-lhrl?-u;ﬂ of n?arked-;p_;n fa:rmﬂmﬁ‘ ;QUI;d o '-5-0.-01 ___ _
in the Siefra Logic acquisidion
In-process nesearch and development $0.22 30.19 -
Impairment of poodwill and cther intangible assets $0.01 - $0.01
Impairment of strategic investment, net of recovery $0.05 - $0.02
s oy s s et s v - 000 soon
Gain (kss) on repurchase of convertibie subardinated notes - - ${0.14)
)mpact on diluted earnings per share 7 $0.80 $0.55 $0.06
Non-GAAP diluted earnings per share_ . $1.14 $1.01 508‘6" )
Diluted shares used in GAAP and non-GAAF per 89,029 91,259 _9-2T97—0

_/

operations because the expenses are non-cash in nature and, although the size of
the grants is within the Company's control, the amount of expense varies depenging
on factors such as short-term fluctuations in stock price and volatility which can be
unreated to the operational performance of the Campany during the period in question
and generally is outside the contrel of management during the period in which the
expense is incurred, Mareover, the Company believes that the exclusion of stock-based
com densation in presenting net income per share is useful to investors to understand
the i npact of the expensing of stock-based compensation to the Company's financial
perlrmance in comparison to both prior periods as well as to its competitors,
Amortization of intangibles and in-process research and development expense are
non-cash expenses relating primarity to acquisitions. At the time of an acquisition,
the intangible assets of the acquired company are valued and amortized over their
estimated lives and in-process research and development costs of the acquired entity
are wxpensed, The Company believes that such intangibles and in-process research
and development expenses do not constitute part of its core business because they
generally represent costs incurred by the acquired company to build value or develop
techology prior to acquisition and as such they are part of transaction costs rather
than ongoing costs of operating the Company's core business. |n this regard, the
Corr pany notes that {i) once the intangibles are fully amortized and in-process research
and development expensed, they generally will not be replaced with cash costs and
therafore, the exclusion of these costs provides management and investors with
bettr visibility inte the actua) costs required to generate revenues over time, and (i)
although the Company sets the amortization expense based on useful life of the various
assets at the time of the transaction, the Company cannot influence the timing and
amcunt of the future amortization expense recognition ance the lives are established.
{n addition, the Company cannot influence the timing or amount of the in-process
research and development expenses incurred. As a resull, the Company believes
that exclusion of these amortization costs and in-process research and development
expunses in presenting net income per share gives management and investors a more
effective means of evalualing its historical and projected future performance within
the Jompany's core business. The inventory on hang of the company being acquired
is required to be marked-up to fair value so upon sell-through, it would result in zero
gross profit to the Company. Similarty, the Company believes such additional costs
1o ¢35t of sales do not constitute part of its operational performance because they
genorally represent costs that are part of transaction costs rather than ongoing costs of
ape ating the Company’s care business.

With respect 1o the exclusion of impairment of gootwill and other intangible assets,
impsirment of sirategic investment, net of recovery, and net insurance settiement
{recovery), the Company believes that presentation of a measure of net income per
sha e that ex¢ludes such charges is useful to management and investors in evaluating
the performance of the Company’s ongoing core business operations on a period-to-
perixd basis. In this regard, the Company notes that the impairment charges and net
insw rance settiement (recovery) are non-recurring in nature. The impairment Charges
are not expected 1o be recurring and are the result of an assessment of goodwill
and other intangible assets associated with prior acquisitions and do not relate to
the performance of the Company's ongoing core business operations. Similarty, the
impairment of strategic investment, net of recovery, is not part of the Cornpany's
pericd-to-period core business and relates to an investrnent in an early stage company
thal was deemed worthless partially offset by a recavery of an investment in another
early stage company, The net insurance settlement (recavery) relates to the settlement
of snareholder litigation and does not arise out of o reflect charges associated with the
Carpany's core business operations.

Wilh respect to the exclusion of gains (losses) associated with the repurchase of
convertible subordinated notes, although the Company has recorded gain/loss from
the repurchase of convertible subordinated notes in various perids in past years,
the Company did not record any gainftess from repurchases of the converible notes
when the noteholders redeemed the notes at their {ace value in December 2006.
Mo eaver, the Company bedieves that the exclusion of gainfless from the repurchase of
corvertible subordinated notes is useful io the Company and investors because, among
other things, the gains/losses associated with such repurchases are not indicative of
pacl or future cost of borrowing or returns on invested cash nor do they reflect the
Company’s core business operations. in this regard, the Campany notes that it did not
act vely trade in its own debt securities and did not plan on any gains associated with
repurchases of its securities for funding of its operations and the amount of any such
gainvioss is nat predictable nor within the Company's control.

The Company believes disclosure of non-GAAP net income per share has economic
subistance because the excluded expenses are either non-recurring in nature or do not
represent cusrent cash expenditures, and are variable in nature. A material limitation
associated with the use of this measure as compared to the GAAP measures of net
incame per share is that it may not be comparable with the calculation of net income
per share for other companies in the Comparny's industry. The Company compensates
for 1hese limiations by providing full disclosure of the effects of this nen-GAAP
measure, by presenting the corresponding GAAP financial measure in this release
arl in the Company's financial statements ang by providing a reconciliation to the
corresponding GAAP measure to enable investors to perform their own analysis.

consalidation. virtualization. convergence.
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PART I

All references to vears refer to our fiscal vears ended July 1, 2007, July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2005, as applicable,
unless the calendar year is specified. References contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to "Emulex,” the
“Company,” the “Registrant,” “we,” "our” and “us,” refer to Emulex Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Item 1. Business.
Introduction and Company History

Emulex Corporation (Emulex or the Company) is a high quality source for a broad range of advanced storage
networking infrastructure solutions. Substantially all of Emulex products are based on internally developed
application specific integrated circuits (ASICs). The world’s leading server and storage providers rely on Emulex
products to help build high performance, reliable, and scalable storage networking solutions.

Emulex was organized as a California corporation in 1979. Emulex’s initial public offering was in 1981. In 1987,
Emulex changed its state of incorporation from California to Delaware by the formation of a Delaware corporation,
which acquired all of the stock of the California corporation. The California corporation continues to operate as a
wholly owned subsidiary of a subsidiary of the Delaware corporation. ln 1983 and 1999 Emulex completed
additional offerings of our common stock. In 2004, Emulex completed a private placement of convertible
subordinated notes. See Note 8 of the Consolidated Financial Statemer:ts for a more complete discussion of the
convertible subordinated notes that were fully retired in December 2006.

Emulex’s corporate headquarters are located at 3333 Susan Street, Costa Mesa, California 92626, and our
telephone number is (714) 662-5600. Our Internet address is www.emulex.com. Our periodic and current reports
filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934 are available free of charge through our weasite as soon as reasonably practicable after
such reports are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Emulex’s Host Server Products (HSP) include LightPulse® Host Bus Adapters (HBAs), custom form factor
solutions for Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) blade servers and ASICs. These products enable servers to
efficiently connect to storage area networks (SANs) by offloading data communication processing tasks from the
server as information is delivered and sent to the storage network.

Our Embedded Storage Products (ESP) includes our InSpeed®, Fibi eSpy®, and input/output controller (I0C)
solutions as well as our embedded bridge and embedded router products added as a result of our Sierra Logic, Inc.
(Sierra Logic) acquisition. Embedded storage switches, bridges, routers, and 10Cs are deployed inside storage
arrays, tape libraries, and other storage appliances, delivering improved performance, reliability, and storage
connectivity.

Our Intelligent Network Products (INP), are built upon the technology added as a result of our Aarohi
Communications, [nc. (Aarohi) acquisition. INP includes intelligent storage processors that are deployed within
SAN appliances and storage arrays, providing a high performance processing platform for specialized storage
applications and other high speed computer network applications.

During fiscal 2007, most of our revenues were derived from products based on Fibre Channel technology. Our
Fibre Channel development efforts began in 1992 and we shipped our first Fibre Channel product in volume in
1996. Emulex’s products have been selected by many of the world’s leading server and storage providers, including
Dell Inc. (Dell), EMC Corporation (EMC), Fujitsu Ltd. (Fujitsu), Fujitsu Siemens Computers (Fujitsu Siemens),
Groupe Bull (Bull), Hewtett-Packard Company (Hewlett-Packard), Hitachi Limited (Hitachi), Huaiwei
Technologies Co. Ltd. (Huawei), Intemmational Business Machines Cerporation (IBM), NEC Corporation (NEC),
Network Appliance, Inc. (Network Appliance), Quantum Corporation (Quantum), Sun Microsystems, Inc. (Sun),
Unisys Corporation (Unisys), and Xyratex Ltd. (Xyratex). We market to OEMs and end users through our own
worldwide selling organization as well as our two tier distribution partners, including Acal ple group (ACAL),
Avnet, Inc. (Avnet), Bell Microproducts, Inc. (Bell Microproducts), Info X Technology Solutions (Info X), Macnica
Networks Corporation (Macnica), Netmarks Inc. (Netmarks), Tech Data Corporation (Tech Data), and Tokyo
Electron Device Ltd. (TED).




Industry Protocols Overview
Fibre Channel

Beginning in the late 1990°s, the growth of digital data began to outstrip the capabilities of existing architectures
to manage, store, and provide timely access to critical information. In 1994, Fibre Channel, a standard
communications technology, was introduced by American National Standards Institute (ANSI), to address
traditional input/output (I/O) limitations. [t emerged as the first storage networking technology to be widely adopted
by the world’s leading server and storage systems manufacturers and is now available in one, two, and four Gb/s
solutions. Fibre Channel offered the connectivity, distance, and scalability benefits of networking architectures
combined with the high performance and low latency needed for I/O applications. Its advanced capabilities enabled
new architectures such as SANs which connect multiple host computers to one or more storage arrays. Additionally,
Fibre Channel has been deployed within storage arrays to provide internal connectivity for disk drives, enabling
enhanced performance and greater scalability.

A SAN essentially transforms dedicared servers and storage devices into network resources, greatly improving
the performance and scalability of enterprise storage. By providing shared server access, the cost of expensive
enterprise storage can be spread across entire organizations. SANs are deployed to support an increasingly wide
range of applications such as local area network {LAN)}) free and server-less back up, storage virtualization, and
disaster recovery.

Additionally, network attached storage (NAS) appliances have gained acceptance in the storage marketplace.
NAS architecture offers an easily deployable and scatable storage solution. In high-end environments characterized
by NAS file delivery to servers, a SAN may be deployed behind a NAS, making NAS and SAN solutions
complementary. The majority of NAS and SAN solutions installed today are delivered to end users via integrated
systems solutions offered by storage and computer system OEMs.

Internet SCS1I

In early 2003, the Internet Engineering Task Force (IETF) ratified a storage networking standard known as
Internet SCSI (iSCSI). It delivers the SCSI storage protocol over the familiar Internet Protocol (IP), and Ethernet
transports. Acceptance of iISCSI in corporate production environments has accelerated now that Gigabit Ethernet is
becoming more common. Building iSCSI — based SANs has become a less costly alternative to creating Fibre
Channel — based SANs. While the range of iSCSI connectivity solutions spans simple Ethernet Network Interface
Cards (NICs), that are commonly used for Ethernet LAN applications, up to high performance iSCSI HBAs that
offer full protocol processing offload from the host computer, today’s iSCSI installations are dominated by low end
NIC deployments that suffice for smaller organizations or lower performance applications. As with most new
standards, iSCSI deployments have started slowly, and most industry analysts including Dell’Oro expect that Fibre
Channel will remain the dominant host connect to block storage through 2010. in the future, new requirements could
emerge to interconnect iSCSI host servers to the large installed base of Fibre Channel SANs and storage arrays.

Fibre Channel Over Ethernet

In early 2007, a new technology specification called Fibre Channel over Ethernet (FCoE) was presented to an
ANSI accredited committee. The products that result are intended to give data center managers an important new
option for server and storage connectivity. FCoE allows for the direct mapping of the Fibre Channel protocol over
Ethernet, which allows existing Fibre Channel software to be leveraged into new environments for customers that
prefer Ethernet. Further, FCoE paves the way for converged networks, which will provide efficient transport of
storage, network, and even server clustering traffic. The benefits of FCoE include the leverage of existing
investments in Fibre Channel SANs and software drivers, the use of a mature management modei that is used in
Fibre Channel SANs today, and a lower long — term operating cost resulting from consolidated connectivity, and
management of storage and data networks on Ethemnet.

FCoE could expand the market for SAN storage networking products. The Fibre Channel protocol has
traditionally been used for high — end storage applications in the data center, providing reliable, high performance
storage access. Ethernet has traditionally been limited because it was not considered reliable enough for mission




critical storage applications. However, FCoE combined with enhanced Ethernet, addresses this shortcoming and
combines the efficiency of the Fibre Channel protocol with the ubiquity of the Ethernet networks, while leveraging
the mature storage management software and tools available for native Fibre Channel SANs.

As with most emerging technologies it is expected this market will take a number of years to develop, however,
first generation products are expected to be introduced into the marketplace in 2008, or early in 2009.

Over the next several years, the evolution of networked storage could drive “Virtualization.” Virtualization is the
process of making a single physical resource (such as a server, an operating system, an application, or storage
device) appear to function as multiple logical resources; or it can include making multiple physical resources (such
as storage devices or servers) appear as a single logical resource. Similar to the initial benefit of networking storage,
the value of virtualization is that it improves the utilization rates of expensive datacenter equipment thereby
lowering the overall cost by taking underutilized Direct Attached Storage (DAS) and altowing them to be connected
10 the SAN. As a result, virtualized servers tend to have a higher ratio of network connectivity than traditional DAS
servers.

Data Center Storage Market

As enterprise storage arrays have begun to transition from parallel SCSI to serial IfQ — based internal
architectures, this has created a requirement for embedded solutions that are incorporated by storage OEMs inside of
storage arrays and appliances. Enterprise storage arrays with Fibre Chznnel disk drives are now utilizing Fibre
Channel 10Cs both for providing storage arrays with connectivity to the SAN and for connecting disk drives
internally.

With the growing number of hard disk drives embedded in each storage array, embedded Fibre Channel storage
switches have emerged to address performance as well as reliability, avaitability, and serviceability (RAS)
challenges. The disk drives that store the data in an array are typically arranged in shelves populated by multiple
drives. By installing an embedded switch-on-a-chip (SOC) on the drive shelf, a read request is able to travel directly
to the destination drive without touching the other drives on the shelf. This switched architecture, also known as a
switched bunch of disks (SBOD™) architecture, delivers higher performance and a more reliable solution for storage
arrays. Compared to legacy shared bus architectures where read requests must hop from one drive to the next, the
SBOD delivers improved performance and enables the ability to identify and isolate faulty drives.

In order to deliver larger storage arrays, OEMs are seeking to connect increasing numbers of drive shelves to the
storage array controller. This has resulted in similar architectural challenges, generating a requirement for another
layer of switching in array architectures known as a root switch. The raot switch, typically a box level subsystem, is
embedded in the array to provide a direct connection to all the drive shelves from the redundant array of independent
disks (RAID) controller. This switch improves performance, enabling the array to scale capacity without sustaining
performance degradation typical of loop based architectures. In addition, root switches provide the ability to identify
and isolate faulty drive shelves, enabling OEM service technicians to quickly pull faulty array components and add
additional storage shelves on customer premises, cutting service time and providing for improved system uptime and -
reduced service costs.

Storage 1/0 Interconnects

In recent years, the hard disk drive industry has utilized parallel I/C} inierconnects such as Small Computer
Systems Interface (SCS1) and advanced technology attachment (ATA) for the disk drive 1/O interface. Serial VO
technologies utilize a single wire over which all control and user data passes, providing higher performance,
expanded connectivity, and lower cost. As a result of these benefits, the storage industry has been undergoing a
transition from parallel to serial 1/0. The serial 1/0 technologies that have been accepted by the marketplace are
Fibre Channel; Serial ATA (SATA); and Serial Attached SCS1(SAS), while legacy parallel technologies such as
SCSI and ATA have begun to play a diminishing role.

SATA has already increased in line speed from one-and-a-half Gb/s to three Gb/s and SATA’s roadmap includes
plans for a six Gb/s standard. SAS is designed for the corporate and enterprise market as a replacement for parallel
SCSI, allowing for much higher speed data transfers than previously available. Though SAS uses serial
communication instead of the parallel method found in traditional SCSI devices, it still uses SCSI commands for
interacting with SAS end devices.




The current trend in data storage devices is “tiered storage.” Tiered storage is a single data storage environment
delineated by differences in price, performance, capacity, or function. In an effort to use resources more efficiently,
a single storage device may contain disk drives with multiple protocols. For example, a device may contain Fibre
Channel drives for primary storage and SATA drives for backup or secondary storage, Embedded switches, routers,
and bridges inside the array help facilitate the trend.

Our Products

We are a leading designer, developer and supplier of HBAs, mezzanine cards, embedded storage switches,
embedded bridges, embedded routers, /O ASICs, and SOC ASICs that enhance access to, and storage of, electronic
data and applications. In fiscal 2004, the acquisition of Vixel Corporation (Vixel) enabled us to enter the embedded
storage market. In fiscal 2006, we entered the market for intelligent data center infrastructure solutions via the
acquisition of Aarohi. In fiscal 2007, we broadened our embedded footprint adding embedded storage bridges and
routers via the acquisition of Sierra Logic.

Host Server Products

Cur Host Server Products include the development of chip level and board level server — based 1/0 adapters
including HBAs and mezzanine cards using technologies such as Fibre Channel and iSCSI. Our Fibre Channel
HBAs, which are still the majority of our product shipments, connect host computers to a Fibre Channel network.
Our adapters support a wide range of operating systems and host computer system interfaces, including both PCI
and PCI Express — based platforms. Our Fibre Channel HBA offerings include products like the
LPel1000/LP11000, LPel11002/LP11002, and LP10000 at the high end, and also encompasses adapters such as the
LP1050, and LPel 150/LP1150, which are targeted at midrange, open system environments. Our entry level LP111
adapter targets the small-to-medium sized business users (SMB) market, and remote enterprise offices. Our high end
HBAs target enterprise systems, while our midrange HBAs offer highly featured solutions for standard operating
environments, and our entry level HBAs offer simplified features at low cost.

All Emulex HBAs are based upon our internally developed Fibre Channel IOCs. These I0Cs can be utilized not
only in HBAs and mezzanine cards, but may also be integrated directly on computer motherboards in environments
where the requirements for Fibre Channel connectivity are well defined, including blade servers and mainframes. In
addition, these IOC’s are used in embedded I/O environments such as disk and tape storage arrays and storage
appliances. Revenues from these applications are included in our Embedded Storage Products.

Embedded Storage Products

Our Embedded Storage Products include the development of chip level, and box level array — based products
that provide connectivity and processing functions. This includes embedded 1OCs, 1/0 Processors (10Ps), Fibre
Channel SOCs, embedded bridges (FC/SATA), and embedded routers (FC/SATA).

The continued demands for increased storage array capacity and system scalability, and the performance and
reliability deterioration resulting from such demand have emerged as significant issues facing the storage industry.
With the acquisition of Vixel in fiscal 2004, we added InSpeed Embedded Storage Switch products to our product
offerings. These products are designed to be a cost effective solution to address these issues.

To help storage system manufacturers address the issues related to shared bus architectures, we have developed a
highly integrated SOC that incorporates our InSpeed technology. InSpeed is an advanced switching architecture that
results in a single chip capabie of handling multiple Fibre Channel devices operating at one, two, or four Gb/s speed.

InSpeed embedded storage switch products have replaced older shared bus architectures with a switched
architecture. InSpeed products provide new diagnostic capabilitics and eliminate single point of failure designs that
are typically found in the back end of storage arrays. These embedded products can be used in two ways inside a
storage array. One way is to use an embedded switch box or chip as a root switch, A root switch provides direct
access from the storage controller to each shelf in the storage array. The second way is to use a chip or switch box to
provide a direct path to each storage disk in a shelf, to create an SBOD. Combining both a root switch and a SBOD
within a storage array results in a switched architecture that increases the storage system’s reliability, accessibility,
scatability, and serviceability.




Certain of our SOCs incorporate features such as trunking, faimess, and interswitch communications to further
enhance back end switching capabilities, as well as enhanced management capabilities including port diagnostics,
device performance, and health monitoring.

Our embedded router and bridge products consist of sophisticated chip and firmware solutions which emulate
Fibre Channel devices while using low cost SATA Hard Disk Drives. These products were added through our
acquisition of Sierra Logic during fiscal 2007. These cost effective solutions leverage today’s existing infrastructure
of Fibre Channel within enterprise storage applications, but allow storzge OEMs to easily add support for SATA
HDDs. Specifically this includes the SR-1216 Silicon Storage Router znd the BR-2401 Silicon Storage Bridge.

In April 2003, Emulex and Intel Corporation announced an agreement to develop next generation storage
processors that combine SATA, SAS, and Fibre Channel /O technologies within a single mutti-protocol
architecture. These new serial storage processors are intended to enabl: OEMs to utilize common hardware and
software components across their entire family of SATA, SAS, and Fibre Channel storage products, extending the
value of OEM hardware and software investments. Undet the agreement, Emulex has developed the protocol
controller hardware, firmware, and drivers. [ntel is contributing its expertise in storage processor technology
development and will integrate its high performance Intel XScale micro architecture as the core technology for the
new processors. Intel is also manufacturing the processors utilizing its 90 nanometer (nm) process technology. We
expect this multi — protocol serial storage architecture to be applicable to a variety of new hardware and software
products. The companies individually have announced a number of design wins to date.

Intelligent Network Products

Our Intelligent Network Products are defined by the development of chip level, board level or box level array —
based products that provide multi — protocol routing and storage processing capability. These products reside in
intelligent switches, appliances, or storage arrays.

The acquisition of Aarohi that was completed in fiscal 2006, provided us with the critical building blocks for
intelligent data center infrastructure solutions, and will further enable Emulex to differentiate and expand its product
portfolio to serve the 10 Gb/s data center networking and intelligent siorage platforms. The data center networking
market includes solutions for intelligent storage 1/0, server clustering and high performance data networking, and
the market for intelligent storage platform solutions, including storage virtualization. The unique product
architecture is highly integrated, incorporates high performance processing capability and supports multiple
protocols, making it ideal for these emerging markets, and enables applications such as non disruptive data
migration and data replication, heterogeneous volume management, and virtual tape libraries that ultimately offers
end users significant improvements in data availability and storage utilization,

The market for Intelligent Network Products is still nascent. As with most emerging technologies, it is expected
that this market will take a number of years to develop, however, first generation 10 Gb/s products could be
introduced into the marketplace in 2008, or early in 2009.

Overall

Leveraging our expertise and experience in networking and 1/0 technology, we have approached the storage
opportunity with a networking perspective to maximize the performance and management capabilities of our
solutions. We believe the performance results of our products are among the highest in the industry. Furthermore,
our products support high performance connectivity features to enharce data integrity. Lastly, our products offer
investment protection for our OEM customers, who often develop specialized software to interface to our adapters,
as we have maintained a stable application programming interface (API) since our first generation of HBAs was
introduced in 1996. More recently, we have expanded the functionality in our products to deliver high availability
and remote centralized management that may be embedded in OEM and independent software vendors (ISV) SAN
management products.




Intellectual Property

Our ability to compete depends in part upon our ability to protect our proprietary information through various
means, including ownership of patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secrets, as well as through contractual
provisions.

We have a number of issued patents and pending patent applications in the U.S. and abroad. Most of our issued
patents and pending patent applications relate to our storage and networking technology or products. We maintain an
active program of obtaining patent protection for our inventions as development occurs and as new products are
introduced. As a result of the rate of change of technology in our industry, we believe that the duration of the patent
protection available to us for our products is adequate to cover the expected market duration for such products.

All of our software, drivers, and firmware, which are embedded within or provided exclusively for use with our
hardware products, are marked with copyright notices listing our company as the copyright owner. We have been
granted a number of registrations of trademarks in the U.S, and abroad. We also have a number of pending
trademark registrations in the U.S. and abroad. We maintain an active practice of marking our products with
tradernark notices. We have an active program of renewing trademarks so that the duration of trademark protection
is maintained for as long as needed. Additionally, we rely on trade secret law and contractual provisions to protect
unique intellectual property we possess which we have determined unnecessary or uneconomical to patent or
copyright, or which is not otherwise capable of more formal protection.

Engineering and Development

At July 1, 2007, we employed 446 engineers, other technicians, and support personnel engaged in the
development of new products and the improvement of existing products. Engineering and development expenses
were approXimately $117.8 million, $89.7 million, and $80.0 million in 2007, 2006, and 2003, respectively.

Selting and Marketing

We sell our products worldwide to OEMs, end users, and through other distribution channels including value
added resellers (VARs), systems integrators, industrial distributors, and resellers. As the storage networking market
is dominated by OEMSs, our focus is to use sales specialists to expand opportunities with our existing OEMs, as well
as to develop new OEM relationships. However, we are also expanding our distribution efforts, leveraging
worldwide distribution channels through technical distributors such as VARs and systems integrators, to
complement our core OEM relationships. In some cases, OEM partners leverage the distribution channel to deliver
solutions to end users, making our distribution efforts complementary with our OEM focused strategy.

Seasonality

Our business fluctuates as a result of various factors, including but not limited to economic conditions, new
product introductions, industry demand, and seasonality. Although we do not consider our business to be highly
seasonal, we do believe that seasonality has and may impact our business. To the extent that we do experience
seasonality in our business, it would most likely have a negative impact on the sequential growth rate of our net
revenues during the first and third quarters of our fiscal years,

Order Backlog

Due to an industry practice that allows customers to cancel or change orders with limited advance notice prior to
shipment, we do not believe that backlog is a reliable indicator of future revenue levels. Furthermore, purchase order
release lead times depend upon the scheduling practices of the individual customer, and the rate of booking new
orders fluctuates from month to month, Therefore, the level of backlog at any one time is not necessarily indicative
of trends in our business nor is it a meaningful indicator of future long-term revenues,




Concentration of Customers, Revenue by Product Families and Geographic Area

See Note 13 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part IV, Item 15(a) of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for information regarding concentration of our customers as weli as information regarding our revenue
by product family and geographic area. See also “Risk Factors” contained within Part 1, Item 1A of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for discussion of the risks associated with the concentration of our customers, as well as the
risks associated with our revenue by product family and geographic erea.

Competition

The market for products remains intensely competitive and is characterized by frequent new product
introductions, changing customer preferences, evolving technology, ind industry standards.

Our competition for Fibre Channel HBA products currently consicts primarily of LS Corporation (LSI) and
QLogic Corporation (QLogic). However in mid-2007, Brocade Communications Systems, Inc. (Brocade) announced
its entry into the Fibre Channel HBA market. Rather than entering the market with its own technology, Brocade is
re-branding/re-selling Fibre Channel HBAs from a third party supplizr. Although Brocade’s initial foray into Fibre
Channel HBAs is based on a third party supplier, future product gencrations {e.g., eight Gb/s HBAs) are expected to
be based on Brocade’s own intellectual property.

In some markets, our HBAs face indirect competition from iSCSI HBA suppliers that include established Fibre
Channel competitors as well as new entrants, including established Ethernet suppliers such as Broadcom
Corporation (Broadcom) and Inte] Corporation (Intel), and established SCSI vendors such as Adaptec, Inc.
(Adaptec). Across ail storage networking technologies, we face the threat of potential competition from new entrants
into the storage networking market, including large technology companies that may develop or acquire
differentiating technology and then apply their resources, including established distribution channels and brand
recognition, to obtain significant market share.

We believe that the principal basis of storage networking HBA cempetition presently includes interoperability,
reliability, scalability, price, silicon integration, performance, technizal support, and backwards compatibility with
the installed base of HBAs, We believe that we compete favorably with respect to these factors. We also believe that
we have a competitive strength in the alliances we have built with customers, particularly our close relationships
with OEM customers. We believe that our experience with distribution channels has begun to provide competitive
benefits as the storage networking market matures. Some of our other competitive advantages include our early
entry into Fibre Channel technology, our workforce of highly experienced researchers and designers, and our
intellectual property.

Our embedded products which include InSpeed, FibreSpy, and Sierra Logic — based products as well as our
10Cs and IOPs compete against embedded storage products supplied by PMC-Sierra, Inc. (PMC-Sierra), Vitesse
Semiconductor Corporation (Vitesse), and LSI. Across all embedded storage technologies, we face the threat of
potential competition from new entrants into the embedded storage market, including large technology companies
that may develop or acquire differentiating technology and then apply their resources, including established
distribution channels and brand recognition, to obtain significant market share.

We believe that the principal basis of embedded storage products competition presently includes interoperability,
reliability, scalability, price, silicon integration, performance, ability to support additional protocols such as Fiber
Connectivity (FICON), technical support, and backwards compatible APIs. We believe that we compete favorably
with respect to these factors. We also believe that we have a comperitive strength in our close relationships with
OEM customers and our OEMs’ investment in storage software. Some of our other competitive advantages include
our early entry into Fibre Channel and SATA technology, our workforce of highly experienced researchers and
designers, and our intellectual property.

Intelligent Network Products come in a variety of form factors ircluding system level appliances that are plugged
into the fabric, mezzanine cards that can be integrated into an array and intelligent IOCs that are placed directly ona
RAID card. We believe we are the only vendor making ASICs that can be used for any form factor with the same
architecture across all solutions. Our Intelligent Network Products compete against OEM developed ASICs, QLogic
storage processors that are integrated into system level products, and intelligent storage processors from a variety of
startups and smaller companies.




We believe that the principal basis of Intelligent Network Products competition includes seamless migration from
appliance to mezzanine card to 10C interoperability, a multi protocol capable (Fibre Channel and/or 1SCSI and/or
FCoE) interface, reliability, scalability, price, silicon integration, performance, and backwards compatible APls. We
believe that we compete favorably with respect to these factors. We also believe that is a competitive strength in our
close relationships with OEM customers.

Manufacturing and Suppliers

Our products include board level assemblies that consist primarily of electronic component parts assembled on
internally designed printed circuit boards (PCBs) and box level products consisting of board level assemblies,
cables, and power sources contained within an enclosure. Most component parts can be purchased from two or more
sources, However, some key components that we use in our products (including our ASICs) may only be available
from single sources with which we do not have contracts. In addition, we design ASICs that are embedded in our
assembled products and are also sold directly to OEM customers. These ASICs are also sole sourced and
manufactured by third party semiconductor foundries. The majority of our ASICs are manufactured under the
direction of LSI, using a variety of qualified semiconductor, assembly, and test suppliers. Marvell Technology
Group LTD (Marvell) is another major ASIC partner for some of our InSpeed devices and our FibreSpy products.
LSI announced on May 15, 2006, that it consummated the sale of certain assets assoctated with its semiconductor
wafer fabrication facilities in Gresham, Oregon to Semiconductor Components Industries LLC (SCI), a wholly
owned subsidiary of ON Semiconductor Corporation. In connection with that sale, LS| entered into a wafer supply
and test service agreement with SCI in which SCI will manufacture and provide semiconductor wafer products to
LSI and its customers for an initial period of two years. The entire term of the agreement is six years. In addition to
hardware, we design software and firmware, which is provided as embedded programs within our hardware products
to provide functionality to our hardware products.

During 2007, Celestica Inc. (Celestica) manufactured for us at their facility in Valencia, Spain, Benchmark
Electronics, Inc. (Benchmark) manufactured for us at their facitity in Guadalajara, Mexico, 1. Technical Services
LLC (ITS) manufactured for us at their facility in Alpharetta, Georgia, and Venture Corporation Limited {Venture)
manufactured for us at their facility in Jahor-Bahru, Malaysia. Beginning in late fiscal 2007 and continuing into
early fiscal 2008, we are consolidating our contract manufacturers down to two providers and are terminating our
manufacturing agreement with Celestica. However, Celestica will continue to provide repair services. Through our
continuing strategic relationships with Benchmark and Venture, we believe we have a strong global manufacturing
operation that supports our growing global customer base and provides us with increased supply chain efficiency,
flexibility, and security.

The assembly operations required by our products are typical of the electronics industry, and no unusual methods,
procedures or equipment are required. The sophisticated nature of the products, in most cases, requires extensive
testing by specialized tést devices operated by skilled personnel. Qur electronics manufacturing service (EMS)
providers provide this testing. However, we also maintain an internal test-engineering group for continuing support
of test operations. As of July 1, 2007, we had a total of 61 regular full time operations employees.

Employees
As of July I, 2007, we employed 746 employees as follows: 446 in engineering and development, 127 in selling

and marketing, 112 in general and administrative, and 61 in operations. None of our employees is represented by a
labor union, and we believe our employee relations are good.




Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive and certain other officers of the Company or its principal operating subsidiaries as of July 1, 2007
were as follows:

Name Position Ape
Paul F. Folino{1)......c.coorvevercrecncne Executive Chairman 62
James M. McCluney(2)................ Chief Executive Officer and President 56
William F. Gill(3)} cceoeeeeieeiinne Executive Vice President, Worldwide Sales 50
Sadie A. Herrera(3).......ccocevveunes Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Facilities 58
Marshall D. Lee(3).....cccocevnivnnns Executive Vice President, Engineering 51
Michael J. Rockenbach................ Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, and
Treasurer 46
Michael E. Smith(3)......ccccccvnrnnn. Executive Vice President, Warldwide Marketing 45
Randall G. Wick(3)..cceooveemnrnnne Vice President, General Counsel 54

(1) Effective September 5, 2006, Mr. Folino resigned as Chief Executive Officer of the Company and was
appointed as Executive Chairman.

(2) Effective September 5, 2006, Mr. McCluney resigned as Chief Operating Officer and was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer and President.

(3) These persons serve in the indicated capacities as officers of the Registrant’s principal operating subsidiaries;
they are not officers of the Registrant.

M. Folino joined the Company in May 1993 as president and chief executive officer and as a director, in July
2002 was promoted to chairman of the board and chief executive officer, and in September 2006, became executive
chairman. From January 1991 to May 1993, Mr. Folino was president and chief operating officer of Thomas-Conrad
Corporation, a manufacturer of local area networking products.

Mr. McCluney joined the Company in November 2003 as presidert and chief operating officer, and was
subsequently appointed to the position of chief executive officer and president in September 2006. Prior to Emulex’s
acquisition of Vixel Corporation (Vixel) in November 2003, Mr. McCluney had served as Vixel’s chairman,
president and chief executive officer. From October 1997 to January 1999, Mr. McCluney served as president and
chief operating officer of Crag Technologies, formerly Ridge Technologies, a storage system manufacturer. From
October 1994 to September 1997, Mr. McCluney served in various positions at Apple Computer, Inc., including
senior vice president of worldwide operations and vice president of Furopean operations.

Mr. Gill joined the Company in January 2000 and serves as executive vice president of worldwide sales. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Gill was director, business development for Pinnacle Multimedia, a developer of training
management software. From 1994 to 1999, Mr. Gill held various senior sales positions with 3Com Corporation and
U.S. Robotics,

Ms. Herrera joined the Company in 1988 and serves as executive vice president of human resources and
facilities. Ms. Herrera had over 15 years of human resource management experience with the Remex Division of Ex-
Cell-O/Textron Corporation and other companies prior to joining the Company.

Mr. Lee joined the Company in September 2002 as executive vice president of engineering and in November
2004, was elected as an officer of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lee was vice president of
engineering at Quantum Corporation, a peripheral manufacturer, from June 1995 to April 2001 and held a senior
management position at IBM’s Storage Division from April 1994 to June 1995. From August 1992 to April 1994,
Mr. Lee was vice president of engineering at Maxtor Corporation, a hard disk drive company, and from June 1984 to
August 1992, held a senior management position at Western Digital Corporation, a hard disk drive company.
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Mr. Rockenbach joined the Company in 1991 and has served as executive vice president and chief financial
officer since 1997. From 1991 to 1996, Mr. Rockenbach served in senior finance and accounting positions within
the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr, Rockenbach served in various manufacturing finance and financial
planning positions at Western Digital Corporation.

Mr. Smith joined the Company in October 1998 and serves as executive vice president of worldwide marketing.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Smith held various marketing management positions with Adaptec, Inc.
{Adaptec), including responsibility for its Fibre Channel products and Disk Controller integrated Circuits product
lines. Prior to joining Adaptec, Mr. Smith spent 10 years with Western Digital Corporation in a variety of
engineering and marketing management positions.

Mr. Wick joined the Company in June 2002 and serves as vice president and general counsel. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Wick served as vice president, chief operating officer and general counsel of TelQOptics Corporation,
a high tech privately held company, since November 2000. The prior year, he served as a legal consultant for his
own firm. Previously, Mr. Wick held the positions of vice president and general counsel for Samsung Electronics
America, Inc. from 1998 to 1999 and AST Research, Inc. from 1990 to 1998.

None of the executive officers of the parent Company or officers of its principal operating subsidiaries has any
family relationship with any other executive officer of the Company, other officer of its principal operating
subsidiaries, or director of the Company.

Item 1A, Risk Factors.

Our acquisitions of Aarohi Communications, Inc, on May 1, 2006 and Sierra Logic, Inc. on October 2, 2006,
involve numerous risks which may have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

Our acquisitions of Aarohi Communications, Inc. {Aarchi) and Sierra Logic, Inc. (Sierra Logic) involve
numerous risks, including, but not limited to:

= complexities in creating and maintaining uniform standards, controls, procedures, and policies;

+ different geographic locations of the principal aperations of Emulex, Aarohi and Sierra Logic and difficulties
relating to management of the former Aarohi operations and personnel in India;

* currency conversion exposure for payroll and other expenses of Aarohi’s principal product development
facility in Bangalore, India;

« difficulties with integrating acquired technology into our existing technology in a timely and efficient manner
that would allow us to fully realize the benefits of this acquisition.

As a result of these and other difficulties, we may not realize the anticipated benefits of the acquisition and may
encounter difficulties that could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results or cause
expectations with respect to Aarohi or Sierra Logic specifically, and the combined companies to be inaccurate.

Also, certain INP revenue generating activities to date have been limited and therefore are expected to further
dilute our earnings until new product revenues grow to a level sufficient to offset expenses, which timing we are
unable to predict,

A downturn in information technology spending in general, or spending on computer and storage systems in
particular, could adversely affect our revenues and results of operations.

The demand for our network storage products has been driven by the demand for high performance storage
networking products and solutions that support enterprise computing applications, including on-line transaction
processing, data mining, data warehousing, multimedia, and Internet applications. Any significant downturn in
demand for such products, solutions, and applications could adversely affect our business, resulis of operations, and




financial condition. The adverse effects of any sustained downturn in information technology spending on our
operating results may be exacerbated by our research and development investments, strategic investments and
merger and acquisition activity, as well as customer service and support, which are expected to continue despite any
such downturn.

A significant portion of our business depends upon the continued growth of the storage networking market, and
our business will be adversely affected if such growth does not occur or occurs more slowly than we anticipate.

The size of our potential market is largely dependent on the overal} demand for storage in general, and in
particular upon the broadening acceptance of our storage networking technologies. We believe that our investment
in multi-protocol solutions that address the high performance needs of the storage networking market provides the
greatest opportunity for our revenue growth and profitability for the future. However, the market for storage
networking products may not gain broader acceptance and customers may choose alternative technologies that we
are not investing in, and/or products supplied by other companies. Interest continues for other storage networking
technologies such as iSCSI, which may satisfy some [/O connectivity requirements through standard Ethernet
adapters and software at little to no incremental cost to end users, or through iSCSI HBAs that provide bundled
offload engine hardware and software. Such iSCSI solutions compete with our Host Server Products, particularly in
the low end of the market. In addition, other technologies such as port bypass circuits (PBC’s) and SAS compete
with our embedded storage products today, and we may not be able to develop products fast enough, or cost
effective enough to compete in this market. Furthermore, since our products are sold as parts of integrated systems,
demand for our products is driven by the demand for these integrated systems, including other companies’
complementary products. A lack of demand for the integrated systems or a lack of complementary products required
for these integrated systems to be deployed could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, and financial condition. If the storage networking market does not grow, or grows more stowly than we
anticipate, attracts more competitors than we expect, as discussed below, or if our products do not achieve continued
market acceptance, our business, results of operations, and financial condition could be materially adversely
affected.

Because a significant portion of our revenues are generated fron sales to a limited number of customers, none
of which are the subject of exclusive or long-term contracts, the loss of one or more of these customers, or our
customers’ failure to make timely payments to us, could adversely affect our business.

We rely almost exclusively on OEMs and sales through distribution channels for our revenue. For the fiscal year
ended July 1, 2007, we derived approximately 71% of our net revenues from sales to QEM customers and
approximately 29% from sales through distribution, respectively. Furthermore, as some of our sales through
distribution channels consist of OEM products, OEM customers effectively generated more than 90% of our revenue
for the fiscal year ended July 1, 2007. We may be unable to retain ovr current OEM and distributor customers or to
recruit additional or replacement customers.

Although we have attempted to expand our base of customers, including customers for embedded storage
products, we believe our revenues in the future will continue to be similarly derived from a limited number of
customers. In addition, both Aarohi and Sierra Logic targeted many of the same customers, thereby increasing our
concentration with these customers, As a result, to the exient that sales to any of our significant customers do not
increase in accordance with our expectations or are reduced or delayed, our business, results of operations, and
financial condition could be materiaily adversely affected.

As is common in the technology industry, our agreements with OEMs and distributors are typically non-
exclusive, have no volume commitments, and often may be terminated by either party without cause. It is
increasingly commonplace for our OEM and distributor customers o utilize or carry competing product lines. If we
were to lose business from one or more significant OEM or distributor customers to a competitor, our business,
results of operations, and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. In addition, our OEMs may
elect to change their business practices in ways that affect the timing of our revenues, which may materially
adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition.
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Our markets are highly competitive and our business and results of operations may be adversely affected by
entry of new competitors into the markets, aggressive pricing, and the introduction or expansion of competitive
products and technologies.

The markets for our products are highly competitive and are characterized by rapid technological advances, price
erosion, frequent new product introductions, and evolving industry standards. We expect that our markets will
continue to attract new competition. Our current and potential competition consists of major domestic and
international companies, some of which have substantially greater financial, technical, marketing, and distribution
resources than we have. Additional companies, including but not limited to our suppliers, strategic pariners, OEM
customers, and emerging companies, may enter the markets for our storage networking products and new or stronger
competitors may emerge as a result of consolidation movements in the marketplace, Additionally, our existing
competitors continue to introduce products with improved price/performance characteristics, and we may have to do
the same to remain competitive. Furthermore, competitors may introduce new products to the market before we do,
and thus obtain a first to market advantage over us. Increased competition could result in increased price
competition, reduced revenues, lower profit margins or loss of market share, any of which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Alternative legacy technologies such as SCSI and PBCs compete with our Fibre Channel /0 and embedded
storage products, respectively, for customers. Our success depends in part on our ability and on the ability of our
OEM customers to develop storage networking solutions that are competitive with these alternative legacy
technologies. Additionally, in the future other technologies that we are not currently developing may evolve to
address the storage networking applications currently served by our products today, reducing our market
opportunity.

Our operating results are difficult to forecast and could be adversely affected by many factors, and our stock
price may decline if our results fail to meet expectations.

Our revenues and results of operations have varied on a quarterly basis in the past and may vary significantly in
the future. Accordingly, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations are not necessarily
meaningful, and you should not rely on such comparisons as indications of our future performance. We may be
unable to maintain our current levels of growth or profitability in the future. Our revenues and results of operations
are difficult to forecast and could be adversely affected by many factors, including, but not limited to:

+ changes in the size, mix, titning and terms of OEM and/or other customer orders;

+ changes in the sales and deployment cycles for our products and/or desired inventory levels for our products;

* acquisitions or strategic investments by our customers, competitors or us;

+ timing and market acceptance of new or enhanced product introductions by us, our OEM customers and/or.
competitors;

+ market share losses or difficulty in gaining incremental market share;

» fluctuations in product development, procurement, resource utilization and other operating expenses;

» component shortages;

» reduced demand from our customers if there is a shortage of, or difficulties in acquiring, components or other
products, such as Fibre Channel or SATA disk drives and optical modules, used in conjunction with our

products in the deployment of systems;

* inability of our electronics manufacturing service providers to produce and distribute our products in a timely
fashion;

+ difficulties with updates, changes or additions to our information technology systems;




+ breaches of our network security, including viruses;

+ changes in general social and economic conditions, including but not limited to natural disasters, terrorism,
public health and slower than expected market growth, with resulting changes in customer technology
budgeting and spending;

» changes in technology, industry standards or consumer preferences;
» seasonality; and

» changes in our accounting or other policies resulting from the adoption of new laws, regulations or
prenouncements.

As a result of these and other unexpected factors or developments, future operating results may be from time to
time below the expectations of investors or market analysts, which would have a material adverse effect on our stock
price.

Our relatively small backlog of unfilled orders, possible customer delays or deferrals and our tendency to
generate a large percentage of our quarterly sales near the end of the guarter contribute to possible fluctuations
in aur operating results that could have an adverse impact on our results of operations and stock price.

Historically, we have generally shipped products quickly after we receive orders, meaning that we do not always
have a significant backlog of unfilled orders. As a result, our revenues in a given quarter may depend substantially
on orders booked during that quarter. Alternatively, orders already in backlog may be deferred or cancelled. Also,
we have typically generated a large percentage of our quarterly revenues in the last month of the quarter. As a result
of our expense levels being largely based on our expectations of future sales and continued investment in research
and development, in the event we experience unexpected decreases in sales, our expenses may be disproportionately
large relative to our revenues, and we may be unable to adjust spending in a timely manner to compensate for any
unexpected revenue shortfall. A material shortfall in sales in relation to our quarterly expectations or any delay,
deferral, or cancellation of customer orders would likely have an immediate and adverse impact on our results of
operations and may adversely affect our stock price.

Our industry is subject to rapid technological change and we must keep pace with the changes to successfully
compete.

The markets for our products are characterized by rapidly changing technology, evolving industry standards, and
the frequent introduction of new products and enhancements. Our future success depends in targe part on our ability
to enhance our existing products and to introduce new products on a timely basis to meet changes in customer
preferences and evolving industry standards. Currently, new and proposed technologies such as eight, 10, and 16
Gb/s Fibre Channel solutions; one and 10 Gb/s Ethernet solutions; Fibre Channel over Ethernet (FCoE); Enhanced
Ethernet; Data Center Ethernet; Infiniband; PCI-X 2.0; PCI Express; PCI Express Advanced Switching; iSCSI;
SATA; SAS; and Remote Direct Memory Access (RDMA); are in development by many companies and their
ultimate acceptance and deployment in the market is uncertain. We are developing some, but not all of these
technologies, and we cannot be sure thai the technologies we chose to develop will achieve market acceptance, or
that technologies that we chose not to develop will be available to purchase or license from third parties or will be
immaterial to our business. Furthermore, if our products are not available in time for the qualification cycle at an
OEM it may be up to three vears, if ever, before another qualification cycle is available to us. In addition, new
products and enhancements developed by us may not be backwards compatible to existing equipment already
installed in the market. If we are unable, for technological or other reasons, to develop new products, enhance or sell
existing products, or consume raw materials in a timely and cost effective manner in response to technological and
market changes, our business, results of operations, and financial condition may be matenially adversely affected.
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We have experienced losses in our history and may experience losses in our future that may adversely affect
our stock price and financial condition.

We have experienced losses in our history, including a loss of $532.3 million in fiscal 2004. Any losses,
including losses caused by impairment of long-lived assets and/or goodwill, may adversely affect the perception of
our business by analysts and investors, which could adversely affect our stock price. To the extent that we are unable
to generate positive operating profits or positive cash flow from operations, our financial condition may be
materially adversely affected.

The migration of our customers toward newer product platforms may have a significant adverse effect.

As our customers migrate from one platform to the enhanced price/performance of the next platform, we may
experience reduced revenue, gross profit, or gross margin levels associated with lower average selling prices or
higher relative product costs associated with improved performance. While we regularly compare forecasted
demand for our products against inventory on hand and open purchase commitments, to the extent that customers
migrate more quickly than anticipated, the corresponding reduction in demand for older product platforms may
result in excess or obsolete inventory and related charges which could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

Any failure of our OEM customers to keep up with rapid technological change and successfully market and sell
systems that incorporate new technologies could adversely affect our business.

Our revenues depend significantly upon the ability and willingness of our OEM customers to commit significant
resources to develop, promote, and deliver products that incorporate our technology. In addition, if our customers’
products are not commercially successful, it would have a materially adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, and financial condition. The success of our Intelligent Network Products (INP) depends upon their
introduction into systems to replace older generation technology, and those products may not be successful if such
introductions are delayed.

Rapid changes in the evolution of technology, including the unexpected extent or timing of the transition from
HBA solutions or embedded switch box solutions to lower priced ASIC solutions, could adversely affect our
business.

Historically, the electronics industry has developed higher performance ASICs that create chip level solutions that
replace selected board level or box level solutions at a significantly lower average selling price. We have previously
experienced this trend and expect it to continue in the future. If this transition is more abrupt or is more widespread
than anticipated, there can be no assurance that we will be able to modify our business mode! in a timely manner, if
at all, in order to mitigate the effects of this transition on our business, results of operations, and financial position,

If customers elect to utilize lower end HBAs in higher end environments or applications, our business could be
negatively affected.

We supply three families of HBAs that target separate high-end, midrange and small to medium sized business
users (SMB) markets. Historically, the majority of our storage networking revenue has come from our high-end
server and storage solutions. [n the future, increased revenues are expected to come from SMB and midrange server
and storage solutions, which have lower average selling prices. If customers elect to utilize lower end HBAs in
higher end environments or applications, our business could be negatively affected.

Advancement of storage disk capacity technology may not allow for additional revenue growth.

Storage disk density continues to improve rapidly and at some point in the future, the industry may experience a
period where the increase in storage disk capacity may equal or exceed the growth rate of digital data, This would
result in a situation where the number of units of disk drives may flatten out or even decrease. Our growth in
revenue depends on growth in unit shipments to offset declining average selling prices. To the extent that disk drive
unit demand slows or decreases, our financial condition and results of operations may be materially adversely
affected.
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A decrease in the average unit selling prices and/or an increase in the manufactured cost of our products could
adversely affect our revenue, gross margins and financial performance.

In the past, we have experienced downward pressure on the average unit selling prices of our products.
Furthermore, we may provide pricing discounts to customers based upon volume purchase criteria, and achievement
of such discounts may reduce our average unit selling prices. To the extent that growth in unit demand fails to offset
decreases in average unit selling prices, our revenues and financial pe:formance could be matertally adversely
affected. Although historically we have achieved offsetting cost reductions, to the extent that average unit selling
prices of our products decrease without a corresponding decrease in the costs of such products, our gross margins
and financial performance could be materially adversely affected. Furthermore, as the majority of our products are
manufactured internationally, cost reductions would be more difficult to achieve if the value of the'U.S. dollar
deteriorates. Moreover, if the manufactured cost of our products were to increase due to inflation or other factors,
our gross margins and financial performance could be materially adversely affected.

Delays in product development could adversely affect our busines:.

We have experienced delays in product development in the past and may experience similar delays in the future.
Prior delays have resulted from numerous factors, which may include, but are not limited to:

= difficulties in hiring and retaining necessary employees and independent contractors;
- difficulties in reaflocating engineering resources and other resoutce limitations;

 unanticipated engineering or manufacturing complexity, including from third party suppliers of intellectual
property such as foundries of our ASICs;

« undetected errors or failures in software, firmware, and hardware;

+ changing OEM product specifications;

+ delays in the acceptance or shipment of products by OEM customers; and
« changing market or competitive product requirements.

Given the short product life cycles in the markets for our products and the relatively long product development
cycles, any delay or unanticipated difficulty associated with new product introductions or product enhancements
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition,

Our joint development activities may result in products that are not commercially successful or that are not
available in a timely fashion.

We have engaged in joint development projects with third parties :n the past and we expect to continue doing so
in the future. Joint development can magnify several risks for us, inc’uding the loss of control over development of
aspects of the jointly developed products and over the timing of product availability. Accordingly, we face increased
risk that joint development activities will result in products that are not commercially successful or that are not
available in a timely fashion. Any failure to timely develop commercially successful products through our joint
development activities could have a matetial adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial
condition.




A change in our business relationships with our third party suppliers or our electronics manufacturing service
providers could adversely affect our business.

We rely on third party suppliers for components and the manufacture of our products, and we have experienced
delays or difficulty in securing components and finished goods in the past. Delays or difficulty in securing
components or finished goods at reasonable cost may be caused by numerous factors including, but not limited to:

+ discontinued production by a supplier;

= required long-term purchase commitments;

+ undetected errors, failures or production quality issues, including projected failures that may exceed epidemic

failure rates specified in agreements with our customers or that may require us to make concessions or
accommodations for continuing customer relationships;

+ timeliness of product delivery;

= sole sourcing and components made by a small number of suppliers, including the inability to obtain
components and finished goods at reasonable cost from such sources and suppliers;

+ financial stability and viability of our suppliers and electronics manufacturing service (EMS) providers;
+ changes in business strategies of our suppliers and EMS providers;

* increases in manufacturing costs due to lower volumes or more complex manufacturing process than
anticipated,

« disruption in shipping channels;
+ natural disasters;
* inability or unwillingness of our suppliers or EMS providers to continue their business with us;

* environmental, tax or legislative changes in the location where our products are produced or delivered,
including implementation of European Union Directives 2002/95/EC (RoHS$) and 2002/96/EC (WEEE), with
the RoHS directive limiting the concentration of certain materials (lead, chromium, etc.} that may be contained
in electronic preducts placed on the European market and the WEEE directive requiring certain recycling
markings and recycling procedures for electronic products placed on the European market;

« difficulties associated with foreign operations; and
» market shortages.

There is a risk that we will not be able to retain our current suppliers or change to alternative suppliers. An
interruption in supply, the cost of shifting to a new supplier or EMS providers, disputes with suppliers or EMS
providers, or the cost associated with a long-term purchase commitment could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, and financial condition,

As we have transitioned the material procurement and management for our key components to our EMS
providers, we face increasing risks associated with ensuring product availability. Further, an adverse inventory
management contro! issue by one or more of our third party suppliers could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, and financial condition.

LSI Logic announced on May 15, 2006, that it consummated the sale of certain assets associated with its

semiconductor wafer fabrication facilities in Gresham, Oregon to SCI, a wholly owned subsidiary of ON
Semiconductor Corporation. In connection with that sale, LSI Logic entered into a wafer supply and test service
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agreement with SCI pursuant to which SCI will manufacture and provide semiconductor wafer products to LSI
Logic and its customers for an initial period of two years. The entire term of the agreement is six years. This
manufacturing facility, at which certain ASICs are manufactured for us, and the transition of such facility creates a
risk of disruption in our supply of certain ASICs should the announced plans of LSI Logic for uninterrupted service
of customers not be achieved.

If our intellectual property protections are inadequate, it could adversely affect our business.

We believe that our continued success depends primarily on continuing innovation, marketing, and technical
expertise, as well as the quality of product support and customer relations. At the same time, our success is partially
dependent on the proprietary technology contained in our products. We currently rely on a combination of patents,
copyrights, trademarks, trade secret laws, and contractual provisions to establish and protect our intellectual property
rights in our products.

We cannot be certain that the steps we take to protect our intellectual property will adequately protect our
proprictary rights, that others will not independently develop or otherwise acquire equivalent or superior technology,
or that we can maintain such technology as trade secrets. In addition, the laws of some of the countries in which our
products are or may be developed, manufactured, or sold may not protect our products and intellectual property
rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States, or at all. Furthermore, we enter into various development
projects and arrangements with other companies. In some cases, these arrangements allow for the sharing or use of
our intellectual property. Our failure to protect our intellectual property rights could have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations, and financial condition. We attempt to mitigate this risk by obtaining
indemnification from others, where possible.

Certain of our software (as well as that of our customers) may be derived from so-called “open source” software
that is generally made available to the public by its authors and/or other third parties. Such open source software is
often made available to us under licenses, such as the GNU General Public License, or GPL, which impose certain
obligations on us in the event we were to distribute derivative works of the open source software. These obligations
may require us to make source code for the derivative works available to the public, and/or license such derivative
works under a particular type of license, rather than the forms of licenses customarily used to protect our intellectual
property. [n the event the copyright holder of any open source software were to successfully establish in court that
we had not complied with the terms of a license for a particular work. we could be required to release the source
code of that work to the public and/or stop distribution of that work,

Ongoing lawsuits present inherent risks, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, or results of operations. Such potential risks include the continuing expenses of litigation, the
risk of loss of patent rights, the risk of injunction against the sale of products incorporating the technology in
question, counterclaims, attorneys’ fee liability, and the diversion of :nanagement’s attention from other business
matters.

For more information on lega! proceedings related to Emulex, see Note 10 in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Third party claims of intellectual property infringement could adversely affect our business.

We believe that our products and technology do not infringe on thz intellectual property rights of others or upon
intellectual property rights that may be granted in the future pursuant to pending applications. We occasionally
receive communications from third parties alleging patent infringement, and there is always the chance that third
parties may assert infringement claims against us. Any such claims, with or without merit, could result in costly
litigation, cause product shipment delays, or require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements, which may or
may not be available. Furthermore, we have in the past obtained, and may be required in the future to obtain,
licenses of technology owned by other parties. We cannot be certain that the necessary licenses will be available or
that they can be obtained on commercially reasonable terms. If we were to fail to obtain such royalty or licensing
agreements in a timely manner and on reasonable terms, our business, results of operations, and financial condition
could be materially adversely affected.




The inability or increased cost of attracting, motivating, or retaining key managerial and technical personnel
could adversely affect our business.

Our success depends to a significant degree upon the performance and continued service of key managers, as well
as engineers involved in the development of our storage networking technologies and technical support of our
storage networking products and customers. Competition for such highly skilled employees in the communities in
which we operate, as well as our industry, is intense, and we cannot be certain that we will be successful in
recruiting, training, and retaining such personnel. in addition, employees may leave us and subsequently compete
against us. Also, many of these key managerial and technical personnel receive stock options as part of our
employee retention initiatives. New regulations, volatility in the stock market, and other factors could diminish the
value of our stock options, putting us at a competitive disadvantage and forcing us to use more cash compensation.
If we are unable to attract new managerial and technical employees, or are unable to retain and motivate our current
key managerial and technical employees, or are forced to use more cash compensation to retain key personnel, our
business, results of operations, and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Our international business activities subject us to risks that could adversely affect our business.

For the fiscal year ended July 1, 2007, sales in the United States accounted for approximately 47% of our total net
revenues, sales in the Pacific Rim countries accounted for approximately 17%, and sales in Europe and the rest of
the world accounted for approximately 36% of our total net revenues, based on bill to address. We expect that our
sales will be similarly distributed for the foreseeable future. However, because we sell to OEMs and distributors
who ultimately resell our products to their customers, the geographic mix of our sales may not be reflective of the
geographic mix of end-user demand or installations. All of our sales are currently denominated in U.S. dollars. As a
result, if the value of the U.S. dollar increases relative to foreign currencies, our products could become less
competitive in international markets. Additionally, a significant portion of our products is produced at our EMS
providers’ production facilities in Mexico and Malaysia. As a result, we are subject to the risks inherent in
international operations. Our international business activities could be affected, limited or disrupted by a variety of
factors, including, but not limited to:

« imposition of or changes in governmental controls, taxes, tariffs, trade restrictions, and regulatory
requirements;

» costs and risks of localizing products for foreign countries;

+ longer accounts receivable payment cycles;

*» changes in the value of local currencies relative to our functional currency;

= import and export restrictions;

* loss of tax benefits, or increases in tax expenses, due to international production;

» general economic and social conditions within foreign countries;

+ taxation in multiple jurisdictions; and

+ political instability, war or terrorism.

All of these factors could harm future sales of our products to international customers or future production outside

of the United States of our products, and have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and
financial condition.
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Potential acquisitions or strategic investments may be more costly or less profitable than anticipated and may
adversely affect the price of our common stock,

We may pursue acquisitions ot strategic investments that could provide new technologies, preducts, or service
offerings. Future acquisitions or strategic investments may negatively itnpact our results of operations as a result of
operating losses incurred by the acquired entity, the use of significant amounts of cash, potentially dilutive issuances
of equity or equity-linked securities, incurrence of debt, amortization of intangible assets with determinable lives, or
impairment of intangible assets. Furthermore, we may incur significant expenses pursuing acquisitions or strategic
investments that ultimately may not be completed. Moreover, to the extent that any proposed acquisition or strategic
investment that is not favorably received by stockholders, analysts and others in the investment community, the
price of our stock could be adversely affected. In addition, acquisitions or strategic investments involve numerous
risks, including, but not limited to:

« difficulties in the assimilation of the operations, technologies, products, and personnel of the acquired
company;

« purchased technology that is not adopted by customers in the way or the time frame we anticipated;

« diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;

+ risks of entering markets in which we have limited or no prior experience;

« risks associated with assuming the legal obligations of the acquired company;

= minority interest in a company, resulting from a strategic investment, that could have an impact on our results;

» risks related to the effect that the acquired company’s internal cor.trol processes might have on our financial
reporting and management’s report on our internal controls over financial reporting;

+ potential loss of key employees of the company we invested in or acquired;

« there may exist unknown defects of an acquired company’s products or assets that may not be identified due to
the inherent limitations involved in the due diligence process of an acquisition; and

» changes in generally accepted accounting principles regarding the: accounting treatment for acquisitions to less
favorable treatment than is currently allowed.

In the event that an acquisition or strategic investment does occur and we are unable to obtain anticipated profits
or successfully integrate operations, technologies, products, or personne! or acquire assets that later become
worthless, our business, results of operations, and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Our stock price is volatile, which has and may result in lawsults agiinst us and our officers and directors.

The stock market in general and the stock prices in technology based companies in particular, have experienced
extreme volatility that often has been unrelated to the operating perfoninance of any specific public company. The
market price of our common stock has fluctuated in the past and is likely to fluctuate in the future as well. For
example, during the first seven months of calendar year 2007, the sales price of our common stock ranged from a
low of $17.01 per share to a high of $23.80 per share. Factors that could have a significant impact on the market
price of our stock include, but are not limited to, the following:

+ quarterly variations in customer demand and operating results;
» announcements of new products by us or our competitors;

» the gain or loss of significant customers or design wins;

+ changes in analysts’ earnings estimates;

» changes in analyst recommendations, price targets, ot other paraineters that may not be related to earnings
estimates;
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* rumors or dissemination of false information;

* pricing pressures;

+ shortt selling of our common stock;

« general conditions in the computer, storage, or communications markets; and
+ events affecting other companies that investors deem to be comparable to us.

In the past, companies, including us, that have experienced volatility in the market price of their stock have been
the objects of securities class action litigation. If we were to be the subject of similar litigation in the future or
experience unfavorable outcomes in any of our pending litigation, as discussed in Note 10 in the accompanying
notes to our consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere herein, it could have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations, financial condition, and diversion of management’s attention from other business matters.

Terrorist activities and resulting military and other actions could adversely affect our business.

The continued threat of terrorism, military action, and heightened security measures in response to the threat of
terrorism may cause significant disruption to commerce throughout the world. To the extent that such disruptions
result in delays or cancellations of customer orders, delays in coliecting cash, a general decrease in corporate
spending on information technology, or our inability to effectively market, manufacture, or ship our products, our
business, financial condition, and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. We are unable to
predict whether the threat of terrorism or the responses thereto will result in any long-term commercial disruptions
or if such activities or responses will have any long-term material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, or financial condition.

Our corporate offices and principal product development fucilities are located in regions that are subject to
earthquakes and other natural disasters.

Our California and Washington facilities, including our corporate offices and principal product development |
facilities, are located near major earthquake faults. Any disruption in our business activities, personal injury, or
damage to the facilities in excess of our currently insured amounts as a result of earthquakes or other such natural
disasters, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

We currently do not carry earthquake insurance. However, we do carry various other lines of insurance that may
or may not be adequate to try and protect our business.

Our shareholder rights plan, certificate of incorporation and Delaware law conld adversely affect the
performance of our stock.

Our shareholder rights plan and provisions of our certificate of incorporation and of the Delaware General
Corporation Law could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if doing so would be beneficial to
our shareholders. The shareholder rights plan and these provisions of our certificate of incorporation and Delaware
law are intended to encourage potential acquirers 1o negotiate with us and altow our board of directors the
opportunity to consider alternative proposals in the interest of maximizing shareholder value. However, such
provisions may also discourage acquisition proposals or delay or prevent a change in controd, which could harm our
stock price.

Qur system of internal controls may be inadequate.

We maintain a system of internal controls in order to ensure we are able to collect, process, summarize, and
disclose the information required by the Securities and Exchange Commission within the time periods specified.
Any system of controls, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the system are met. In addition, the design of any control system is based in part
upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events. Due to these and other inherent limitations of control
systems, there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential
future conditions, regardless of how remote. Additionally, public companies in the United States are required to
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review their internal controls under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. If the internal controts put in place by us are
not adequate or fail to perform as anticipated, we may be required to restate our financial statements, receive an
adverse audit opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls, and/or take other actions that will divert
significant financial and managerial resources, as well as be subject to fines and/or other government enforcement
actions. Furthermore, the price of our stock could be adversely affected,

Changes in laws, regulations, and financial accounting standards may affect our reported results of operations.

New laws, regulations and accounting standards, as well as changes to and varying interpretations of currently
accepted accounting practices in the technology industry might adversely affect our reported financial results, which
could have an adverse effect on our stock price.

The final determination of our income tax liability may be materially different from our income tax provisions
and accruals.

We are subject to income taxes in both the United States and international jurisdictions. Significant judgment is
required in determining our worldwide provision for income taxes. In the ordinary course of our business, there are
many transactions where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Additionally, our calculations of income taxes
are based on our interpretations of applicable tax laws in the jurisdictions in which we file. Although we believe our
tax estimates are reasonable, there is no assurance that the final determination of our income tax liability will not be
materially different than what is reflected in our income tax provisions and accruals. Should additional taxes be
assessed as a result of new legislation, an audit or litigation, if our effective tax rate should change as a result of
changes in federal, international or state and local 1ax laws, or if we were to change the locations where we operate,
there could be a material effect on our income tax provision and net inome in the period or periods in which that
determination is made, and potentially to future periods as well.

We may need additional capital in the future and such additienal financing may not be available on favorable
terms.

While we believe we have adequate working capital to meet our expected cash requirements for the next twelve
months, we may need to raise additional funds through public or private debt or equity financings in order to,
without limitation:

+ take advantage of unanticipated opportunities, including more rapid international expansion or acquisitions of
complementary businesses or technologies;

+ develop new products or services;

* repay outstanding indebtedness; and

* respond to unanticipated competitive pressures.

Any additional financing we may need may not be available on tertas favorable to us, or at all. If adequate funds
are not available or are not available on acceptable terms, we may not be able to take advantage of business
opportunities, develop new products or services, or otherwise respond to unanticipated competitive pressures. In any
such case, our business, results of operations, and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

Global warming issues may cause us to alter the way we conduct our business,

The general public is becoming more aware of global warming issues and as a result, governments around the
world are beginning to focus on addressing this issue. This may result in new environmental regulations that may
unfavorably impact us, our suppliers, and our customers in how we conduct our business including the design,

development, and manufacturing of our products. The cost of meeting; these requirements may have an adverse
impact on our results of operations and financial condition.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
Item 2. Properties.

Our corporate offices and principal product development facilities, which were purchased in 2004, are currently
located in approximately 180,000 square feet of buildings in Costa Mesa, California. We lease facilities in
California, Colorado, Massachusetts, Washington, and Bangalore, India primarily for engineering and development
and approximately 19 other remote offices, primarily for sales, throughout the world.

Our future facilities requirements will depend upon our business, but we believe additional space, if required,
may be obtained on reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On November 15, 2001, prior to our acquisition of Vixel Corporation, a securities class action was filed in the
United States District Court in the Southern District of New York as Case No, 01 CIV. 10053 (SAS), Master File
No. 21 MC92 (SAS) against Vixel and two of its officers and directors (one of which is James M. McCluney) and
certain underwriters who participated in the Vixel initial public offering in late 1999. The amended complaint
alleges violations under Section 10(b} of the Exchange Act and Section 11 of the Securities Act and seeks
unspecified damages on behalf of persons who purchased Vixel stock during the period October 1, 1999 through
December 6, 2000. In October 2002, the parties agreed to toll the statute of limitations with respect to Vixel’s
officers and directors until September 30, 2003, and on the basis of this agreement, Vixel’s officers and directors
were dismissed from the lawsuit without prejudice, During June 2003, Vixel and the other issuer defendants in the
action reached a tentative settlement with the plaintiffs that would, among other things, result in the dismissal with
prejudice of all claims against the defendants and their officers and directors. In connection with the possible
settlement, those officers and directors who had entered tolling agreements with the plaintiffs agreed to extend those
agreements so that they would not expire prior to any settlement being finalized. Although Vixel approved this
settlement proposal in principle, it remains subject to a number of precedural conditions, as well as formal approval
by the court. On August 31, 2005, a Preliminary Order In Connection With Settlement Proceedings was issued by
the court which among other items, set the form of notice to the Settlement Classes of the Issuers’ Settlement
Stipulation, In December 2003, the settlement notices authorized by the court were sent to former Vixel
stockholders and the web site www.iposecuritieslitigation.com was created for claimants.

On or about July 17, 2006, Emulex assigned to the class action plaintiffs any 1PO claims Emulex (Vixel) has
against RBC Dain Rauscher in the [PO litigation, as required by the settlement agreement, On December 5, 2006,
the Second Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision reversing Judge Scheindlin’s class certification decision. On
about January 6, 2007, Emulex assigned to the class action plaintiffs any 1PO claims Emulex (Vixel) has against The
Bear Stearns Companies Inc. and Bear Steams & Co. Ine. in the IPO litigation, as required by the settlement
agreement. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denied the plaintiffs’ petition for rehearing of the decision denying
class certification, During April 2007, counsel for Emulex and other Issuers informed Judge Scheindlin that, in light
of the Second Circuit opinion, the settlement agreement in its current form cannot be approved because the defined
settlement class, like the litigation class, does not meet the Second Circuit requirements for certification. Judge
Scheindlin held a conference on May 30, 2007 to consider issues relating to the class definitions, the statute of
limitations, settlement, and discovery. On June 25, 2007, Judge Scheindlin signed a Stipulation and Order submitted
by the parties which terminated the fune 10, 2004 Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement with Defendant Issuers
and Individuals. On June 26, 2007, a document production request from the plaintiffs to all 298 issuers (including
Vixel} was received, covering documents from each issuer’s inception through December 31, 2001.

In addition to the ongoing litigation discussed above, we are involved in various claims and legal actions arising

in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of the outstanding matters
will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of the security holders of the Company during the fourth quarter of 2007.
PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholdzr Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Principal Market and Prices

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol ELX. The following
table sets forth the high and low per share sales prices for our common stock for the indicated periods, as reported
on the New York Stock Exchange.

High Low

2007

FOUMD QUATTET ....ooviviiieievitesiensnsceincera et e seseseb ettt e s s s s e e s em e b e e bbb bbb b A e s $ 2342 8% 17.89
ThIPd QUAFLET ........cocverererreuensrareenesnsnsssrrsseosesemseressns s sastbs bbb assm s bbbt e m e bs e s nbansnsbn e s an b s 2034 17.01
SECONA QUAILET ....vevereerereemeeseseeneeeseaee st sesesessareasnt s e seeams e se e ressbasatar SasasTETre st ranresreesseannesenes 21.64 1785
FIESt QUATTET. ...t a s e sesme st s sae s et sasarems s sae s sasasasntntsenabsabbsbsaseanre e 18.52  14.07
2006

FOUTD QUATLET ..cvvvvveveeeeeie ettt st sae s sse s s sa e b ses e sesavmessssesasessonsmsrssrsnsamessasasmasasnsnsesnas $ 19.00 $ 15.58
THIEA QUATTET «...ceeeeeeieieirert et sre e e se e rer et et sa b s e e sa b s e s sa s sesnenssemsnantabebs s aba b aa b a b s a s et e ns 2200 16.00
SECONA QUANTET .....eeveeecceerec e s e eaces b s s s bbb e b er e b s b e s s e R TE 0018 2122 17.17
FAESE QUAMET.....cvitctiucrerecer et bbb s e SR s r bR SRS a e AR oS 2268 17.14

Number of Common Stockholders
The approximate number of holders of record of our common stock as of August 10, 2007 was 352.
Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock and do nct anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain our eamings for the dzvelopment of our business.

On January 19, 1989, the Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution of one preferred stock purchase
right for each outstanding share of common stock. The rights were distributed on February 2, 1989, to stockholders
of record on the close of business on that date.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On December 5, 2006, we announced that our Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of up to
$150 million of our outstanding common stock over the next two years. We may repurchase shares from time-to-
time in open market purchases or privately negotiated transactions. The share repurchases will be financed by
available cash balances and cash from operations.

We repurchased approximately $32.0 million of our common stock but there were no sales of unregistered
securities during the three months ended July 1, 2007.
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Period

April 2, 2007 - April 29, 2007 ...
Aptil 30, 2007 - May 27, 2007 ...
May 28, 2007 - July 1, 2007 ..o ereenevceneniseas
B 7 )

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Total

Number of
Shares
Average Purchased
Total Price as Part of
Number Paid Publicly
of Shares per Announced
Purchased Share Plan
— —3

1,500,000 § 21.36 1,500,000 $

Dollar YValue
of Shares
That May

Yet Be
Purchased
Under the

Plan

— 5 111,950,000

111,950,000
79,913,000

1,500,000 $ 21.36 1,500,000 § 79,913,000

See Part III, tem 12 — “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” for certain

information regarding our equity compensation plans.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total stockholder return on the Company’s common stock with the
cumulative total return on the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index and the S& P Computer Storage and Peripherals Index
for the period of five fiscal years commencing July 1, 2002 and ended July 1, 2007.

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
EMULEX CORPORATION COMMON STOCK, S&P 500 INDEX AND
S&P COMPUTER STORAGE AND PERIPHERALS INDEX

250

200 —

-
100 SeZmmmmmT TN —
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0 ¥ t + +
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[ smsmmmmme Fypudes Corp. == = = S&P S0 Computer Storag ¢ & Peripheats =« = =+ » S&F 300 I

*  Assumes the value of the investment in the Company’s common stock and each index was $100 on July 1, 2002.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data.

The following table summarizes certain selected consolidated financial data. On November 13, 2003, we

completed the acquisition of Vixel Corporation (Vixel), on May 1, 2006, we completed the acquisition of Aarohi
Communications, Inc. (Aarohi), and on October 2, 2006, we completed the acquisition of Sierra Logic, Inc. (Sierra
Logic). For more details about the Aarohi and Sierra Logic acquisitions, see Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements — “Business Combinations,” contained elsewhere herein,

Selected Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Year Ended

July 1, July 2,
2007(1) 2006(1)

Net revenues:

July 3,

June 27,

June 29,

2005(1).(2) 2004(1).(2) 2003(1).(2)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Host Server Products .......ccocoecevvvecvivveiveeeeeee. 3 357,279 3 340,566 § 320,170 § 335225 3§ 304,027
Embedded Storage Products.........cocovvencrcrnrnann 107,578 59,203 49,057 17,685 —
Intelligent Network Products..........ccooeeveeenee.e. 3,907 29 — — —
OMRET ... e 1,423 3.015 6,425 11,512 4,181
Total Net reVeNUEs ........ccccevveiveereninreneseses e 470,187 402,813 375,653 364,422 308.208
Cost OF SAlES ..o 195,579 163,993 154,530 143 299 117,840
Gross profit ......cccecveeevevieecrenvcs e 274,608 238,820 221,123 221,123 190,368
Operating expenses:
Engineering and development ............ccccccevnenne 117,833 89,669 79,971 73,211 61,257
Selling and marketing ..........ccoooeveeireseeceiesrennesn 47,870 16,169 32,441 28,035 18,994
General and administrative ..., 31416 23,680 11,636 18,815 40,291
Amortization of other intangible assets ............... 12,082 10,944 11,314 7,597 7
Impairment of other intangible assets.................. 2,001 — — — —
Impairment of goodwill.........ccocccvviviieviiee — — 1,096 583,499 —
In-process research and development................... 19,225 17,272 — 11.400 —
Total operating expenses ............ccovvvreereerennnns 230,427 177,734 136,458 722,557 120.549
Operating income (£088).......ccoevrererimveciacieeaannnne. 44,181 61.086 84.665 (501.434) 69.819
Nonoperating income, net:
INLELESt INCOME ..o 20,000 21,150 13,106 9,149 12,991
INLETESt CXPENSE ..ecvverrirerrererrrseernensrersnirsereasssearens (1,179) (2,494) (4,202) (4,754) (5,510)
Gain on repurchase of convertible subordinated
NOLES wovsiesineeesin e e et e ceee e ee e ee ety ey e easepennras — — 20,514 2,670 28,729
Other (expense) InCome, Net........cceoeevrersrerrern. (3.919) 173 (2.273) 109 (78)
Total nenoperating income, net.........cccoceeeeneens 14.902 18.829 27.145 7.174 36,132
Income (loss) before income taxes .........ccooee...... 59,083 79,915 111,810 (494,260) 105,951
InCome tax ProviSION ...cocovieivenieeseesecs e eseseeas 29.649 39.464 40,221 38.062 40,262
Net income (l088)......cccoeeveeecerveriiereeenesenees $ 29434 § 40451 § 71589 § (532322)F 65,689
Net income (loss) per share:
BaSIC ...vvrccteere s $ 035 § 048 § 0.86 $ (647) $___0.80
Diluted ... 3 034 § 046 3 080 § (647) 0.79
Number of shares used in per share
computations:
BasiC ..o e e 84,545 83,920 82,819 82,293 82,051
Diluted .......cocevemrriee e —..89,089 91,259 92,970 82,293 87,914

{1) Net revenues have been reclassified into Host Server Products, Embedded Storage Products, Intelligent

Network Products, and Other categories for all fiscal years presented.

(2) Approximately $14.8 million, $11.5 million, and $5.8 million of amortization expense resulting from the
acquisition of technology intangible assets for fiscal years 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively, has been
reclassified from Amortization of other intangible assets to Cost of sales.
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Selected Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Year Ended
July 1, July 2, July 3, June 27, June 29,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In thousands)
Total current aSSetS ....cvvrirnrrrimresrsvrerieveees $ 399,054 $ 707,554 $ 584457 § 541326 § 498,232
Total current liabilities........c..cocovnviiiiiiininne 70,340 302,564 76,644 54.496 75,061
Working capital ... 328,714 404,590 507,813 486,830 423,171
Total aSSE1S ..evvvevirrre e 659,288 860,157 801,781 972,981 1,189,769
Convertible subordinated notes .................... — 235,177 233,382 524,845 208,518
Accumulated deficit...........cooeeee... (401,982)  (431416)  (471,867)  (543,456) (11,134)

Total stockholders’ equity 581,907 556,913 477,591 393,154 901,930

ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may constitute “forward-looking statements™
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. We may also make forward-looking
statements in other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, in materials delivered to
stockholders and in press releases. In addition, our representatives may from time to time make oral forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements provide current expectations of future events based on certain assumptions
and include any statement that does not directly relate to any historical or current fact. Words such as “anticipates,”
“in the opinion,” “believes,” “intends,” “expects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “plans,” “‘forecasts,”
“estimates,” “predicts,” “projects,” “potential,” “‘continue,” and similzr expressions may be intended to identify
forward-looking statements.

Actual future results could differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements as a result of
a variety of factors, including those discussed in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations set forth below, and, in particular, the section entitled “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A of the
Annual Report on Form 10-K included elsewhere herein. We express’y disclaim any obligation or undertaking to
release publicly any updates or changes to these forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect any future
events or circumstances. We wish to caution readers that a number of important factors could cause actual results to
differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements, These factors include the ability to realize the
anticipated benefits of the acquisitions of Sierra Logic, Inc. (Sierra Logic) and Aarohi Communications, Inc.
(Aarohi) on a timely basis or at all, and the Company’s ability to integrate the technology, operations, and personnel
of Aarohi and Sierra Logic into its existing operations in a timely and efficient manner. In light of the uncertainty of
the economy generally, and the technology and storage segments specifically, it is difficult to determine if past
experience is a good guide to the future and makes it impossible to determine if markets will grow or shrink in the
short term. In the past, our results have been significantly impacted by a widespread slowdown in technology
investment that pressured the storage networking market that is the mainstay of our business. A downturn in
information technology spending could adversely affect our revenues and results of operations. As a result of this
uncertainty, we are unable to predict with any accuracy what future results might be. Other factors affecting these
forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the following: slower than expected growth of the storage
networking market or the failure of our Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) customers to successfully
incorporate our products into their systems; our dependence on a limited number of customers and the effects of the
loss of, or decrease or delays in orders by, any such customers, or the failure of such customers to make payments;
the emergence of new or stronger competitors as a result of consolidation movements in the market; the timing and
market acceptance of our or our OEM customers’ new or enhanced products; the variability in the level of our
backlog and the variable and seasonal booking patterns of our customers; the effects of terrorist activities, natural
disasters and resulting political or economic instability; the highly competitive nature of the markets for our
products as well as pricing pressures that may result from such compsztitive conditions; our ability and the ability of
our OEM customers to keep pace with the rapid technological changes in our industry and gain market acceptance
for new products and technologies; the effect of rapid migration of customers towards newer, lower cost product
platforms; possible transitions from board or box level to application specific computer chip solutions for selected
applications; a shift in unit product mix from higher-end to lower-end or mezzanine card products; a decrease in the
average unit selling prices or an increase in the manufactured cost of our products; delays in product development;
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our reliance on third-party suppliers and subcontractors for components and assembly; any inadequacy of our
intellectual property protection or the potential for third-party claims of infringement; our ability to attract and retain
key technical personnel; plans for research and development in India; our dependence on foreign sales and foreign
produced products; the effect of acquisitions; impairment charges; changes in tax rates or legislation; and changes in
accounting standards. These and other factors which could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the
forward-looking statements and from historical trends and are in addition to other factors discussed elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission or in materials
incorporated therein by reference.

Executive Overview

Emulex creates enterprise-class products that intelligently connect storage, servers and networks — enabling
access to information that is open, adaptable and secure. We are a leading supplier of a broad range of advanced
storage networking infrastructure solutions. Our products and technologies leverage flexible multi protocol
architectures that extend from deep within the storage array to the server edge of storage area networks (SANs). Our
storage networking offerings include host bus adapters (HBAs), mezzanine cards for blade servers, embedded
storage bridges, routers, and switches, storage Input/Output controllers {I0Cs), and intelligent data center
networking solutions. HBAs and mezzanine cards are the data communication products that enable servers to
connect to storage networks by offloading communication-processing tasks as information is delivered and sent to
the storage network. Embedded storage bridges, routers, and switches and 10Cs are deployed inside storage arrays,
tape libraries and other storage appliances, delivering improved performance, reliability, and storage connectivity.
Our intelligent data center networking solutions support enhanced performance and functionality for high
performance networked virtual storage environments, The world’s largest storage and server OEMs rely on our
highly flexible common architecture to establish a robust foundation for cost effectively integrating a wide array of
storage protocols, standards, and speeds.

We rely almost exclusively on OEMs and sales through distribution channels for our revenue. Our OEM
customers include the world’s leading server and storage providers, including Dell Inc. (Dell), EMC Corporation
(EMC), Engenio Information Technologies, Inc. (Engenio), a subsidiary of LSI Logic Corporation, Fujitsu Ltd,
(Fujitsu), Fujitsu Siemens Computers (Fujitsu Siemens), Groupe Butl (Bull), Hewlett-Packard Company (Hewlett-
Packard), Hitachi Limited (Hitachi), International Business Machines Corporation (IBM), NEC Corporation (NEC),
Network Appliance, Inc. (Network Appliance), Quantum Corporation (Quantum), Sun Microsystems, Inc. (Sun),
Unisys Corporation (Unisys), and Xyratex Ltd. (Xyratex). Our distribution partners include Acal plc group (ACAL),
Avnet, Inc. (Avnet), Bell Microproducts, Inc. (Bell Microproducts), Info X Technelogy Solutions (Info X), Ingram
Micro Inc. (Ingram Micro), Macnica Networks Corporation (Macnica), Netmarks Inc. (Netmarks), Tech Data
Corporation (Tech Data), and Tokyo Electron Device Ltd. (TED). The market for storage networking infrastructure
solutions is concentrated among large OEMs, and as such, a significant portion of our revenues are generated from
sales to a limited number of customers.

We believe that growth and diversification by investing in next generation storage networking infrastructure
solutions are required in order to grow revenue, increase earnings, and increase shareholder value. Beginning with
the second quarter of fiscal 2007, our growth and diversification strategy within our single business segment was
mainly driven through three market focused product lines — Host Server Products (HSP), Embedded Storage
Products (ESP), and Intelligent Network Products (INP). HSPs mainly consist of our standard HBAs, custom form
factor mezzanine cards for blade servers, and application specific integrated circuits (ASICs) used in server
applications. ESPs mainly consist of our serial advanced technotogy attachment (SATA) bridges and routers, Fibre
Channe] embedded switches, and single and mufti protecol embedded controller products for enterprise class storage
systems. INPs mainly consist of multi protocol intelligent storage platforms that can be deployed as [QCs,
mezzanine cards, or appliances. These products expand the reach of Fibre Channel SANs beyond the data center
with solutions designed to take advantage of currently deployed one Gb/s Ethemet networks, and products currently
under development will incorporate 10 Gib/s Ethernet. We believe the product lines will benefit from the overall
visibility and access to our total customer and market base, as well as our ability to leverage our core technology
platforms to create products that are tailored to meet the specific requirements of their market. We continue to, and
currently plan to invest in research and development, sales and marketing, and capital equipment in order to achieve
our goal. As of July t, 2007, we had a total of 746 employees.
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Business Combinations

On October 2, 2006, we acquired 100% of the outstanding common shares of Sierra Logic, Inc. (Sierra Logic), a
privately-held supplier of embedded products for storage networking equipment located in Roseville, California,
The acquisition is part of our strategy to diversify our business by expanding our embedded products beyond Fibre
Channel to other disk drive protocols. The addition of Sierra Logic’s serial advanced technology attachment (SATA)
products, as well as other products under development, will enable the us to provide our customers with cost
effective, end-to-end solutions with enhanced features such as virtualization, multi-protocol interoperabitity and
tiered storage. We accounted for the acquisition using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141,
“Business Combinations.” The aggregate purchase price was approxiraately $147.0 million, including
approximately $137.6 million of cash for convertible preferred stock nd common stock, approximately $7.4 million
in assumed vested stock options and other transaction costs of approximately $2.0 million. This aggregate purchase
price does not include approximately $24.3 million paid into escrow and deemed to be contingent consideration,
which is included in other assets, approximately $8.3 million in restricted stock, and approximately $1.1 million of
assumed unvested stock options that will be recognized as compensation expense post-acquisition. The contingent
consideration relates to certain standard representations and warrantie ;s defined in the escrow agreement and is
expected to be resolved within 18 months from the acquisition date.

This allocation is subject to revision as the estimates of fair value of inventory, identifiable intangible assets, and
deferred taxes are based on preliminary information and the final pre-acquisition tax returns are not yet complete.
Emulex is in the process of obtaining third party valuations of certain assets. Thus, the allocation of the purchase
price is subject to refinement.

On May 1, 2006, we acquired 100% of Aarohi Communications, Inc. {Aarohi), a supplier of intelligent data
center networking products with principal product development faciliies located in San Jose, California and
Bangalore, India. We accounted for the acquisition of Aarohi under the purchase method of accounting in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, and recorded approximately $17.3 million of purchased in-process research and
development (IPR&D} expense during fiscal 2006,

The fair value of the net assets received by us in the Aarohi acquisition exceeded the purchase price to be
allocated. Consequently, contingent consideration of approximately $1.0 million was recognized and was included
in accrued liabilities during fiscal 2006. Certain performance targets were not achieved and thus, the contingent
consideration of approximately $1.0 million previously recorded was reversed in fiscal 2007. The final purchase
price revisions were also recorded in fiscal 2007 which resulted in changes to the fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed as well as a reduction to IPR&D expense in the statement of income of approximately
$2.6 million. We have finalized the purchase price allocation to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
estimated fair values as of the end of fiscal 2007.

On November 13, 2003, we completed the cash tender offer to acquire all outstanding shares of Vixel
Corporation (Vixel). On November 17, 2003, we completed our acquisition of Vixel. We acquired Vixel, a leading
supplier of embedded switch ASICs and subsystems for the storage networking market, to expand our Fibre Channel
product line and paid approximately $298.4 million in cash for all ousstanding common stock, preferred stock, and
warrants of Vixel. We also incurred acquisition related expenses of approximately $6.7 million in cash. In addition,
we assumed Vixel’s stock options outstanding by issuing approximately 2.2 million of our stock options with a fair
value of approximately $47.5 million and kept the original vesting periods for a total acquisition value of
$352.7 million. We calculated the fair value of the approximately 2.2 million stock options issued at the date of
acquisition using the Black-Scholes-Merton options pricing model.

Since the completion of the acquisitions, the operations of Sierra Logic, Aarohi, and Vixel, have been integrated
into our operations and are included within our one operating segment, networking products.
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Convertible Subordinated Notes Offering

In fiscal 2004, we completed an approximately $517.5 million private placement of 0.25% contingently
convertible subordinated notes due 2023 (Notes). Interest was payable in cash on June 15th and December 15th of
each year beginning June 15, 2004. Under the terms of the offering, the Notes could be convertible into shares of
Emulex common stock at a price of $43.20) per share at the option of the holder upon the occurrence of certain
events.

The Notes provided for a scheduled maturity date 20 years following issuance and were not callable for the first
five years. Holders of the Notes had rights to require us to purchase the Notes for cash by giving written notice
within the 20 business days prior to each of December 15, 2006, December 15, 2008, December 15, 2013, or
December 15, 2018 or upon a change in control.

On November 15, 2006, we announced the commencement of the put option period for holders of our Notes to
surrender the Notes for purchase. Each holder of the Notes had the right to require us to purchase all or any part of
such holder’s Notes at a price equal to $1,000 per $1,000 of principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest,
including additional interest, if any, to, but excluding, the date of purchase. At the end of the put option period on
December 15, 2006, all such Notes were surrendered and we paid approximately $236.0 million to retire these
Notes. No gain or loss occurred as a result of the retirement of these Notes. Thus, as of July 1, 2007, there were no
Notes outstanding.

Results of Operations for Emulex Corporation and Subsidiaries

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the selected consolidated financial data
set forth in Item 6 — “Selected Consolidated Financial Data,” and our Consolidated Financial Statements and notes
thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All references to years refer to our fiscal years
ended July 1, 2007, July 2, 2006 and July 3, 2005, as applicable, unless the calendar year is specified. The following
table sets forth certain financial data for the years indicated as a percentage of net revenues.

Percentage of Net Revenues
2007 2006 2008

Net revenues:

Host Server ProdUCES ...ttt et eee e eaeeennean 76.0% 84.5% 85.2%
Embedded Storage Products ... e e asane e e 229 14.7 13.1
Intelligent Network Products ... eenenins 0.8 — —
L0 11 1T OO U VTSRO 0.3 0.8 1.7
TOLE] NEL TEVEINUES ...ttt ettt e ee e se et e e e see e emee e 100.0 100.0 100.0
COSE OF SAIES. ...ttt et ene et e e e e aeenneees 41.6 40.7 41.1
GTOSS PIOTTL. .ottt ee e ae e et et et e e e eaeemsesesneseannates 58.4 59.3 58.9
Operating expenses:
Engineering and development ...........ccivvieiesieiscei et ee e e 25.0 222 21.3
Selling and MArKETUIZ .......c.coiiiii ettt et a ettt ee e e e sesnseeas 10.2 9.0 87
General and admMiNISITAtIVE........oiiiiiieeeeee e ce ettty re et r s 6.7 59 3.1
Amortization of other intangible AsSets ... 26 2.7 3.0
Impairment of other INtANGIDIE ASSELS ...ocooeeieir e 04 — —
Impairment of 200AWIll.........ccoiiiiiiiin s sn e — — 03
In-process research and development...........ovoveririecncc e s 4.1 4.3 —
Total OPErating BXPENSES .......ciiiiiiiiien ettt ettt e eee e e ene et e e e ese e ee st eeessnesens 49.0 44.1 364
OPErating iNCOIME ......covreerrireeee it ie ettt et st eseteeeese e sese s eseseas st esnseenenesesessasasnes 94 15.2 22.5
Nonoperating income, net:
TNEETESE IMCOINE ... ecesteern e e bbb s s sae s s s n e se s e assbeasabebers e 43 5.2 35
IEEIESE EXPEISE woeiiiieeieee ettt erire s sr b et e e sseessesr e s e ssssbesaesbeeneasbesassresneans (0.3) (0.6) (1.1
Gain on repurchase of convertible subordinated DOtES.....coeervvirirircereiiieeereee — — 5.5
Other (EXPENSE) INCOIME, DL .....\.ivvieviieieeieeier et ere st este st estsstssse st ete st abeessesessasstssnsaseon {0.8) — (0.6)
Total NONOPErating ICOME, NEL......cooioreirrrristrie st re s eeesesas 32 4.6 7.3
[ncome before INCOME LAXES .........cccivieerirrrrnrnisisisesr sttt sb et b b rabans 12.6 19.8 2938
INCOME 12X PrOVISION Leovviiiiiiiei e st eseeis sttt st s sa s st s ss s st ets et et et s es bbb s eneeeesnsenraee 6.3 9.8 10.7
NEEINCOME. ...ttt b bt em e a et e sesnesesasene e aneen 6,3% _10.0% _19.1%
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Fiscal 2007 versus Fiscal 2006

Net Revenues. Net revenues for fiscal 2007 increased approximately $67.4 million, or 17%, to approximately
$470.2 million, compared to approximately $402.8 million in fiscal 2005,

Net Revenues by Product Line

From a product line perspective, net revenues generated from our HSPs for fiscal years 2007 and 2006
represented the majority of our net revenues. Our net revenues by product line were as follows:

Percentage of Percentage of Increase/ Percentage
2007 Net Revenues __ 2006 Net Revenues _(Decrease) Change
(Dollars in thousands)

Host Server Products ......cococeeirienicninnnnns $ 357,279 76% $ 340,566 84% $ 16,713 5%
Embedded Storage Products.................... 107,578 23 59,203 15 48,375 82%
Intelligent Network Products............c...... 3,507 l 29 — 3,878 nmf
OHET et 1,423 — _ 3015 1 (1.592)  _(53%%
Total Det FeVENUES.........covvrvivccerrrennasereenns 8§ 470,187 100% 3§ 402813 100% § 67374 _)7%

Not meaningful (nmf).

HSP mainly consists of our standard HBAs, custom form factor mez:zanine cards for blade servers, and ASICs
used in server applications. The increase in our HSP net revenues for fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was
mainly due to an increase in units shipped of approximately 19% partia'ly offset by a decrease in average selling
price (ASP) of approximately 12%.

ESP mainly consists of our SATA bridges and routers, Fibre Channel embedded switches, and single and multi
protocol embedded controlier products for enterprise class storage systems. The significant increase in our ESP net
revenues for fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was mainly due to an increase in units shipped of approximately
235%, which included the growth in units shipped resulting from our acquisition of Sierra Logic in October 2006,
partially offset by a decrease in ASP of approximately 46%,

INP mainly consists of multi protocol intelligent storage virtualization platforms that can be deployed as 10Cs,
mezzanine cards, or appliances, and contract engineering. These products expand the reach of Fibre Channel SANs
beyond the data center with solutions designed to take advantage of currently deployed one Gb/s Ethernet networks,
and products currently under development will incorporate 10 Gb/s Ethernet. Our Other category mainly consists of
legacy and other products.

Net Revenues by Major Customers

In addition to direct sales, some of our larger OEM customers purchased or marketed products indirectly through
distributors, resellers or other third parties. If these indirect sales ar¢ purchases of customer-specific models, we are
able to track these sales. However, if these indirect sales are purchases of our standard models, we are not able to
distinguish them by OEM customer. Customers whose direct net reven.es, or total direct and indirect net revenues
(including customer-specific models purchased or marketed indirectly through distributors, resellers and other third
parties), exceeded 10% of our net revenues were as follows:

Total Direct

Direct and Indirect
Revenues Revenues(2)
2007 2006 2007 2006
Net revenue percentage(1)
EMO et — — 18% 23%
Hewlett-Packard ..........ocoveeremereeirvimmecmneennrnee e nr e s sasnn 13% 10% 13% 10%
EBM .ottt e e 22% 29% 25% 29%
1Y {30, T OO U OO SO O RN 17% 21% — —
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(1) Amounts less than 10% are not presented.

(2) Customer-specific models purchased or marketed indirectly through distributors, resellers, and other third
parties are included with the OEM’s revenues in these columns rather than as revenue for the distributors,
resellers or other third parties.

Direct sales to our top five customers accounted for approximately 64% and 69% of total net revenues for fiscal
years 2007 and 2006, respectively, and we expect to be similarly concentrated in the future. Our net revenues from
our customers can be significantly impacted by changes to our customers’ business and their business models.

Net Revenues by Sales Channel

From a sales channel perspective, net revenues generated from OEM customers were approximately 71% of net
revenues and sales through distribution were approximately 29% in fiscal 2007 compared to net revenues from
OEM customers of approximately 64% and sales through distribution of approximately 36% in fiscal 2006. The
increase in OEM net revenues was mainly due to the increase in ESP net revenues. Net revenues by sales channel
were as fotlows:

Percentage of Percentage of  Increase/  Percentage
2007 Net Revenues 2006 Net Revenues _ (Decrease) Change
(Dollars in thousands)

OEM ..ot ea et resneon $ 335,562 T1% § 257,531 64% § 78,031 30%
DIStriDUtION ..o 134,322 29% 145,071 36% {10,749) {M%
10 111! U 303 — 211 e 92 44%
Total net revenues.........ooeceererrerernrena. 5 470,187 ° 100% §_402.8]13 100% § 67374 17%

We believe that our net revenues are being generated primarily as a result of product certifications and
qualifications with our OEM customers, which take products directly and indirectly through distribution and
contract manufacturers. We view product certifications and qualifications as an important indicator of future revenue
opportunities and growth for the Company. However, product certifications and qualifications do not necessarily
ensure continued market acceptance of our products by our OEM customers. It is also very difficult to determine the
future impact, if any, of product certifications and qualifications on our revenues.

Net Revenues by Geographic Territory

In fiscal 2007, domestic net revenues decreased slightly by approximately $0.9 million, or 0%, and international
net revenues increased by approximately $68.3 million, or 37%, compared to fiscal 2006. Our net domestic and
international revenues based on billed to location were as follows:

Percentage of Percentage of Increase/ Percentage
2007 Net Revenues 2006 Net Revenues _(Decrease) _ Change
(Dollars in thousands)

United States........ccoevecevceccvniviiveeee. 3 218,996 47% $ 219911 55% § (915 —

Pacific RiM ..o 80,637 17% 52811 13% 27,826 53%
Europe and rest of the world.................... 170,554 _36% 130,091 _32% 40,463 31%
Total net revenues.........occcceeovniiinericnneees 3 470,187 100% § 402,813 100% § 67,374 1%

We believe the net increase in net revenues in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was mainly a function of the
overall size of the market for storage networking products. The slight decline in net revenues domestically and the
increase in the Pacific Rim and Europe and rest of the world net revenues were mainly due to a change in the bill to
location for one of our key embedded customers in the prior year which has a full year effect in the current year
combined with the significant increase in our ESP net revenues which are mainly derived internationally in the
current fiscal year. However, as we sell to OEMs and distributors who ultimately resell our products to their
customers, the geographic mix of our net revenues may not be reflective of the geographic mix of end user demand
or installations,
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Gross Profit. Cost of sales includes the cost of production of finished products, amortization expense related to
core technology and developed technology intangible assets as well as support costs and other expenses related to
inventory management, manufacturing quality, and order fulfillment. Approximately $25.8 million and
$14.7 million of amortization of technology intangible assets were included in cost of sales in fiscal years 2007 and
2006, respectively. Approximately $1.1 million and $0.8 million of share-based compensation expense were
included in cost of sales in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively. Approximately $2.0 million related to the mark
up to fair value on inventory acquired in the Sierra Logic acquisition and subsequently sold, as required by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” were included in cost of
sales in fiscal 2007. Gross margin decreased slightly to approximately 58% in fiscal 2007 compared to
approximately 59% in fiscal 2006 due to the items above. We anticipat: gross margin will trend down over time as
lower gross margin but higher volume products such as mezzanine cards for blade servers and embedded storage
products become a bigger portion of our business.

Engineering and Development. Engineering and development expenses consisted primarily of salaries and
related expenses for personnel engaged in the design, development, and technical support of our products. These
expenses inctuded third party fees paid to consultants, prototype development expenses, and computer service costs
related to supporting computer tools used in the engineering and design process. Engineering and development
expenses increased approximately $28.2 million, or 31%, to approximztely $117.8 millien in fiscal 2007 compared
to approximately $89.7 million in fiscal 2006. This represents approxiriately 25% and 22% of net revenues in fiscal
years 2007 and 2006, respectively. Approximately $12.9 million and $7.2 million of share-based compensation
expense were included in engineering and development costs in fiscal vears 2007 and 2006, respectively. We
continue our growth and diversification strategies by investing significantly in new product development within the
context of our three highly synergistic and focused product lines. Engineering and development headcount increased
to 446 at the end of fiscal 2007 compared to 369 at the end of fiscal 2006. This expanded headcount resulted in an
increase of approximately $16.4 million in salary and related expenses. We also invested approximately $7.7 million
in new product development in fiscal 2007 compared to approximately $5.1 million in fiscal 2006. We will continue
to invest in engineering and development activities and anticipate gros; dollar expenditures will continue to grow in
this area.

Selling and Marketing. Selling and marketing expenses consisted primarily of salaries, commissions, and related
expenses for personnel engaged in the marketing and sales of our products, as well as trade shows, product
tliterature, promotional support costs, and other advertising related cosis. Selling and marketing expenses increased
approximately $11.7 million, or 32%, to approximately $47.9 million in fiscal 2007 compared to approximately
$36.2 million in fiscal 2006. This represents approximately 10% and 9% of net revenues in fiscal years 2007 and
2006, respectively. Approximately $5.6 miltion and $3.7 million of share-based compensation expense were
included in selling and marketing costs in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. As we have expanded our worldwide
distribution efforts in connection with our growth initiatives, selling and marketing headcount increased to 127 at the
end of fiscal 2007 compared to 100 at the end of fiscal 2006. This resclted in an increase of approximately
$6.2 million in salary and related expenses. The remaining incremental increase in selling and marketing expenses
during fiscal 2007 was mainly related to travel, advertising, and trade shows expense in order to strengthen existing
and develop emerging OEM relationships and leveraging wortdwide distribution channels to complement our core
OEM relationships. We will continue to target advertising, market promotions, and heighten brand awareness of our
new and existing products in an effort to provide overall revenue growth and thus, the expectation that future selling
and marketing expenditures will grow in absolute dollars.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses consisted primarily of salaries and related
expenses for executives, financial accounting support, human resources, administrative services, professional fees,
and other corporate expenses. General and administrative expenses increased approximately $7.7 million, or 33%, to
approximately $31.4 million in fiscal 2007 compared to approximately $23.7 million in fiscal 2006. This represents
approximately 7% and 6% of net revenues in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively. Approximately $8.5 million
and $5.8 million of share-based compensation expense were included in general and administrative costs in fiscal
2007 and 2006, respectively. General and administrative headcount increased to 112 at the end of fiscal 2007
compared to 88 at the end of fiscal 2006. This resuited in an increase of approximately $1.8 million in salary and
related expenses. The remaining incremental increase in general and zdministrative expenses during fiscal 2007 was
mainly related to headcount hiring costs, rent and related costs, and maintenance.
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Amortization of Other Intangible Assets. Amortization of other intangible assets includes the amortization of
intangible assets such as patents, customer relationships, trade names, and covenants not-to-compete with estimable
lives. In fiscal 2007, amortization of other intangible assets related to the October 2006 acquisition of Sierra Logic,
the May 2006 acquisition of Aarohi, and the November 2003 acquisition of Vixel Corporation (Vixel). Amortization
of other intangible assets increased approximately $1.1 million, or 10%, to approximately $12.1 million in fiscal
2007 compared to approximately $10.9 million in fiscal 2006. This represents approximately 3% of net revenues for
both fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006. The increase was due primarily to additional amortization expense from the Sierra
Logic and Aarohi acquisitions due to having a higher average balance of amortizable intangible assets.

Impairment of Other Intangible Assets. Impairment of other intangible assets represents impairment charges
recorded in accordance with SFAS No, 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(SFAS No. 144). During fiscal 2007, we recorded an impairment charge of approximately $2.0 million related to the
customer relationships intangible asset from the Aarohi acquisition. The initial value ascribed to this customer
relationship was based primarily on forecasted revenues from McDATA Corporation (McDATA). Subsequent to
this initial valuation, Brocade Communications Systems, Inc. (Brocade) completed its acquisition of McDATA in
January 2007. Following completion of the acquisition, Brocade informed us of their intent to terminate certain
programs that included our products. We recorded this impairment charge to reduce the carrying value of the
customer relationships intangible asset to the estimated fair value of zero in fiscal 2007.

In-Process Research and Development. 1PR&D expense represents purchased in-process research and
development expense related to acquisitions. We accounted for these acquisitions under the purchase method of
accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, and recorded approximately $21.8 million for purchased [PR&D
expense for the Sierra Logic acquisition during fiscal 2007. This charge was partially offset by purchase price
allocation revisions of approximately $2.6 million related to the Aarohi acquisition. We recorded approximately
$17.3 million for purchased IPR&D expense for the Aarohi acquisition during fiscal 2006. There may be additional
future adjustments to IPR&D related to the Sierra Logic acquisition as the purchase price allocation is being
finalized.

Nonoperating Income, ner. Nonoperating income, net, consisted primarily of interest income, interest expense,
and other non-operating income and expense items. Qur nonoperating income, net, decreased approximately
£3.9 millien, or 21%, to approximately $14.9 millien in fiscal 2007 compared to approximately $18.8 million in
fiscal 2006. We recorded an impairment charge of approximately $5.0 million related to an investment in an early
stage, privately held, company in the storage networking industry in fiscal 2007, The reduction in interest income
was mainly due to lower cash and investment levels resulting from the cash paid for the Aarohi and Sierra Logic
acquisitions, the retirement of the Notes, and the repurchases of our common stock. Additionally, the overall
decrease in nonoperating income, net, was partialty offset by lower interest expense as a result of the retirement of
the Notes in fiscal 2007.

Income taxes. Income taxes decreased approximately $9.8 million, or 25%, to approximately $29.6 million in
fiscal 2007 compared to approximately $39.5 million in fiscal 2006. The effective tax increased slightly to
approximately 50% in fiscal 2007 from approximately 49% in fiscal 2006. The change in the effective tax rate was
mainly due to the nondeductible Sierra Logic IPR&D expense of approximately $21.8 million and the increase in
the valuation allowance that was partially offset by the retroactive extension of the Federal research tax credit during
fiscal 2007, and the resolution of tax audit contingencies in which the statute of limitations on previously open tax
years expired. The research tax credit had previously expired at the end of calendar 2005.
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Fiscal 2006 versus Fiscal 2005

Net Revenues. Net revenues for fiscal 2006 increased approximately $27.2 million, or 7%, to approximately
$402.8 million, compared to approximately $375.7 million in fiscal 2003.

Net Revenues by Product Line

From a product line perspective, net revenues generated from our HSPs for fiscal years 2006 and 2005
represented the majority of our net revenues. Our net revenues by product line were as follows:
Percentage of Percentage of Increase/  Percentage

2006 Net Revenucs 2005 Net Revenues _{Decrease) Change
(Doflars in thousands)

Host Server Products .........c..ooeeevvevivvaennee $ 340,566 84% § 320,171 85% $ 20,395 6%
Embedded Storage Products................... 59,203 15 49,057 13 10,146 21%
Intelligent Network Products................... 29 — — — 29 100%
61111 OOV PIRPOTON 3.015 1 __ 6425 _2 (3410) (53)%
Total Net revenues........ceeeeiveevevvevesrnneres $ 4023813 100% $ 375,653 100% 27,160 __7%

HSP mainly consists of our standard HBAs, custom form factor mez:zanine cards for blade servers, and ASICs
used in server applications. The increase in our HSP net revenues for fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 was
mainly due to an increase in units shipped of approximately 13% partia.ly offset by a decrease in ASP of
approximately 6%.

ESP mainly consists of our SATA bridges and routers, Fibre Channel embedded switches, and single and muiti
protocol embedded controller products for enterprise class storage systems. The increase in our ESP net revenues for
fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 was mainly due to an increase in units shipped of approximately 46% partially
offset by a decrease in ASP of approximately 17%.

INP mainly consists of multi protocol intelligent storage ptatforms that can be deployed as 10Cs, mezzanine
cards, or appliances, and contract engineering. These products expand the reach of Fibre Channel SANs beyond the
data center with solutions designed to take advantage of currently deployed one Gb/s Ethernet networks, and
products currently under development will incorporate 10 Gb/s Ethernct. Our Other category mainly consists of
legacy and other products.

Net Revenues by Major Customers

In addition to direct sales, some of our larger OEM customers purchased or marketed products indirectly through
distributors, resellers or other third parties. If these indirect purchases are purchases of customer-specific models, we
are able to track these sales. However, if these indirect purchases are purchases of our standard models, we are not
able to distinguish them by OEM customer. Customers whose direct net revenues, or total direct and indirect net
revenues (including customer-specific models purchased or marketed indirectly through distributors, resellers and
other third parties), exceeded 10% of our net revenues were as follows'

Total Direct

Direct . and Indirect
Revenuey Revenues(2}
2006 2005 2006 2008

Net revenue percentage( 1)
EMUOC oot — —_ 23% 20%
Hewlett-Packard ........ccoovveriieriiiirierrnnerereessnneireesienens 10% 12% 10% 14%
IBM oottt 29% 31% 29% 31%
511 T2, SO USRS UU R PO PRIPOIO 21% 17% -_ —

(1) Amounts less than 10% are not presented.

(2) Customer-specific models purchased or marketed indirectly through distributors, resellers, and other third
parties are included with the OEM’s revenues in these columns rather than as revenue for the distributors,
resellers or other third parties.
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Direct sales to our top five customers accounted for approximately 69% of total net revenues for fiscal years 2006
and 2005, and we expect to be similarly concentrated in the future. Qur net revenues from our customers can be
significantly impacted by changes to our customers’ business and their business models.

Net Revenues by Sales Channel

From a sales channel perspective, net revenues generated from OEM customers were approximately 64% of net
revenues and sales through distribution were approximately 36% in fiscal 2006 which remained similar to net
revenues from OEM customers of approximately 66% and sales through distribution of approximately 34% in fiscal
2005. Net revenues by sales channel were as foltows:

Percentage of Percentage of Increase/ Percentage
2006 Net Revenues 2005 Net Revenues _{Decrease) Change
(Dollars in thousands)

OEM . $ 257,531 64% § 246,869 66% $ 10,662 4%
DHStribution........ccoecceiiivnnieninicnenens 145,071 36% 128,256 34% 16,815 13%
Other...cc 211 — 528 3Bl (60)%

TOta] el FEVENUES . eerrerreosoos s $ 402813  100% § 375653  100% $ 27160 _T%

We believe that our net revenues are being generated primarily as a result of product certifications and
qualifications with our existing and new OEM customers, which take products directly and indirectly through
distribution and contract manufacturers. We view product certifications and qualifications as an important indicator
of future revenue opportunities and growth for the Company. However, product certifications and qualifications do
not necessarily ensure continued market acceptance of our products by our OEM customers. It is also very difficult
to determine the future impact, if any, on our revenues of product certifications and qualifications.

Net Revenues by Geographic Territory

In fiscal 2006, domestic net revenues increased by approximately $14.3 million, or 7%, and international net
revenues increased by approximately $12.9 million, or 7%, compared to fiscal 2005. Our net domestic and
international revenues based on billed to location were as follows:

Percentage of Percentage of Increase/ Percentage
2006 Net Revenues 2005 Net Revenues _{Decrease) Change
(Dollars in thousands)

United S1ateS.ervienieceiiieeeeee i $ 219911 55% § 205,633 55% $ 14278 1%
Pacific RimM ....ooevveciecerie e e, 52.811 13% 56,550 15% (3,739) (%
Europe and rest of the world.................... 130,091 _32% 113,470 _30% 16,621 15%
Total net revenues........ceeeeeeeeenecveeerernrnnes § 402,813 100% 3 375,653 100% § 27,160 _1%

We betieve the net increase in net revenues in fiscal 2006 compared to fiscal 2005 was mainly a function of the
overall size of the market for storage networking products. The decline in net revenues for the Pacific Rim countries
and an increase in the Europe and rest of the world net revenues wete mainly due to a change in the bill to location
for one of our key embedded customers. However, as we sell to OEMs and distributors who ultimately resell our
products to their customers, the geographic mix of otir net revenues may not be reflective of the geographic mix of
end-user demand or installations,

Gross Profit. Cost of sales included the cost of production of finished products, amortization expense related to
core technology and developed technology intangible assets as well as support costs and other expenses related to
inventory management, manufacturing quality, and order fulfillment. Approximatety $14.7 million and
$14.8 miliion of amortization of technology intangible assets were included in cost of sales in fiscal years 2006 and
2005, respectively. Further, approximately $0.8 million and $0. million of share-based compensation expense were
included in cost of sales in fiscal years 2006 and 2003, respectively. Gross profit increased approximately
$17.7 million, or 8%, to approximately $238.8 million in fiscal 2006 compared to approximately $221.1 million in
fiscal 2005. The increase in gross profit in fiscal 2006 was mainly due to an increase in net revenues. Gross margin
remained flat at approximately 59% in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2003.
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Engineering and Development. Engineering and development expenses consisted primarily of salaries and
related expenses for personnel engaged in the design, development, and technical support of our products. These
expenses included third-party fees paid to consultants, prototype development expenses, and computer service costs
related to supporting computer tools used in the engineering and design process. Engineering and development
expenses increased approximately $9.7 million, or 12%, to approximately $89.7 million in fiscal 2006 compared to
approximately $80.0 million in fiscal 2005. This represents approximately 22% and 21% of net revenues in fiscal
years 2006 and 20085, respectively. The increase was mainly due to an increase in share-based compensation expense
of approximately $7.2 million as a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R at the beginning of fiscal 2006 and a net
increase in engineering headcount and other engineering expenses of approximately $1.7 million as a result of the
acquisition of Aarohi on May 1, 2006.

Selling and Marketing. Selling and marketing expenses consisted primarily of salaries, commissions, and related
expenses for personnel engaged in the marketing and sales of our products, as well as trade shows, product
literature, promotional support costs, and other advertising related costs. Selling and marketing expenses increased
approximately $3.7 million, or 11%, to approximately $36.2 million in fiscal 2006 compared to approximately
$32.4 million in fiscal 2005. This represents approximately 9% of net revenues in fiscal years 2006 and 2005. The
increase was mainly due to an increase in share-based compensation e»pense of approximately $3.7 million as a
result of adopting SFAS No. 123R at the beginning of fiscal 2006.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses consisted primarily of salaries and related
expenses for executives, financial accounting support, human resources, administrative services, professional fees,
and other corporate expenses. General and administrative expenses increased approximately $12.0 million, or 104%,
to approximately $23.7 million in fiscal 2006 compared to approximately $11.6 million in fiscal 2005. This
represents approximately 6% and 3% of net revenues in fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase was
mainly due to an increase in share-based compensation expense recorded of approximately $5.8 million as a result
of adopting SFAS No. 123R at the beginning of fiscal 2006 and reimbursement of approximately $4.6 million
received from our insurance carriers in fiscal 2005 related to the shareholder litigation settled, which reduced fiscal
2005 general and administrative expenses.

Amortization of Other Intangible Assets. Amortization of other intangible assets included the amortization of
intangible assets such as patents, customer relationships, trade name, and covenants not-to-compete with estimable
lives. In fiscal year 2006, amortization was for intangible assets related to the acquisition of Aarohi that was
completed during fiscal 2006 and prior acquisitions. In fiscal year 2003, amortization was for the acquisitions of
Vixel and Giganet that were completed during fiscal years 2004 and 2001, respectively. Amortization of intangibles
decreased approximately $0.4 million, or 3%, to approximately $10.9 million compared to approximately
$11.3 million in fiscai 2005. This represents approximately 3% of net revenues in fiscal years 2006 and 2005. The
decrease was mainly due to tax adjustments resulting from exercising of acquisition related non-qualified stock
options reducing acquisition related intangible assets as the acquisitior-related goodwill had been written oiff in
fiscal 2004.

Impairment of Goodwill. As a result of a SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” analysis,
including a second step goodwill impairment test, goodwill was written off as of June 27, 2004. In connection with
the preparation of Vixel’s tax return during fiscal 2005, we revised estimates and discovered errors related to the
deferred tax assets of Vixel (acquired in fiscal 2004). These events resulted in a revision to Vixel’s purchase price
allocation to decrease net deferred tax assets and increased goodwill, which was impaired in fiscal 2004. This
resulted in an approximately $1.8 million impairment of goodwill charge in fiscal 2005. Additionally, during the
preparation of the fiscal 2005 tax provision, we discovered errors related to the deferred tax liabilities of Giganet
(acquired in fiscal 2001), This resulted in an approximately $0.7 million reduction of the previously recorded
goodwill charge of approximately $1.8 million, resulting in a net goodwill impairment of approximately
$1.1 million for fiscal 2005. We do not believe that this approximately $1.1 million impairment of goodwill is
material to fiscal 2004 or to fiscal 2005 operations or financial results. Excluding this adjustment, net income for
fiscal 2005 would have been approximately $72.7 million.
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In-Process Research and Development. The in-process research and development expense of approximately
£17.3 million recorded in fiscal 2006 was related to our acquisition of Aarohi in May 2006. There was no in-process
research and development expense for fiscal 2005.

Nonoperating Income, net. Nonoperating income, net consisted primarily of interest income, interest expense and
other non-operating income and expense items such as the gain on the repurchase of convertible subordinated notes.
Nonoperating income, net decreased approximately $8.3 million, or 31%, to approximately $18.8 million in fiscal
2006 compared to approximately $27.1 million in fiscal 2003. The net decrease was mainly due to a net gain on the
partial repurchase of our convertible notes of approximately $20.5 million in fiscal 2005, offset by higher interest
income of approximately $8.0 million due to higher interest rates in fiscal 2006, and lower interest expense of
approximately $1.7 miltion in fiscal 2006 as a result of the partial repurchase of our convertible notes,

Income taxes. Income laxes decreased approximately $0.8 million, or 2%, to approximately $39.5 million in
fiscal 2006 from approximately $40.2 million in fiscal 2005. The effective 1ax rate was approximately 49% and 36%
of income before income taxes in fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in the effective tax rate was
mainly due to the nondeductible Aarohi in-process research and development expenses and the increase in
nondeductible share-based compensation expenses in fiscal 2006.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of the financial statements requires estimation and judgment that affect the reported amounts of
net revenues, expenses, assets, and liabilities in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances and which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities. Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are reflective of significant judgments and
uncertainties, and could potentially result in materially different results under different assumptions and conditions.
If these estimates differ significantly from actual results, the impact to the financial statements may be material.

We believe the following are critical accounting policies and require us to make significant judgments and
estimates in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements; revenue recognition; warranty; allowance for
doubtful accounts; intangibles and other long-lived assets; inventories; goodwill; income taxes; and stock-based
compensation.

Revenue Recognition. We generally recognize revenue at the time of shipment when title and risk of loss have
passed, evidence of an arrangement has been obtained, pricing is fixed or determinable, and collectibility has been
reasonably assured (Basic Revenue Recognition Criteria). We make certain sales through two tier distribution
channels and have various distribution agreements with selected distributors and Master Value Added Resellers
(collectively, the Distributors). These distribution agreements may be terminated upon written notice by either party.
Additicnally, these Distributors are generally given privileges to return a portion of inventory and to participate in
price protection and cooperative marketing programs. Therefore, we recognize revenue on our standard products
sold to our Distributors based on data received from the Distributors and management’s estimates to approximate
the point that these products have been resold by the Distributors, OEM-specific models sold to our Distributors are
governed under the related OEM agreements rather than under these distribution agreements. We recognize revenue
at the time of shipment for OEM specific products shipped to the Distributors when the Basic Revenue Recognition
Criteria have been met. Additionally, we maintain accruals and allowances for price protection and various other
marketing programs. Moreover, we account for these incentive programs in accordance with Emerging Issues Task
Force (EITF) Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a
Reseller of the Vendor’s Products).” Accordingly, we classify the costs of these programs based on the benefit
received, if applicable, as either a reduction of revenue, a cost of sale, or an operating expense.

Warranty. We provide a warranty of between one and five years on our products. We record a provision for
estimated warranty related costs at the time of sale based on historical product return rates and management’s
estimates of expected future costs to fulfill our warranty obligations. We evaluate our ongoing warranty obligation
on a quarterty basis.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon historical write-
offs as a percentage of net revenues and management’s review of outstanding accounts receivable. Amounts due
from customers are charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts when management believes that
collectibility of the amount is unlikely. Although we have not historically experienced significant losses on accounts
receivable, our accounts receivable are concentrated with a small numbszr of customers. Consequently, any write-off
associated with one of these customers could have a significant impact on our allowance for doubtful accounts and
results of operations.

Intangibles and Other Long-Lived Assets. Intangible assets resulting, from the acquisitions of Sierra Logic,
Aarohi, and Vixel are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment charges, if any. For assets with
determinable useful lives, amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated economic lives
of the respective intangible assets, ranging from three months to seven years. Furthermore, periodically we assess
whether our long-lived assets including intangible assets, should be tesied for recoverability whenever events or
circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. The amount of impairment, if any, is
measured based on fair value, which is determined using projected discounted future operating cash flows. Assets to
be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less selling costs.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost on a first-in, first-out basis or market. We use a standard
cost system for purposes of determining cost. The standards are adjusted periodically to represent actual cost. We
regularly compare forecasted demand and the composition of the forecist against inventory on hand and open
purchase commitments in an effort to ensure the carrying value of inventory does not exceed net realizable value.
Accordingly, we may have to record reductions to the carrying value of excess and obsolete inventory if forecasted
demand decreases.

Goodwill. We account for goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill not be amortized but instead be tested at least annually for impairment, or
more frequently when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired. Management
considers our business as a whole to be its reporting unit for purposes of testing for impairment. This impairment
test is performed annually during the fiscal fourth quarter.

A two-step test is used to identify the potential impairment and to measure the amount of goodwill impairment, if
any. The first step is to compare the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If
the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill is considered not impaired; otherwise,
goodwill is impaired and the loss is measured by performing step two. Under step two, the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwilt.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which we recognize
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and for net
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. We regularly review historical and anticipated future pre-tax results of
operations to determine whether we will be able to realize the benefit of our deferred tax assets. A valuation
allowance is required to reduce the potential deferred tax asset when it is more likely than not that all or some
portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized due to the lack of sufficient taxable income. As of July 1, 2007,
we have a valuation allowance of approximately $2.6 million established against capital loss carryforwards. We
establish reserves for tax contingencies that are not probable of being sustained if examined by the taxing
authorities.

Stock-Based Compensation. We account for our stock-based awards to employees and non-employees using the
fair value method as required by Financial Accounting Standards Boacd’s (FASB) Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment.” Wz used the modified prospective transition
method when we adopted SFAS 123R in the prior year which provides for only the current and future period stock-
based awards to be measured and recognized at fair value. SFAS No. 123R establishes standards for the accounting
for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. It also addresses
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transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value of
the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those equity instruments. Accordingly,
stock-based compensation cost is measured at grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as
expense over the requisite service period. The measurement of stock-based compensation cost is based on several
criteria including, but not limited to, the valuation model used and associated input factors such as expected term of
the award, stock price volatility, dividend rate, risk free interest rate, and award forfeiture rate. The input factors to
use in the valuation model are based on subjective future expectations combined with management judgment. 1f
there is a difference between the forfeiture assumptions used in determining stock-based compensation costs and the
actual forfeitures, which become known over time, we may change the input factors used in determining stock-based
compensation costs. These changes may materially impact our results of operations in the period such changes are
made. Please see Note 11 in the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere
herein for additional information and related disclosures.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At July 1, 2007, we had approximately $328.7 million in working capital and approximately $271.3 million in
cash and cash equivalents and current investments and approximately $24.3 million of restricted cash placed in
escrow which is included in other assets. At July 2, 2006, we had approximatety $405.0 million in working capital
and approximately $598.4 million in cash and cash equivalents, current investments, and long-term investments. The
decrease in working capital, cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, and current investments was mainly due to
the completion of the Sierra Logic acquisition in October 2006 in the aggregate of approximately $158.5 million, the
extinguishment of the 0.25% convertible subordinated notes in December 2006 of approximately $236.0 million,
and the repurchase of our common stock for an aggregate price of approximately $70.1 million partially offset by
cash generated from continuing operations. We have primarily funded our cash needs from operating activities, As
part of our commitment to the growth and diversification of storage networking infrastructure solutions, we
currently plan to continue our strategic investment in research and development, sales and marketing, capital
equipment and facilities. [n addition, in December 2006, we announced that our Board of Directors had authorized
the repurchase of up to $150 million of our outstanding common stock over the next two years. As of July 1, 2007,
we have approximately $79.9 million still available under this program that may be utilized. We may also consider
future acquisitions in order to achieve our goals.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalent balances, investments, and anticipaied cash flows from
operating activities will be sufficient to support our working capital needs, capital expenditure requirements, and our
growth and diversification strategy for at the least the next 12 months. We currently do not have any outstanding
lines of credit or other borrowings.

Cash provided by operating activities during fiscal 2007 was approximately $129.9 million compared to fiscal
2006 of approximately $110.7 million. The net cash increase provided by operating activities was primarily a result
of higher accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and other liabilities of approximately $2.1 million, partially offset by
higher accounts and other receivables of approximately $3.6 million and an increase of inventories of approximately
$2.3 million.

Investing activities used approximately $4.7 million of cash during fiscal 2007 compared to cash used of
approximately $23.9 million during fiscal 2006, The decrease of cash used in investing activities was mainly due to
timing of maturities of investments, net, of approximately $171.9 million which was not reinvested, partially offset
by the acquisition of Sierra Logic for approximately $134.2 million. In connection with this acquisition in October
2006, we were required to pay approximately $24.3 million into escrow and upen resolution of the required terms of
the escrow agreement, the funds will be released from the escrow account to the former shareholders of Sierra Logic
or used for the payment of indemnification claims, if any, under the terms of the acquisition.

Cash used in financing activities during fiscal 2007 was approximately $280.5 million compared to cash provided
during fiscal 2006 of approximately $17.1 million. The current fiscal year usage of cash was primarily due to the
extinguishment of the 0.25% convertible subordinated notes in December 2006 of approximately $236.0 million and
the purchase of treasury stock of approximately $70.1 million.
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We have disclosed outstanding legal proceedings in Item 3 and in Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements, both included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Currently, we believe the final resolution of
outstanding litigation will not have a material adverse effect on our liquidity or capital resources.

The following summarizes our contractual obligations as of July 1, 2007, and the effect such obligations are
expected to have on our liquidity in future periods:

Payments Due by Period

Total 2008 009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter
(In thousands)
Leases(1)..oveereieeeeereeercesn s ssesee s nensrenae $ 18682 % 3,293 % 40158 3,947 $ 4,020 § 2,356 § 1,051
Purchase COMMIMENTS ...........ocoovvvvirrcererninns 25,395 23,790 1,605 — — — —
Other COMMUIMENES ..........oooiiiviiiienrierrreeeaas 3,379 3.266 39 39 32 3 —
0] 7| OO UUUU VO UOUOUPPPOOPI $ 47456 $ 30,349 §_ 5659 5 3986 § 4,052 § 2,359 § 1,051

(1) Lease payments inctude common area maintenance (CAM) charges.

Item 7A. Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

As of July 1, 2007, our investment portfolio consisted primarily of fixed income securities, excluding those
classified as cash and cash equivalents, of approximately $202.3 millicn (see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements). We have the positive intent and ability to hold these securities to maturity. Currently, the carrying
amount of these securities approximates fair market value. However, the fair market value of these securities is
subject to interest rate risk and would decline in value if market interest rates increased. I market interest rates were
to increase immediately and uniformly by 10% from the levels existing as of July 1, 2007, the decline in the fair
value of the portfolio would not be material to our financial position, rzsults of operations and cash flows. However,
if interest rates decreased and securities within our portfolio matured and were re-invested in securities with lower
interest rates, interest income would decrease in the future.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dara.

The information required by this Item is included herein as part of Part [V — Item 15(a) Financial Statements and
Schedules of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures to enstre that information we are required to disclose
in reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act) is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules
and forms. Our management evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under
Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act, and to ensure tkat information required to be disclosed is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our pr ncipal executive and financial officers, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive
Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as
of July 1, 2007.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial
reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qur management evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting using the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in fnrernal Control — Integrated
Framework. Based on our evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of July 1, 2007.

The independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated financial statements included in
this annual report has issued an audit report on management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. See page 47 herein.

Changes in Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated

under the Exchange Act, that occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 that has materially affected, or is

reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None,
PART 1II

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Gevernance.

There is incorporated herein by reference the information required by this Item in the Company’s definitive proxy
statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission no later than 120 days after the close of the year ended July 1, 2007. See Part I, Item | — “Exccutive
Officers of the Registrant” for information regarding the executive and certain other officers of the Company or its
principal operating subsidiaries.

We have adopted the Emulex Corporation Business Ethics and Confidentiality Policy (the Code of Ethics), a code
of ethics that applies to all of our directors and officers, including our Chief Executive Officer and President, Chief
Financial Officer, Corporate Controller, and other finance organization employees. This Code of Ethics is publicly
available on our website at www.emulex.com. If we make any substantive amendments to the Code of Ethics or
grant any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the Code of Ethics to our Chief Executive
Officer and President, Chief Financial Officer or Corporate Controller, we will disclose the nature of such
amendment or waiver on that website or in a report on Form 8-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

There is incorporated herein by reference the information required by this Item in our definitive proxy statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders that will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no
later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended July 1, 2007.
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item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

There is incorporated hercin by reference the information required by this Item in our definitive proxy statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders that will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no
later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended July 1, 2007.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation F'lans

The following table gives information about our common stock thzt may be issued upon the exercise of options,
warrants and rights under all of our equity compensation plans as of July 1, 2007. '

Number of Securities
Remaining Available

Number of Securitics for Future Issuance
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Qutstanding Options, Qutstanding Options,  (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Righis _Warrants and Rights _Related in Column (a})
(a) (b) (<)
Equity compensations plans approved by
security holders(1) v 12,449,370 § 2265 2,959,409(4)
Employee stock purchase plan approved by
security holders(2) ... — — 777,219
Equity compensations plans not approved by
security holders(3) ... 1,063,279 $ 10.13 325,748
TN oo eeeeeeeememssesssssss s 13,512,649 $ 21.66 4,062,376

(1) Consists of the Emulex Corporation Employee Stock Option Plan, the Emulex Corporation 2005 Equity
Incentive Plan, the Emulex Corporation 2004 Employee Stock Incentive Plan, and the Emulex Corporation
1997 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors.

(2) The Emulex Employee Stock Purchase Plan enables employees to purchase our common stock ata 15%
discount to the lower of market value at the beginning or end of each six month offering period. As such, the
number of shares that may be issued during a given six month period and the purchase price of such shares
cannot be determined in advance. See Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3} Consists of the Sierra Logic, Inc. (Sierra Logic) 2001 Stock Option Plan, Aarohi Communications Inc.
(Aarohi) 2001 Stock Option Plan, the Vixel Corporation (Vixel) 2000 Non-Officer Equity Incentive Plan, the
Vixel Corporation 1999 Equity Incentive Plan, the Vixel Corporation Amended and Restated 1995 Stock
Option Plan, and the Giganet, Inc. (Giganet) 1995 Stock Option Plan. Options issued under these plans were
converted into options to purchase Emulex Corporation commen stock as a result of the acquisitions of Sierra
Logic, Aarchi, Vixel, and Giganet.

(4) Includes net restricted stock granted of 1,314,776 shares that are not deemed issued for accounting purposes
until vested.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

There is incorporated herein by reference the information required by this Item in our definitive proxy statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders that will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no
later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended July 1, 2007.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

There is incorporated herein by reference the information required by this Item in our definitive proxy statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders that will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no
later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended July 1, 2007.




PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Financial Statements and Schedules
1. Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and
Schedule are filed as part of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedule

The financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying Index to Consohdated Financial Statements and
Schedule is filed as part of this report.

3. Exhibits
See Item 15(b) below.
(b) Exhibits

See Exhibit Index attached to this report and incorporated herein by this reference.
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EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

ANNUAL REPORT — FORM 10-K
Items 8, 15(a)(1) and 15(a)(2)
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule
July 1, 2007, July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2005
(With Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Thereon)

Page Number

Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ...t 47
Consolidated Balance Sheets — July 1, 2007, and July 2, 2006 ..o 49
Consolidated Statements of Income — Years ended July 1, 2007, July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2005............ 50
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (L.oss) — Years ended

July 1, 2007, July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2005.. 51
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Years ended July 1, 2007, July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2005..... 52
Notes to Consolidated Financial StAtemMEntS. ... ooriiiiicceeirienns ettt 53
Schedule
Schedule 11 — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and ReSErves ... 78

All other schedules are omitted because the required information s not applicable or the information is presented
in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Emulex Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Emulex Corporation and subsidiaries as of
July 1, 2007 and July 2, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders” equity and
comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 1, 2007. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement
schedule of valuation and qualifying accounts and reserves. These consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of 1the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Emulex Corporation and subsidiaries as of July 1, 2007 and July 2, 2006, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 1, 2007, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, during the year ended July 2, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Emulex Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of July 1,
2007, based on criteria established in fnternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated August 23, 2007, expressed
an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over
financial reporting.

/st KPMG LLP

Costa Mesa, California
August 23, 2007

47




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Emulex Corporation:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9(A), that Emulex Corporation maintained effective internal controt over
financial reporting as of July 1, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Emulex Corporation’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating efiectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstar.ces. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A zompany’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Emulex Corporation maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of July 1, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Emulex Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of July 1, 2007, based on criteria established in /nrernal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

(COS0).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Emule; Corporation and subsidiaries as of July 1, 2007 and
July 2, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income
(loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 1, 2007, and our report dated
August 23, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Costa Mesa, California
August 23, 2007
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EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
July 1, 2007 and July 2, 2006

2007 2006
{In thousands,
except share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVALENLS ........cccouooiiiieceiece et s e esasesesasmrrn b 69,036 § 224,292
TVESUMIENLS ...ttt ceer e st e e eeeesasbar e s e e eeeeeatb e s et mesaasssaeesbssb s smmanesesatssnssabbnssemeeansn 202,288 367,054
Accounts and other receivables, niet of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,902 and
$1,908 in 2007 and 2006, reSPECtIVELY ........cirerrieeeecccearaiannarerere e asasaeses e seasasnsssnes 67,529 61,362
IIVENEOTIES ....oveeveieeeeeecitr i s eee e et s s s teeeseemmeveesrbeeeenasseeeerrnesss resmmeennnrensnsagneeesmeeenansnsrsarate 28,973 22414
Prepaid EXPENISES. .. ccovereireriicrerenrsrerarersescsssserssrensnessssesrsserersasasenseseraresssseasensasonrarasssnencons 4,114 4,618
DeferTed IMCOME LAXES .o.viiteiiieeieecreirtecee e e seeseeteeeeerese s e s e tbaseesasasaterstesseeseeeserasesaesssss saes 27,114 27.814
TOUAL CUITEIIL ASSELS «..vevvevriireieeeeeereririerisseeererinrssatssseesnsesnessnssssesesesesssssnrressesssessnesnneranesees 399,054 707,554
Property and eqUIPIMENL, NEL......ccvvvrveicieeneree e s ssesaeesarasasnsssseseeseseresesannsanses 64,294 66,951
LoDl 1 0T o O O P PO OO —_ 7,103
GOOAWIL et snese e s be e eb s s b e et e et e e b b e sarernsertserbearaanEaan 62,347 —
Intangible @sSets, NBL..........ccooiiririeieni ettt ase st et r s e e 108,342 77,765
DEfRITEd INCOME LAXES c1viviireieiccrirtaieiiseire i rssbesrs st saar s asstasesssssesantrrassessssbesserbesbsbrsresrnassann _ 352
L0 T SO T 25251 432

TOLAL A SSEES (oevvvrriereseveeereerarrreseeeecerarstatetsraeeressetabasneseaserernbssansensasenrasetssssnsasassnresssssnsasssnsees $ 659,288 3 860,157

Current liabilities:

AcCOUNLS PAYABIE . .....ovciiiiiiie ittt 3 19761 $ 17,847
ACCIUB HHADIIIHES .....oceeeeeerritis et sis et re s st e v er st aee e aeemv st et sreenee s emnereennereees 29,483 21,910
Income taxes PAaYabe..........ccooviimiiiiii e e 21,096 27,630
Convertible SUDOIAINALEA NOLES .vvvveeeeeeeeiieeie e ete e e eeeravecaee e e e esme e sasessmseesnseans — 235,177

Total curTent HADIHEIES ... oo ittt vte e eee et tr s st e e e e rg bbb be e e emmeeatts 70,340 302,564
Other HABIIIEIES «......oooeeeeeecce et e et e e tes e e e e s sssasasaenseenseae s et s et s eneesneesnens 802 680
DeferTed IICOME LAKES covveeiceeececve et eere et eseeessessse st e e e srsssteebesenssnnsenedetaseteeaseetesareen 6.239 —

Total liabilities ... 77381 303,244
Commitments and contingen(:ies (Note lO) ....................................................................... — —

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par vaiue; 1,000,000 shares authorized (150,000 shares
designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock); none issued and

outstanding.... —_— —-—
Common stock $O ]0 par va]ue 240 000 000 shares authorized 86 906 540 and

84,455,809 1ssued at July I, 2007 and July 2, 2006, respectively.......ccoovvirvvcircrcarnns 8,691 8,446
Additional paid-in CAPHAL ...t r et reeara st e e e sna b s 1,045,221 979,893
Accumulated deficit... (401,982) (431416)
Accumulated other comprehenswe income (loss) ............................................................ 64 (10)
Treasury stock, at cost; 3,589,278 shares at July 1, 2007 ..o (70,087) —
Total stockholders” eqUILY.........cccovviiiiicieeen e et et an 581,907 556,913
Total Liabilities and Stockholders” EQUILY .......ceervieirirrceneiiecer e $ 659288 §._ 860,157

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended July Ik, 2007, July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2005

NEE TEVRIIUES - oottt s sttt e pe e s e arnnes Seebeesseabssases
COSE OF SALES...cuiiiiirieece ettt et
GOS8 PrOfil.c.c ettt b s e
Operating expenses:
Engineering and development ...
Selling and MArKeting ......ccoccovrvvmviciinniii e
General and adminiStrative ... ...eocovevioiemeree e e
Amortization of other intangible assets ...
Impairment of other intangible assets ...
Impairment of goodWill ...
In-process research and development ...
Total OPErating EXPEMSES ..ocococeeveriiiinisisisisisisaat s s sesenenieies
OPETATING INCOIME .. eterereee s s
Nonoperating income, net:
INEEIESE IMCOMIE 1..vvovevriveeseeeeseeereereeeetesteteresre e s rerne e sresr e e srtes s seeseese e esssnsmannmtas
INEETESE EXPEMSE ..viviiierirecienrese e srestster s sm e s se bbb ata e e sasasrerarenre e
Gain on repurchase of convertible subordinated notes.................ci
Other (eXpense) iNCOME, MEL ... e s
Total nonoperating iNCOME, LEL .....cvuvrriiiriniieeeimienesteressninaes srsrsesnnernereses
[ncome before INCOME LAXES ....ovviveieiiriei et e et
INCOME tAX PLOVISION «.eovuiniiiiiicecicie e e
INEE ITICOMIC 1.1 eeeeeeeeeeteieeeeeemiebs st et et et ees e r e s e et e sn b e s s r e nan s b e e b e be e ke ab e eemenans
Net income per share:

2007 2006 2005

(In thousands, except per share data)
$ 470,187 § 402,813 § 375,653
195,579 163.993 154,530

274,608 238,820 221,123

117,833 89,669 79,971
47,870 36,169 32,441
31,416 23,680 11,636
12,082 10,944 11,314

2,001 — —
— -— 1,096
19,225 17,272 —

230,427 177,734 136,458
44,181 61.086 84,665

20,000 21,150 13,106
(L179)  (2,494)  (4,202)
— — 20514
(3.919) 173 (2.273)
14,902 18,829 _ 27,145
59,083 79,915 111,810
29649 39464 40221

$_22,434 § 40451 3 71,580

8 035 % 048 3 0.86
b 034 % 046 3 0.80

84,545 83,920 __ 82819
—89.080 ___91,250 __92,970

Seec accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)
Years ended July 1, 2007, July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2005

Accum-
ulsted Other Total
Commeon Stock Additional Accum- Compre- Deferred Stock-
, Shares Paid-In ulated bensive Com- Treasury holders®
Outstanding  _Amount Capital Deficit Income/{Loss) _ pensation  __ Stock  _ Equity
{In thousands, except share data)

Balance at June 27, 2004 .., 82413845 % 8241 § 936,123 § (543,456) — $ (7,754) — § 393134
Net income —_ — — 71,589 — — — 71,589
Ameortization of deferred compensation........... — — — — — 3,984 — 3,984
Reversal of deferred compcnsatmn due to

employee terminations.......w- — _ {363) — — 363 — —
Exercise of stock options ..o cececececeicnns 530,565 53 4,391 — — o — 4,444
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options ....., — — 1,882 e —_ — — 1,882
Issuance of common stock under employee

stock purchase plan 256,592 26 2,312 — — — = 2,538
Balance at July 3, 2005 .. 83,201,002 8,320 944,545 (471,867) — {3,407) — 477,591
NEt INCOME e resersrersseans — — — 40,451 — — — 40,451
Foreign currency translation adjustment .......... — — — — (10} — — 411]]
Comprehensive INCome ......uimesreemeeecoeeeceaes — - — e — — — 4044
Reclassilication of deferred compensation

upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R.. —_ — (3,407) — — 3407 — —
Share-based compensation expense. — — 21,453 — —_ — — 21,453
Options issued to purchase Aarohi

Communications, Ine., net of securities

registration costs — — 910 — — — — 910
Exercise OF StoCK OpLONS .......o.vurerececeemenmscrrens 1,045,804 105 9,886 — — — —_ 9.991
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options ...... —_ — 3,347 _ — — — 3,347
lssuance of common stock under employee

stock purchase plan 208 21 3,159 — — = — 3180
Balance at July 2, 2006..........cccomreimnicncerceccenas 84,455,809 8,446 979,893 (431,416) (10) — — 556,913
Net income —_ —_ —_ 29,434 —_ — —_ 29,434
Foreign curency translation adjustment .. — — — — 74 — — 74
Comprehensive income ..... — — — — —_— — — 29,508
Share-based compensation expense.. — — 28,057 — — — — 28,057
Options issued to purchase Sierra Logic, Inc.,

net of securities registration costs... — — 7.410 — — — — 1410
Restricted stock vested 101,900 10 (10} — — — — —
Restricted stock withheld for taxes... (25,602) {2} (540) — — — — {542)
Exercise of stock options 2,130,320 213 18,823 —_ —_ —_— —_ 19.036
Tax benefit from exercise of stock eplions ...... - — 7,951 —_ — — — 7,951
Tssuance of common stock under employee

stock purchase plan ..., 244,113 24 1637 — — — — 3,661
Purchase of treasury stock {3,580,278) = (70,087) {7(L.087)
Balance at July 1, 2007 83317262 $_8691 §_1.04522] § ;ggg[,gg_g; 5_6_4 $ - S__(70087) § 581,907

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
July 1, 2007, July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
INEL ITECOTIE 11 vvververesreueresenessstenemetseseesne b sas s enta s s esaeser s st h e sab et b sbasa s ki b
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property and equIPmMENL.......ocvvenerverrnvrereans
Amortization of discount on convertible subordinated notes.....
Gain on repurchase of convertible subordinated notes ...,
Litigation settlements, net of iNSUTANCE TECOVETIES ...ccovurevvieeiisisiiiiis s
Share-based COMPERSALION EXPEIISE ..ververierrirrersrisrersressesisnassiesssssssssiesnsseesnnes
Amortization of other iIntangible BSSELS. ....co.oo v
Impairment of goodWill.........oeriinrrnirires s e e
Impairment of strategic investment and related note receivable ......o.coeeceee
In-process research and development expense.......cciennne s
Loss on disposal of property and equipment.........c..cccimmn,
Deferred iNCOME LAXES cvvvivivirer e reereree et reercemneserrer e e sse b bbb i bbb
Tax benefit from exercise of S10CK OPUONS c..cveervrercrcrr s,
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation ...........coeieiiieeccennnen
Impairment of other intangible assets ...
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts and other receivables.......oiiim i
Inventories .. “
Prepaid expenses and olher assets v
Accounts payable, accrued llabllmes and other llab1lmes .............................
Reimbursement for litigation settlements
Income taxes payable...........cooimiiniinnee
Net cash provided by operating activities ..o
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net proceeds from sale of property and equipment .........coviveveerinrnrinesnienennes
Additions 10 property and eqQUIPMENL.......ccveriiimeimncine s sems s
Net decrease in restricted cash related to construction escrow account ............
Payments for purchase of Sierra Logic, [nc., net of cash acquired ...................
Restricted cash placed in escrow related to Sierra Logic, Inc. acquisition........
Strategic investment in privately-held company ...
Payments for purchase of Aarohi Communications, Inc., net of cash
ACQUITE ....cuverirniirissiirs s rr et rs s rea s s s as b s b e e e e s n bbb nn s
Purchases of INVESIMENIS ..o e e
Maturities of investments
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities.......coocervirenesessnnesnnnnes
Cash flows from financing activities:
Retirement of debt assumed in conjunction with Sierra Logic, Inc.
ACGUISTHON 1.eeeiereeriaras et ea e bbb s e rna e e enes
Retirement of convertible subordinated notes
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under stock plans..........ccvviivnnee
Repurchase of common StOCK ...
Tax withholding payments reimbursed by restricted stock........cccooeveiivnennnnn.
Repurchase of convertible subordinated notes. ...
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation ......
Net cash {used in) provided by financing activities .......
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents...
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents .....
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year..............
Cash and cash equivalents at end of Year.......ninmse e

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2007 2006 2005
{In thousands) '

s 29,434 § 40,45) 71,589
17,654 16,346 14,932
823 1,795 2,827

— _— (20,514)

— — (4,649)
28,030 21,318 3,984
37,887 25,691 26,162
— — 1,096
4,975 — 2,265
19,225 17,272 —
148 50 86
(2,960} (125) 10,168
— — 2,581
(6,309} (3,961} —_
2,175 — —
(3,598) (13,346) 13,225
(2,309) 13,987 (4,431)
325 360 (695)
2,082 (15.357) 7,888
— — 9,052
2811 6,230 15,451
129,893 110,711 151,017
76 98 42

(13,141) (16,644) (16,466)
— — 23
(134,188) — —
{24,316) —_ —
(4.975) —_ —
— (34,816) —

(2,234,859) (2,384,576) (725,929)
2,406,728 2,412,073 786.057
{4,675) (23.865) 43.727
(3,425) —_ —
{236,000) — —
22,697 13,171 6,982
(70,087) — —
(542) — —

— — (273,546)

6.809 3961 —

(280,548) 17.132 (266,564)
74 {3) —

(155,256) 103,975 (71,820)
224292 120,317 192,137

$ 60036 § 224200 § 120317



EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

Emulex Corporation (Emulex or the Company), a Delaware corporation, creates enterprise-class products that
connect storage, servers and networks. Emulex supplies a broad range of storage networking infrastructure solutions,
The Company’s products and technologies leverage flexible multi protocol architectures that extend from deep
within the storage array to the server edge of storage area networks (SANs). Emulex’s storage networking offerings
include host bus adapters (HBAs), mezzanine cards for blade servers, embedded storage bridges, routers, and
switches, storage Input/Output controllers (HOCs), and data center networking solutions. HBAs and mezzanine cards
are the data communication products that enable servers to connect to storage networks by offloading
communication processing tasks as information is delivered and sent to the storage network. Embedded storage
bridges, routers, and switches and OCs are deployed inside storage arrays, tape libraries and other storage
appliances. Emulex’s intelligent data center networking solutions support performance and functionality for high
performance networked virtual storage environments.

Principles af Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Emulex Corporation, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. On Qctober 2, 2006,
the Company acquired Sierra Logic, Inc. (see Note 2).

Basis of Presentation

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday nearest June 30. Fiscal year 2007 was comprised of 52 weeks and
ended on July 1, 2007. Fiscal years 2006 and 2005 were comprised of 52 and 53 weeks, respectively, and ended on
July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2003, respectively. All references to years in these notes to consolidated financial
statements represent fiscal years unless otherwise noted.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to current year’s presentation,
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements, notes, and related disclosures in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make a number of estimates and assumptions
relating to the reported amount of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Estimates are used for, but not limited to, revenue recognition and cost of sales; the useful life and carrying amount
of property and equipment and intangibles; carrying amount of goodwill; deferred taxes and any associated
valuation allowances; allowances for doubtful accounts and product returns; inventory valuation; investment
impairment charges; stock-based compensation; warranty and other accrued liabilities; cost of an acquired entity and
allocation of purchase price. Actual results could differ materially from management’s estimates.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company’s India subsidiary is the local country’s currency. Assets and liabilities
of the India operations are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date, whereas
revenues and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars at the average exchange rate for the reporting period.
Translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and realized transaction
gains and losses are recorded in the results of operations.
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EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Cash Equivalents

The Company classifies highly liquid debt instruments, excluding corporate bonds and commercial paper, with
original maturities of 3 months or less and deposits in money market funds, as cash equivalents. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.

Investments

The Company determines the appropriate balance sheet classification of its investments in debt securities based
on maturity date at the time of purchase and evaluates the classification at each balance sheet date. Debt securities
are classified as held to maturity as the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity.
Held to maturity securities are stated at amortized cost plus accrued interest. The amortized cost of debt securities is
adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity value. Such amortization and accretion
are included in interest income.

From time to time, the Company makes equity investments in noa-publicly traded companies, where the
Company is unable to exercise significant influence over the investee. These investments are accounted for under
the cost method. Under the cost method, investments are carried at cost and are adjusted for other-than-temporary
declines in fair value, distributions of earnings, or additional investraents. The Company monitors its investments
for impairment on a quarterly basis and makes appropriate reductions in carrying values when such impairments are
determined to be other-than-temporary. Impairment charges are included in other (expense) income, net in the
consolidated statements of income. Factors used in determining an impairment include, but are not limited to, the
current business environment including competition and uncertainty of financial condition; going concern
considerations such as the rate at which the investee utilizes cash, and the investee’s ability to obtain additional
financing. As of July 1, 2007, and July 2, 2006, the carrying values of the Company’s equity investments in non-
publicly traded companies were zero. In early fiscal 2007, the Company invested approximately $5.0 million in an
early stage, privately held, company in the storage networking industry, however, the investment was subsequently
impaired at the end of fiscal 2007.

Additionally, in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows” (SFAS No. 95), not al! investments that qualify
as cash equivalents are required to be treated as cash equivalents. Pursuant to the Company’s investment policy, the
Company classifies all corporate bonds and commercial paper with original maturities of 3 months or less as short-
term investments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Amounts collected on accounts
receivable are included in net cash provided by operating activities in the accompanying consolidated statements of
cash flows. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the
inability of the Company’s customers to make requested payments dased upon historical write-offs as a percentage
of net revenues and management’s review of outstanding accounts receivable. Amounts due from customers are
charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts when managerent believes the collectibility of the amount is
unlikely. Although the Company has not experienced significant losses on accounts receivable historically, its
accounts receivable are concentrated with a small number of custoniers. Consequently, any write off associated with
one of these customers could have a significant impact on the Company's allowance for doubtful accounts.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost on a first-in, first-out basis or market. The Company uses a standard
cost systemn for purposes of determining cost. The standards are adjusted periodicaily to approximate actual cost.
The Company regularly compares forecasted demand and the comrosition of the forecast for its products against
inventory on hand and open purchase commitments to ensure the carrying value of inventories does not exceed net
realizable value. Accordingly, the Company may have to record reductions to the carrying value of excess and
obsolete inventories if forecasted demand decreases. Cash flows related to the sale of inventory are included in net
cash provided by operating activitics in the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows.
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EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued)

Property and Equipment

. Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives of 4 to 39 years for buildings, building improvements and land improvements, 2 to 7 years for
proeduction and test equipment, and 2 to 10 years for fumniture and fixtures. Leasehold improvements are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorter of remaining lease term or estimated useful life of the asset.
Depreciation expense related to property and equipment is recorded in cost of sales if it is used directly related to
preparing goods and/or services to be sold. Depreciation expense related to property and equipment used in all other
activities is recorded to operating expense.

Goodwill

The Company account for goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”
(SFAS No. 142). SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill not be amortized but instead be tested at |east annually for
impairment, or more frequently when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired.
Management considers the Company’s business as 2 whole to be its reporting unit for purposes of testing for
impairment. This impairment test is performed annually during the fiscal fourth quarter.

A two-step test is used to identify the potential impairment and 1o measure the amount of goodwill impairment, if
any. The first step is to compare the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill, If
the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill is considered not impaired; otherwise,
goodwiil is impaired and the loss is measured by performing step two. Under step two, the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwill,

During the annuat goodwill impairment test in fiscal 2007, the Company completed step one and determined that
there was no impairment of goodwill since the fair value (based on the income approach and quoted market price) of
the reporting unit exceeded its carrying value.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company applies SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(SFAS No. 144), under which the recoverability of long-lived assets, including property and equipment, is assessed
by determining whether the carrying value of an asset can be recovered through projected undiscounted future
operating cash flows over its remaining life whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the Company
may not be able to recover the asset’s carrying value. The amount of impairment, if any, is measured based on fair
value, which is determined using projected discounted future operating cash flows. Assets to be disposed of are
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less selling costs.

Intangible Assets, Net

Intangibles resulting from the acquisitions are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. For assets with
determinable useful lives, amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated economic lives
of the respective intangible assets, ranging from 3 months to 7 years. Periodically, the Company assesses whether its
long-lived assets including intangibles, should be tested for recoverability whenever events or circumstances
indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generally recognizes revenue at the time of shipment when title and risk of loss have passed,
evidence of an arrangement has been obtained, pricing is fixed or determinable at the date of sale, and collectibility
is reasonably assured. The Company makes certain sales through two tier distribution channels and has various
distribution agreements with selected distributors and Master Value Added Resellers (collectively, the Distributors).
These distribution agreements may be terminated upon written notice by either party. Additionally, these
Distributors are generally given privileges to return a portion of inventory and to participate in price protection and
cooperative marketing programs. Therefore, the Company recognizes revenue on its standard products sold to its
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EMULEX CORPORATION ANI) SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Distributors based on data received from the Distributors and management’s estimates to approximate the point that
these products have been resold by the Distributors. Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) specific models sold
to the Company’s Distributors are governed under the related OEM agreements rather than under these distribution
agreements. The Company recognizes revenue at the time of shipient to the Distributors when title and risk of loss
have passed, evidence of an arrangement has been obtained, the fee is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is
reasonably assured. Additionally, the Company maintains accruals and allowances for price protection and
cooperative marketing programs. Moreover, the Company accounts for these incentive programs in accordance with
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a
Customer (Including a Reselier of the Vendor’s Products)” (EITF No. 01-09). Accordingly, the Company classifies
the costs of these programs based on the identifiable benefit received as either a reduction of revenue, a cost of sale,
or an operating expense.

Warranty

The Company provides a warranty of between one and five years on its products. The Company records a
provision for estimated warranty related costs at the time of sale based on historical product return rates and
management’s estimates of expected future costs to fulfill the Company’s warranty obligations. The Company
evaluates its ongoing warranty obligation on a quarterly basis.

Research and Development

Research and development costs, including costs related to the development of new products and process
technology, are expensed as incurred,

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses amounted to approximately $5.9 million,
$5.5 million, and $5.7 million for fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect
on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date. The Company regularly reviews historical and anticipated future pre-tax results of operations to
determine whether the Company will be able to realize the beneit of its deferred tax assets. A valuation allowance is
required to reduce the potential deferred tax asset when it is mote likely than not that all or some portion of the
potential deferred tax asset will not be realized due to the lack of sufficient taxable income. The Company
establishes reserves for tax contingencies that are not probable cf being sustained if examined by the taxing
authorities.

Net Income per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing adjusted net income by
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period increased to include, if dilutive, the
number of additional common shares that would be outstanding if the dilutive potential common shares and
restricted stock from stock option plans and convertible subordinated notes had been issued. The dilutive effect of
outstanding stock options and restricted stock is reflected in diluted net income per share by application of the
treasury stock method. The dilutive effect of convertible suborcinated notes is reflected in diluted net income per
share by application of the if-converted method.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Non-cash investing and financing activity:

2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)

Capital expenditures included in accounts payable in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets.................ovvioiee e £ 939 § 2217 —

Cash paid during the year for;

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
TREETESE. ..o cceerrseteiiri e s it e r e s et e s ane s ot s b b e e st baesbbessba s bsssasteabssateenanersares § 336 § 597 § 1,282
OIS S Loe i ettt ettt ettt e e st a e e st a e s e st ee s ssnbeeas e ennennes 29,631 33,985 12,527

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) represents the net change in stockholders’ equity during a period from sources
other than transactions with stockholders and, as such, includes net income and other specified components, For the
Company, the only component of comprehensive income (loss), other than net income, is the change in the
curnulative foreign currency transiation adjustments recognized in stockholders’ equity.

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123R requires that the
compensation cost related to share-based payment transactions, measured based on the fair value of the equity or
liability instruments issued, be recognized in the financial statements. The adoption of SFAS No. 123R was required
in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005.

Effective July 4, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, and related guidance, using the modified
prospective transition method which provides for only the current and future period stock-based awards to be
measured and recognized at fair value. Previously, benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation
costs were reported as operating cash flows. As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, such tax benefits are
reported as a financing cash inflow rather than as an operating cash inflow.

The fair value of each stock option and restricted stock award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes-Merton option pricing model (Black-Scholes model) based on the market price of the underlying common
stock as of the date of grant, the expected term, stock price volatility, and expected risk-free interest rates. Expected
volatilities are based on methodologies utilizing equal weighting involving both historical periods equal to the
expected term and implied volatilities based on traded options to buy the Company’s shares.

The Black-Scholes model, as well as other currently accepted option valuation models, was developed to estimate
the fair value of freely-tradable, fully-transferable options without vesting restrictions, which significantly differ
from the Company’s stock option plans. These models require highly subjective assumptions, including future stock
price volatility and expected time until exercise, which greatly affect the calculated fair value on the grant date as
well as the market price of the underlying common stock as of the date of grant and expected risk-free interest rates.

In fiscal year 2005, the Company accounted for its stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value

method under APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees™ and related Interpretations. Stock-
based awards 1o non-employees, if any, were recorded using the fair value method.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management believes the fair values of certain of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, investments, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximate carrying value.

Business and Credit Concentrations

Financia! instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of
cash and cash equivalents, short-term and long-term investments, and accounts receivable. Cash, cash equivalents,
and investments, both short-term and long-term, are primarily maintained at 3 major financial institutions in the
United States. Deposits hetd with banks may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such deposits, if any. The
Company principally invests in U.S. Government Agency securities and corporate bonds and limits the amount of
credit exposure {0 any one entity.

The Company sells its products to OEMs and distributors in the computer storage and server industry.
Consequently, the Company’s net revenues and accounts receivable are concentrated. Direct sales to the Company’s
top 5 customers accounted for 64%, 69% and 69% of total net revenues in fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. The level of sales to any single customer may vary and the loss of any one of these customers, or a
decrease in the level of sales to any one of these customers, could have a1 material adverse impact on the Company.
Furthermore, aithough the Company sells to customers throughout the world, sales in the United States and Europe
accounted for approximately 83% of the Company’s net revenues in fiscal year 2007, and the Company expects for
the foreseeable future, these sales will account for the substantial majority of the Company’s revenues. Sales to
customers are denominated in U.S. dollars. Consequently, the Company believes its foreign currency risk is
minimal. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and generally
requires no collateral from its customers. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts. Historically,
the Company has not experienced significant losses on accounts receivable.

Additionally, the Company currently relies on single and limited supply sources for several key components used
in the manufacturing of its products. Also, beginning in late fiscal 2007 and continuing into early fiscal 2008, the
Company will rely on two Electronics Manufacturing Services (EMS) providers for the manufacturing of its
products. The inability or unwillingness of any single and limited source suppliers or the inability or unwillingness
of any of the Company’s EMS provider sites to fulfill supply and production requirements, respectively, could
materially impact future operating results.

Segment Information

The Company applies SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.”
SFAS No. 131 uses the “management” approach to determine segmenis of an enterprise. The management approach
is based on the method by which management organizes its operating segments within the enterprise. Operating
segments, as defined by SFAS No. 131, are components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is
available and is evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance. SFAS No. 131 also requires disclosures about products and services, geographic
areas, and major customers. The Company operates in one operating segment, networking products, for purposes of
SFAS No. 131,

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 48,
“Agcounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.” FIN No. 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN No. 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a
tax return. It also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim
periods, disclosure, and transition. FIN No. 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006 which
is the Company’s fiscal year beginning July 2, 2007. The Company is in the process of studying the potential
financial statement impact of adopting FIN No. 48.
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In May 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 48-1, “Definition of Settlement in FASB
Interpretation No. 48” (FSP FIN No. 48-1). This FSP amends FIN 48 to provide guidance that a Company may
recognize a previously unrecognized tax benefit if the tax position is effectively (as opposed to “ultimately™) settled
through examination, negotiation, or litigation. FSP FIN No. 48-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006 which is the Company’s fiscal year beginning July 2, 2007. The Company is in the process of
studying the potential financial statement impact of adopting FSP FIN No. 48-1.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure of fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements and
accordingly, does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which is the Company’s fiscal year beginning June 29,
2008. The Company is in the process of studying the potential financial statement impact of the adoption of
SFAS No. 157.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 139, “Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS No, 159 expands the use of fair value
accounting but does not affect existing standards which require assets or liabilities to be carried at fair value. Under
SFAS No. 159, a company may elect to use fair value to measure certain financial assets and liabilities. The fair
value election is irrevocable and generally made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, even if a company has
similar instruments that it elects not to measure based on fair value. At the adoption date, unrealized gains and losses
on existing items for which fair value has been elected are reported as a cumulative adjustment to beginning retained
earnings. Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 159, changes in fair value are recognized in earnings.

SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which is the Company’s fiscal year
beginning June 29, 2008, The Company is in the process of studying the potential financial statement impact of the
adoption of SFAS No. 159,

Note 2 Business Combinations

Sierra Logic, Inc.

On October 2, 2006, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding common shares of Sierra Logic, Inc. (Sierra
Logic), a privately-held supplier of embedded products for storage networking equipment located in Roseville,
California. The acquisition is part of the Company’s strategy to diversify its business by expanding its embedded
products beyond fibre channel to other disk drive protocols. The addition of Sierra Logic’s serial advanced
technology attachment (SATA) products, as well as other products under development, will enable the Company to
provide its customers with cost effective, end-to-end solutions with enhanced features such as virtualization, multi-
protocol interoperability and tiered storage. The Company accounted for the acquisition using the purchase method
of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Busingss Combinations.” The aggregate purchase price was
approximately $147.0 million, including approximately $137.6 million of cash for convertible preferred stock and
common stock, approximately $7.4 million in assumed vested stock options and other transaction costs of
approximately $2.0 million. This aggregate purchase price does not include approximately $24.3 million paid into
escrow and deemed to be contingent consideration, which is included in other assets, approximately $8.3 million in
restricted stock, and approximately $1.1 million in unvested stock options that were issued and will be recognized as
compensation expense post-acquisition. The contingent consideration relates to certain standard representations and
warranties defined in the escrow agreement and is expected to be resolved within 18 months from the acquisition
date.

The Company has preliminarily allocated the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the aggregate fair values is recorded as goodwill. This
allocation is subject to revision as the estimates of fair value of inventory, identifiable intangible assets, and deferred
taxes are based on preliminary information and the final pre-acquisition tax retumns are not yet complete. The
Company is in the process of obtaining third party valuations of certain assets. Thus, the allocation of the purchase
price is subject to refinement. The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, including purchased in-process research and development ({PR&D):
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(In thousands)

Current and other assets, including cash acquired of $5,192......cvvvivieies et $ 12257
CUITENE AETEITEU LAX BSSEL.uuvveerverrririicresieite st errterreeitr s e st e e st e st esstesatsstsssrasssontsamtssnssnesseesasesnsssans 1,312
Property and EQUIPITIENL........cc ittt et b et et e b e e 1,159
ACQUITEd [PRED ...ttt bbb bbb s en e nnenan 21,800
INLANZIDIE ASSES ...\ evriseeieee et eeiee e ety e st et et e et e e e e sm e b e smees e e e eae e e e e e e smenee e e eee e e nneaseann et ebeeaes 73,000
GOOAWIll..ecveiece e SO SO SO U OO 62,497
Total ASSEtS ACQUITED ..vvvveeirrereeeier e s e s e sr e s e e ns e e ns s e e s m e menansrannam b arinin 172,025
U I III@S oottt e e s b et et s e e s et e b et s s e st eb e s sse sh bbb bbb e b e s ek R bbb et aaaa s sasarens (10,748)
Noncurrent deferred tax lability ........ocoooiiii e e {14.286)
Total liabilities asSUMEd ............oviriririi et s e e e e se e e e (25.034)
INEt BSSELS BCQUITEM 1.vevoveseeiieei et rrees e re e e e s es e b s ess s st sessnssssessensressesensaseses S 146,991

Subsequent to the acquisition, the Company repaid the debt assumed in conjunction with the purchase.

Approximately $21.8 million of the purchase price represents the preliminary fair value of acquired IPR&D
prajects that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use. Accordingly, this
amount was immediately recognized as an operating expense in the accorapanying fiscal 2007 consolidated
statement of income upon the acquisition date. Of the approximately $73.0 million which was preliminarily assigned
to acquired intangible assets, approximately $68.5 million was assigned 1o developed technology, approximately
$3.2 million was assigned to customer relationships and approximately $1.3 million was assigned to backlog.

The value assigned to purchased in-process technology consists of the Sierra Logic controller project (the
Project). The estimated fair value of this Project was determined by employment of the Multi-Period Excess
Earnings Approach. In applying this approach, the value of the acquired technologies was estimated by discounting
to present value the cash flows generated by the products to which the technelogies are associated over the
remaining life of the technology. To distinguish between the cash flows attributable to the underiying technology
and cash flows attributable to other assets available for generating product revenues, adjustments were made to
provide for a fair return on fixed assets, working capital, and other assets acquired. The utilized discount rate of 19%
takes into consideration the stage of completion and the risks surrounding the successful development and
commercialization of the Project.

The value assigned to the Project was determined by identifying the Project’s economic worth and discounting
that value as the Project had not vet reached technological feasibility and viability. The features of the related
product had not been released to the market as of the date of the acquisition, but the features and functionality of the
product had been defined.

Intangible assets with identifiable lives are being amortized on a straight-line basis from the acquisition date over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Developed teChNOlOZY ....coco i e e et 5 years
CUSIOMET FEIAHONSHIPS oottt s sttt sttt sie s ia et . 5 years
BaCKIOZ ..ot e e e e e s 3 months
Weighted-average amortization period. ... e 5 years

The value initially assigned to goodwill was approximately $62.5 million, which is not expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

The acquisition has been included in the 2007 consolidated balance sheet of the Company and the operating
results have been included in the 2007 consolidated statement of income of the Company since the date of
acquisition.

Following is the supplemental unaudited pro forma information for the twelve months ended July 1, 2007 and
July 2, 2006, assuming the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of each fiscal year, The pro forma
information is based upon the statement of income of Emulex for the twelve months ended July 1, 2007, and the
statement of income of Sierra Logic for the period from July 1, 2006 to September 30, 2006. The pro forma
information for the twelve months ended July 2, 2006, is based upon the statement of income of Emulex for the
twelve months ended July 2, 2006, and the statement of income of Sierra Logic for the period from July 1, 2005 to
June 30, 2006.
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The pro forma information includes adjustments for the amortization of intangible assets acquired, incremental
stock-based compensation expense resulting from the combination, the decrease to interest income resulting from
the acquisition, and the related estimated tax effects of these adjustments. Included in the pro forma information for
the twelve months ended July 1, 2007 is the nonrecurring 1PR&D charge of approximately $21.8 million that was
immediately recognized as an operating expense in the accompanying fiscal 2007 consolidated statement of income
upon the acquisition date. The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of the future results or results that
would have been reported had the acquisition taken place when assumed.

Twelve Months Ended
July 1, July 2,
2007 2006
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)
INEE PEVEIILIES ... eteciateiaieiaianeanneasesnseasseansaeesssssesaessssmansaenseanneeananasseensssesssssas £_477.620 3425404
INEE INCOITIE Loovveviieiteeeteeem e eecae e e eeereesesbae st b b st e e steesnansnssensessenensrseseiatseasnss $_ 26,178 g 23367
Net income per bastc Share...................coiiiii e b 0.31 by 028
Net income per diluted Share..............coorireciriecee s 3 0.30 b3 0.26

Aarohi Communications, Inc.

On May 1, 2006, the Company acquired 100% of Aarohi Communications, Inc. (Aarcht), a supplier of intelligent
data center networking products with principal product development facilities located in San Jose, California and
Bangalore, [ndia. The Company accounted for the acquisition of Aarohi under the purchase method of accounting in
accordance with SFAS No. 141, and recorded approximately $17.3 million of purchased IPR&D expense during
fiscal 2006.

The fair value of the net assets received by the Company in the Aarohi acquisition exceeded the purchase price to
be allocated. Consequently, contingent consideration of approximately $1.0 million was recognized and was
included in accrued liabilities as of the fiscal year ended July 2, 2006. During fiscal 2007, certain performance
targets were not achieved and thus, the contingent consideration of approximately $1.0 million previously recorded
was reversed, Final purchase price revisions have been recorded during fisca! 2007 (including the reversal of the
contingent consideration noted above) which resulted in changes to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as well as a reduction to IPR&D expense in the accompanying statement of income for approximately
$2.6 million. The following table presents the allocation of the purchase price for purposes of non-cash investing
and financing activities resulting from the acquisition:

(In thousands}

CUurrent AN OLRET ASSELS......oieeiiieieeiis et s ea s e sbe e ss s e e e be et et e s easasebsss st beemnesns b 634
Property and QUIPINENL ..ot sasar s eba e sne s ne e rr et b s s saensa sbans 827
Net noncurrent deferred AKX ASSET ..ottt st e s e estseeeereeetessre st e s s e sabssanesaeeenes 12,961
ACQUIred IPRED ...t s v e s s st e e e e e s e rereereesesne e aenee 17,272
INEANEIBLE ASSEIS......oiiiiiiiiieiee et ittt ettt st ss et e s e ba e e et e e eae et e e saar e e sme b e e sne st aans 8.264
Total aSSets ACQUITEM..........cco et rassse e vre s s sas e s s emns s saemsassresas st e srsnesba e snans 39,958
CUrrent DTS .ot e s et e s e e et e n bbb e e e ebeas sbans (5.142)
INEL ASSELS ACQUITED ..ottt es et errsbertesetasesrs e s b sasaesb e s s e s ns s ersmtes e sasaerbrsasnsabesasasssrnn § 34816

The acquisition has been included in the July 2, 2006 consolidated balance sheet of the Company and the
operating results of Aarohi have been included in the consolidated statements of income of the Company since the
date that the Company gained effective control of Aarohi on May 1, 2006.
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Note 3 Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The Company’s portfolio of cash, cash equivalents, and investments consists of the following:

2007 2006
(In thousands)
L0 OOy O ST OGO $ 122368 2,685
Money Market fUnds ... s 56,800 221,607
Certificates of depPoSit.....ccovovrierein i — 5,670
COMMEICIAT PAPET ...ttt ecrterere e e st b e r s e e e e en e a e b b n s st 180,580 151,204
U.S. Government AZENCY SECUITHES ...o.vvvvririrrrerreisassisissesssseseees s s s sss s eiis 12,603 181,948
COTPOFALE DONAS ... ceevvvveseeessssssessssssssaress e sresessssessssasseseceseasseseessaaesscssesesiasis 9105 _ 35335
Total cash, cash equivalents, and INVEStMENTS............ccviirriicimir e § 271,324 § 598,449

As of July 1, 2007, and July 2, 2006, the net unrealized holding gains and lcsses on investments were immaterial,
Investments at July 1, 2007 and July 2, 2006, were classified as shown below:

2007 2006
(In thousands)
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENIS........covviverrreeccc e $ 69,036 % 224,292
Short-term investments (maturities less than one year) ........cccocovvininiininnniniesnn 202,288 367,054
Long-term investments (maturities of one to five years) ... — 7.103
TOLAL .cviirieiieeeiceereessssaese st e et e st e et e st e b et et et ebese e sa e e sEen e rr e rr e EeR s bR s R e e b e eaneansnnanabes $ 271,324 § 598449
Note 4 Inventories, net
Inventories, net, are summarized as follows:
2007 2006
{In thousands}
RAW IIALCELALS «.oooeeeeeieveeeseeeeeeeeeeeeereesasessasernsssassssesneaeseeasssesabseasssasnbsnarnsnareensneesnnasonte $ 11,128 § 5,038
Finished gOOdS.....oovoriie et et e 17.845 17,376
TOLAl INVEIIOTIES, MEL..e.viiiiiiieteseiersreerrsstersssaesse e sseeesene e be st sabasassassesasssebtesnrasrnsnes $ 28973 § 22414
Note 5 Property and Equipment
Components of property and equipment, net, are as follows:
2007 2006
{In thousands)
Production and test EQUIPIMENL ........ccoveremseereuecsrecencereneseserscssssememsecremirsesssnenmes 9 10,368 § 61,311
FUIMITULE AN fIXIEES oot eeeeceete i v eceet s eeteeent e et eeee e st e setstesbbastba e s s reensne s sarnerbnsssepeanraeas 30,819 28,608
Buildings and imMproVemMENLS. ...c..covvirenieiiimiei et sae e smeasa e e sesse e 31,495 31,376
1 T OO USSP TSSO OT OO 12,532 12,532
145214 133,827
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ... (80,920 _ (66,876)
Total property and equiPMENt, NEL ..o s $ 642943 6695
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Note 6 Goodwill and Intangible Assets, net

The activity in goodwill during the twelve months ended July 1, 2007 is as follows:

Carrying
Amount
(In thousands)
Goodwill, a3 0f JULY 2, 2006........c.ececee et sae e et sasese s s eness s b e re e b —
Sierra Logic, Inc. acquisition go0dWill..........c.ociiiieininineenree st 62,497
EXCESS5 1aX DENETILS ..ottt e b s e ne et ea et s s e et e sasnrae e sbe e teanransbenes (150)
Goodwill, a8 of July 1, 2007 .....ccr it esr et as s e e bbb as §_62,347
Intangible assets, net, are as follows:
2007 2006

(In thousands)
Intangible assets subject to amortization:

Core technology and PAENLS...........ccvvevieriersrereesnssereenisasinirerisineeesieseessssessesssesessenss § 95471 § 99,070
Accumulated amortization, core technology and patents.........ccvoeieneinneinrernnnenes (65,347)  (53,440)
Developed teChnology ....ooovievviriiiiieeee s s 81,982 14,405
Accumulated amortization, developed technology .......cooeeeeoeeeeceececeeeeee (19,731) (6,223)
Customer relationSHIPS ....c.ovieviiiieiiiiiiiie ittt e e ee e ee e e eme et e e eaeeneens 40,608 40,264
Accumulated amortization, customet relationships ......ccoccoeeeieieeeiccenenseeieseeece e (27.170)  (19,828)
TEAENMAINE c...vverieiitrieemeeeie e e eeeee e e ee e e e seeeseeeesseeeseesnnsaeneeenseessnsressesornssansnsernresress 4,896 4941
Accumulated amortization, tradename ...............ccoe e eeeiorecceece s sraenes (2,546) (1,856)
COVENANLS NOI-LO-COMPELE ..ooiirirrivriirrieririeerseresrrsesssstasssssasasssssssasasssssasssrsasssernssses 3,575 3,064
Accumulated amortization, covenants nOt-t0-COMPELE .........cuerrevrrrrrererrrrrerrscrannns (3.396) (2.632)
Intangible assets subject 10 AMOTLZALON, NEL ......vvviveieririeereresreesesessee s sessaessseraens 5 108342 § 77,765

During fiscal 2007, the Company recorded an impairment charge of approximately $2.0 million related to the
customer relationships intangible asset from the Aarohi acquisition. The initial value ascribed to this customer
relationship was based primarily on forecasted revenues from McDATA Caorporation (McDATA). Subsequent to
this initial valuation, Brocade Communications Systems, Inc. (Brocade) completed its acquisition of McDATA in
January 2007. Following completion of the acquisition, Brocade informed the Company of its intent to terminate
certain projects that included the Company’s products. As a result of this triggering event, impairment testing was

deemed necessary and the Company wrote down the asset 1o its estimated fair value in accordance with
SFAS No. 144,

Fair value was tentatively estimated using an undiscounted cash flow analysis based on forecasted operating
results. Because this fair value was less than the carrying value of the customer relationships intangible asset, the
Company recorded an impairment charge to reduce the carrying value of the customer relationships intangible asset
to the estimated fair value of zero. This impairment charge was recorded in the line item impairment of other
intangible assets in the consolidated statements of income,

The remaining intangible assets subject to amortization are being amortized on a straight-line basis over lives
ranging from three months to seven years. Aggregated amortization expense for intangible assets for fiscal year
2007, 2006 and 2005, was approximately $37.9 million and $25.7 million, and $26.2 million respectively, of which
approximately $25.8 million, $14.7 million, and $14.8 million of amortization expense related to core technology
and developed technology, respectively, has been included in cost of sales within the consolidated statements of
income.
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The following table presents the estimated aggregated amortization expense of intangible assets for the next 5 full
fiscal years (in thousands):

2008.....ooeeveeevmsereereeseresesesessssssssssssss 82888881 $ 35443
2009......o1e v 088088 1 26,764
2010 23,509
) 18,864
2012 ceeceeeeasss bR AR R AR 3.762

$_108.342

Note 7 Accrued Liabilities

Components of accrued liabilities are as follows:

2007 2006
(1n thousands)
Payroll and related COSES ..o omrminccrccirirerencrconmnissnsnessssssesssrissssnssisenseenemenees 9 15,879 8 8,546
W AITANLY TESEIVES 1.c0eveurueeeeeeree et e etrtstststsbssassse e e e b s bbb s F bbb S bbb e RER SRS RS RRE 2 h b e g ramesas e 3,832 2,949
Deferred revenue and accrued rebates .......oovviviiciivn s re e s e sea s e s reassncenes 3,724 4478
Accrued advertising and PromoOtions ... 839 1,463
Accrued propenty, sales, franchise and related taxes ..o 1,710 1,336
11 =) RO U T U U OO D PO TPRRUPPR 3.499 3,138
Total AcCrued HADILILIES .....veoceieiieeeeieeeeerreaestesersnrresereeeeee e e e emeeeesee e e saenes st sbeesesnsareses $ 29483 § 21910

The Company provides a warranty of between one to five years on its products. The Company records a provision
for estimated warranty related costs at the time of sale based on historical procluct return rates and the Company’s
estimates of expected future costs of fulfilling its warranty obligations. Changes to the warranty reserve in 2007 and

2006 were:
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of period.........cccovrriiiini $ 2949 § 4,085
Accrual for WarTanties 1SSUEH ... i crre e s e e eresrr e esenevanassranssnras 3,685 2,874
Settlements made (in cash or in Kind)........ccoccovniiniiiniceec i (2.802) _ (4.010)
Balance at end of Period......cooo ittt sbsaebasssanan s $ 3832 § 2949

Note 8 Convertible Subordinated Notes

In fiscal year 2004, the Company completed a $517.5 million private placement of 0.25% contingently
convertible subordinated notes due 2023 (Notes). Interest was payable in cash on June 15" and December 15" of
each year beginning June 15, 2004. Under the terms of the offering, the Notes could be convertible into shares of
Emulex common stock at a price of $43.20 per share at the option of the ho!der upon the occurrence of certain
events.

The Notes provided for a scheduled maturity date 20 years following issiuance and were not callable for the first
five years. Holders of the Notes had rights to require the Company to purchase the Notes for cash by giving written
notice within the 20 business days prior to each of December 15, 2006, December 135, 2008, December 15, 2013, or
December 15, 2018 or upon a change in control.

During fiscal 2005, the Company repurchased approximately $281.5 million of the Notes at a discount to face
value, spending approximately $256.5 million. The resulting net pre-tax gain of approximately $20.8 million from
the repurchase of these 0.25% convertible subordinated notes was recorded in fiscal 2005. The repurchased notes
were cancelled, leaving 0.25% convertible subordinated notes outstanding with a face value of approximately
$236.0 million that, if converted, would result in the issuance of approximately 5.5 million shares. As of July 2,
2006, none of the Company’s 0.25% contingent convertible notes were acthorized for repurchase at a discount to par
value.
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On November 15, 2006, the Company announced the commencement of the put option period for holders of its
Notes to surrender their Notes for purchase. Each holder of the Notes had the right to require Emulex to purchase all
or any part of such holder’s Notes at a price equal 10 $},000 per $1,000 of principal amount plus any accrued and
unpaid interest, including additional interest, if any, to, but excluding, the date of purchase, At the end of the put
option period on December 15, 2006, all such Notes were surrendered and the Company paid approximately
$236.0 million to retire these Notes. No gain or toss occurred as a result of the retirement of these Notes. Thus, as of
July 1, 2007, there were no Notes outstanding.,

Note 9 Employee Retirement Savings Plans

The Company has a pretax savings and profit sharing plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) (the Plan) for substantially all domestic employees. Under the Plan, eligible employees are able to contribute
up to 15% of their compensation not to exceed the maximum IRC deferral amount. In addition, Company
discretionary contributions match up to 4% of a participant’s compensation. The Company’s contributions under this

plan were approximately $2.2 million, $1.9 million, and $1.9 million in fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively.

The Company’s eligible employees in the United Kingdom are offered a similar plan, which allows the
employees to contribute up to 15% of their compensation. In addition, Company discretionary contributions match
up to 4% of a participant’s compensation. The Company’s contributions under this plan were approximately $46
thousand, $44 thousand, and $33 thousand in fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Note 10 Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under long-term noncancelable operating lease agreements,
which expire at various dates through 2014. Rent expense for the Company under operating leases, including month-
to-month rentals, totaled approximately $3.9 million, $2.9 million and $2.2 million in fiscal years 2007, 2006, and
2005, respectively. The Company has recorded rent expense on a straight-line basis based on contractual lease
payments. Allowances from lessors for tenant improvements have been included in the straight-line rent expense for
the applicable locations.

Future minimum noncancelable lease commitments are as follows {in thousands):

Qperating
Leases
Fiscal year:
2B e ettt e et ea e e e e st e raeeta abae bt e e e st eanteanteemseatsarseerararareteesrnaesen $ 3,261
2000 e e e et e et s e e e At Aeta et e b e e b e et sttt e et ennseaeenAe et fe et betee et e enra 3,083
20T e cerererrer s et s et e aessa et s e e e e s e e T as e eabeasaensnererar e et s et s tantansnaneeaeeeRe e R e et eeteeenreraea 3,915
2OTT ettt e e et b s b e s sse bbb s s A SRt et er S eAt st s 140t 4 AL e e e eee et et e R e ae e b s et 3,990
1 1 0 O U SO SRR 2,350
TRETEAIIET ...t e sttt et e e e et et e re e e et e ss st b e a s s bessssasbaemesaeebssbe e e st asaasesbesons 1,051
Total MIniMUM [EASE PAYIMENLS ......ecciiiicieicsii e e srre e s serssee s e s s st st e sassestssnnesntasasnsessaseenses $ 18,550
Litigation

On November 15, 2001, prior to our acquisition of Vixel Corporation, a securities class action was filed in the
United States District Court in the Southern District of New York as Case No. 01 CIV. 10053 (SAS), Master File
No. 21 MC92 (SAS) against Vixel and two of its officers and directors (one of which is James M. McCluney) and
certain underwriters who participated in the Vixel initial public offering in late 1999, The amended complaint
alleges violations under Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Section 11 of the Securities Act and seeks
unspecified damages on behalf of persons who purchased Vixel stock during the period October 1, 1999 through
December 6, 2000. In October 2002, the parties agreed to toll the statute of limitations with respect to Vixel’s
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officers and directors until September 30, 2003, and on the basis of this agreement, Vixel's officers and directors
were dismissed from the lawsuit without prejudice. During June 2003, Vixel and the other issuer defendants in the
action reached a tentative settlement with the plaintiffs that would, among other things, result in the dismissal with
prejudice of all claims against the defendants and their officers and dizectors. In connection with the possible
settlement, those officers and directors who had entered tolling agreernents with the plaintiffs agreed to extend those
agreements so that they would not expire prior to any settlement beiny finalized. Although Vixel approved this
settlement proposal in principle, it remains subject to a number of procedural conditions, as well as formal approval
by the court. On August 31, 2005, a Preliminary Order In Connection With Settlement Proceedings was issued by
the court which among other items, set the form of notice to the Settlement Classes of the Issuers’ Settlement
Stipulation. In December 20035, the settlement notices authorized by the court were sent to former Vixel
stockholders and the web site www.iposecuritieslitigation.com was created for claimants.

On or about July 17, 2006, Emulex assigned to the class action plantiffs any IPO claims Emulex (Vixel) has
against RBC Dain Rauscher in the IPO litigation, as required by the szttlement agreement. On December 5, 2006,
the Second Circuit Court of Appeals issued a decision reversing Judgz Scheindlin’s class certification decision. On
about January 6, 2007, Emulex assigned to the class action plaintiffs any IPO claims Emulex (Vixel) has against The
Bear Stearns Companies Inc. and Bear Stearns & Co. Inc. in the IPO litigation, as required by the settlement
agreement. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denied the plaintiffs’ petition for rehearing of the decision denying
class certification. During April 2007, counsel for Emulex and other Jssuers informed Judge Scheindlin that, in light
of the Second Circuit opinion, the settlement agreement in its current form cannot be approved because the defined
settlement class, like the litigation class, does not meet the Second Circuit requirements for certification. Judge
Scheindlin held a conference on May 30, 2007 to consider issues relating.to the class definitions, the statute of
limitations, settlement, and discovery. On June 25, 2007, Judge Scheindlin signed a Stipulation and Order submitted
by the parties which terminated the June 10, 2004 Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement with Defendant Issuers
and Individuals, On June 26, 2007, a document production request from the plaintiffs to all 298 issuers (including
Vixel} was received, covering documents from each issuer’s inception through December 31, 2001,

In addition to the ongoing litigation discussed above, the Company is involved in various claims and legal actions
arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of the open
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of
operations or liquidity.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has entered into various agreements for purchases of inventery. As of July 1, 2007, the Company’s
purchase obligation associated with inventory was approximately $25.4 million.

In addition, the Company provides limited indemnification in selected circumstances within its various customer
contracts whereby the Company indemnifies the parties to whom it sells its products with respect to the Company’s
product infringing upon certain intellectual property, and in some limited cases against bodily injury or damage to
real or tangible personal property caused by a defective Company product. It is not possible to predict the maximum
potential amount of future payments under these or similar agreements, due to the conditional nature of the
Company’s obligations and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement.

Note 11 Shareholders’ Equity
Stock Repurchase Program

On December 5, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $150 million of its
outstanding common stock over the next two years. The Company may repurchase shares from time-to-time in open
market purchases or privately negotiated transactions. The share repurchases will be financed by available cash
balances and cash from operations. As of July 1, 2007, the Company has repurchased 3,589,278 shares of its
common stock under this program at an aggregate purchase price of approximately $70.1 million or an average of
$19.53 per share. Since July 1, 2007, the Company has not purchased any additional shares of its common stock
under this program.
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Repurchased shares have been recorded as treasury stock under the cost method and will be held until the
Company’s Board of Directors designates that these shares be retired or used for other purposes.

Shareholder Rights Plan

The Company has a Shareholder Rights Plan that provides for Preferred Stock Purchase Rights (Rights) that
attach to and transfer with each share of common stock, When the Rights become exercisable, each Right entitles
the holder to purchase from the Company one unit consisting of 1/100 of a share of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock for $300 per unit, subject to adjustment. The Rights become exercisable if (i} a person or group
(Acquiring Person) has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, 20% or more of the outstanding shares of common
stock, (i1) a person becomes the beneficial owner of 30% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock, (iii} an
Acquiring Person engages in one or more “self-dealing” transactions with the Company or {iv) an event occurs
which results in an Acquiring Person’s ownership interest being increased by more than 1%. Upon exercise and
payment of the purchase price for the Rights, the Rights holder (other than an Acquiring Person) will have the right
1o receive Company common stock (or, in certain circumstances, cash, property or other securities of the Company)
equal to two times the purchase price. The Company is entitled to redeem the Rights at any time prior to the
expiration of the Rights in January 2009, or ten days following the time that a person has acquired beneficial
ownership of 20% or more of the shares of common stock then outstanding. The Company is entitled to redeem the
Rights in whole, but not in part, at a price of $0.01 per Right, subject to adjustment.

Stock-Based Compensation

As of July 1, 2007, the Company had five stock-based plans for employees and directors that are open for future
grant awards and are described below. In addition, the Company had six stock-based plans, including four plans
assumed in connection with prior acquisitions, that are closed for future grants. Amounts recognized in the financial
statements with respect to these plans are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
July 1, 2007 July 2, 2006
(In thousands)
Total cost of stock-based payment plans during the period......ccccovnvirirnenianen. 5 28,057 $ 21,453
Amounts capitalized in inventory during the period.........ocoovievvirciniiiieicn, {652) (648)
Amounts recognized in income for amounts previously capitalized in
IMVEIIIOTY <ot s st st e ss st sbe s et et easenessassmse st s eneseassetaseseeseansntnseans 625 513
Amounts charged against income, before income tax benefit ............c.ccocooe..... 528,030 $ 21,318
Amount of related income tax benefit recognized in income ...........cocoooeveeeen. 3. 6700 $ 4,131

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the Purchase Plan or ESPP) was adopted by the Board of Directors and
approved by the stockhoiders in 2000 and became effective on January 1, 2001. Under the Purchase Plan, employees
of the Company who elect to participate have the right to purchase common stock at a2 15% discount from the lower
of the market value of the common stock at the beginning or the end of each six month offering period. Employees
purchase common stock using payroll deductions, which may not exceed 10% of their eligible compensation (the
amount may be increased from time to time by the Company but may not exceed 15% of eligible compensation). No
employee may purchase more than $25,000 worth of common stock (calculated at the time the purchase right is
granted) or 1,000 shares in any calendar year. The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors administers
the Purchase Plan. The Company has reserved a total of 1,950,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the
Purchase Plan. As of July 1, 2007, there are 777,219 shares available for future award grants,

Emplovee Stock Option and Equity Incentive Plan
On December 1, 2005, the Company’s shareholders ratified and approved the Emulex Corporation 2005 Equity
Incentive Plan (the Equity Incentive Plan). The Company’s Equity Incentive Plan permits the grant of stock options,

restricted stock awards consisting of shares of common stock that are subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture
(vesting restrictions) for some period of time, unrestricted stock awards that are free of any vesting restrictions,
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performance awards entitling the recipient to acquire shares of common stock: or to vest in shares of common stock
upon the attainment of specified performance goals (Performance Awards} and stock appreciation rights to its
domestic and international employees. The aggregate number of shares which may be used under the Equity
Incentive Plan consists of 2,937,475 shares of common stock, plus the number of shares underlying options that
were outstanding on the effective date of the Equity Incentive Plan (October 24, 2005) that expire, are forfeited,
cancelled or terminate for any reason under the Employee Stock Option Plan and the 2004 Employee Stock
Incentive Plan without having been exercised in full. On November 30, 2005, an additional 1,500,000 shares were
approved for issuance by the Company’s stockholders. The Equity Incentive: Plan is administered by the Board of
Directors, or at the discretion of the Board, by a committee consisting of two or more independent directors of the
Company. Stock option awards are granted with an exercise price not less taan fair market value of the Company’s
stock at the date of grant; these awards generally vest based on three years of continuous service and have a six year
contractual term. Certain stock option awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is a change in control (as
defined in the Equity Incentive Plan) or achieving certain performance targets. As of July 1, 2007, there were
2,449,055 shares available for future award grants under the Equity Incentive Plan.

Restricted and unrestricted stock awards may be awarded (or sold at a purchase price determined by the Board or
the Committee) upon terms established by them in its sole discretion. The vesting provisions of restricted stock
awards will be determined individually by the Board or the Committee for each grant, but generally vest annually
over three years, Unrestricted stock awards will be free of any vesting previsions. From May 2, 2006, the Company
granted restricted stock to employees and non-employee directors under the Equity Incentive Plan.

Performance awards will be subject to the attainment of performance goals established by the Board or
Committee, the periods during which performance is to be measured, and all other limitations and conditions
applicable to the awarded shares. Performance goals shall be based on a pre-established objective formula or
standard that specifies the manner of determining the number of performance awards that will be granted or will vest
if the performance goal is attained. Performance goals will be determined by the Board or the Committee prior to the
time 25% of the service period has elapsed and may be based on one or more business criteria that apply to an
individual, a business unit or the Company. As of July 1, 2007, there are: no performance awards outstanding.

Stock appreciation rights entitle the holder to receive the appreciation in the value of common stock underlying
the stock appreciation right. The Board or Committee may grant a stock appreciation right either as a stand alone
right, or if such right does not provide for the deferral of compensation within the meaning of Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, in tandem with all or any part of the shares of common stock that may
be purchased by the exercise of a stock option, As of July 1, 2007, there are no stock appreciation rights outstanding.

The Company’s 1997 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the Director Plan} was amended and
approved by the stockholders on November 30, 2006 to allow for a maximum of 1,880,000 shares of common stock
to be issued, including an additional 150,000 shares approved for issuance. The Director Plan currently provides that
an option to purchase 60,000 shares of common stock or restricted stock of the Company will be granted to each
non-employee director of the Company upon the first date that such director becomes eligible to participate. These
options or restricted stock shall be exercisable as to 33.3% of the shazes on each anniversary of the grant if the
director is still a director of the Company. In addition, on each yearly anniversary of the date of the initial grant,
each eligible director shall automatically be granted an additional option to purchase 20,000 shares of common stock
or restricted stock. These options or restricted stock shall be exercisable as to 50% of the shares on the six month
anniversary, 25% on the nine month anniversary and 25% on the year anniversary of the grant date. Options or
restricted stock granted under the Director Plan are non-qualified stock awards. The exercise price per option
granted will not be less than the fair market value at the date of grar.t. No option or restricted stock granted under the
Director Plan shall be exercisable after the expiration of the earlier of (i) ten years following the date the option or
restricted stock is granted or (ii) one year following the date the optionee ceases to be a director of the Company for
any reason. The administrator of the Director Plan has the discretion to grant additional awards in the form of
restricted stock and/or stock appreciation rights or to substitute restricted stock or stock appreciation rights for the
formula grants described above. Options or restricted stock grantec! under the Director Plan are non-qualified stock
awards. As of July 1, 2007, there were 290,000 shares available for future award grants under the Director Plan.
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The Company’s Employee Stock Option Plan (the Plan), which is shareholder approved, permitted the grant of
stock options and nonvested shares to its domestic and international employees for up to approximately 33.7 million
shares of common stock. Stock option awards were granted under the plan with an exercise price not less than the
fair market value of the Company’s stock at the date of grant; these stock option awards generally vest based on
either three or four years of continuous service and have either a six or ten year contractual term. Certain stock
option awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is a change in control (as defined in the Plan) or achieving
certain performance targets. With the approval and adoption of the Equity Incentive Plan on December 1, 2005, the
Plan became closed for future grants of options.

The Company’s 2004 Employee Stock lncentive Plan (the 2004 Plan), which is shareholder approved, permitted
the grant of stock options and restricted {(nonvested) or unrestricted shares to its employees for up to
2,000,000 shares of common stock. The purchase price for the shares subject to any option granted under the 2004
Plan was not permitted to be less than 100% of the fair market value of the shares of common stock of the Company
on the date the option was granted. These stock option awards generally vest based on either three or four years of
continuous service and have either a six or ten year contractual term. With the approval and adoption of the Equity
Incentive Plan on December 1, 2005, the 2004 Plan became closed for future award grants.

Options granted under the Plan and options granted under the 2004 Plan prior to August 2005 have a 10 year
contractual term and become exercisable on a cumulative basis as to 25% of the total number of shares covered by
the option one year from the date the option is granted with an additional 6.25% after the end of each consecutive
calendar quarter thereafter, except when otherwise provided by the Board of Directors or the Compensation
Committee. Beginning with awards granted in August 2003, each option granted generally has a six year contractual
term and becomes exercisable on a cumulative basis as to 30% of the total number of shares covered by the option
one year from the date the option is granted with an additional 7.5% after the end of each of the next four
consecutive calendar quarters and an additional 10% afier the end of each of the next four consecutive quarters
thereafter, except when otherwise provided by the Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee.

In connection with the acquisition of Sierra Logic, the Company assumed the Sierra Logic, Inc. 2001 Stock
Option Plan (the Sierra Logic Plan). The options were replaced with options to purchase shares of Emulex common
stock based on the acquisition exchange ratio and continue to be subject to the terms of the Sierra Logic Plan, The
options have a life of up to ten years, generally vest over a four year period, and include a provision that the option
holder may elect at any time to exercise the option prior to the full vesting of the option. As part of the purchase
agreement, hoiders of unvested options were paid cash in exchange for the options with the cash received subject to
the same vesting schedule as the originally granted option. As of July 1, 20{7, there were 21,068 shares available for
future award grants under the Sierra Logic Plan.

In connection with the acquisition of Aarohi, the Company assumed the Aarohi Communications, Inc. 2001 Stock
Option Plan (the Aarohi Plan). The options assumed were replaced with options to purchase shares of Emulex
common stock based on the acquisition exchange ratio and continue to be subject to the terms of the Aarohi Plan.
The options have a life of up to ten years, typically vest over four years with 25% afier the first year and monthly
thereafter, and include a provision that the option holder may elect at any time to exercise the option prior to the full
vesting of the option. Unvested shares purchased upon early exercise of options are subject to a repurchase provision
which grants the Company the right of first refusal to repurchase such shares at the original exercise price which
right terminates at such time as the vesting requirements have been satisfied. As of July 1, 2007, there were
204,400 shares available for future award grants under the Aarohi Plan,

In addition, in connection with the prior acquisitions of Vixel Corporation (Vixel} and Giganet, Inc. (Giganet),
the Company assumed awards granted under the Vixel Corporation Amended and Restated 1995 Stock Option Plan,
the Vixel Corporation 1999 Equity Incentive Plan, and the Vixel Corporation 2000 Non-Officer Equity Incentive
Plan (collectively, the Vixel Plans), and the Giganet, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan (the Giganet Plan). Shares
previously authorized for issuance under these respective plans are no longer available for future grants, but options
previously granted under these respective plans remain outstanding.
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As of July 1, 2007, the number of shares authorized under the Purchase Plan, the Equity Incentive Plan, the
Director Plan, the Sierra Logic Plan, the Aarohi Plan, the Vixel Plans, and the Giganet Plan are sufficient to cover

future exercises of outstanding stock options.

A summary of option activity under the plans for fiscal 2007 is przsented below:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining  Aggrepate
Average Contractuoal Intrinsic
QOptions Exercise Price Term {Years) Value
(In millions)
Options outstanding at July 2, 2006 ... 14,612,882  § 22.06
Options granted .........ccoeevriniiimisinee e 1,96£.050 13.87
Options eXerciSed ... (2,130,320) 8.94
Options canceled .......ceveereveerrsensiises e (722,083) 47.50
Options forfeited ... (211.880) 16.97
Options outstanding at, July 1, 2007 .......ccoiinninnnis 13,512,649  § 21.66 4.89 3 49.1
Options vested and expected to vest at July 1, 2007 ....... 13,095,678 § 21.80 4.87 $ 472
Options exercisable at July 1, 2007 .....covviiiiiiiicnnins 10,086,984  § 23.15 4.62 § 33.1

The approximately 2,000,000 options granted in fiscal 2007 included 549,914 options that were issued in
exchange for the outstanding Sierra Logic Communications, Inc. (Sierra Logic) options.

The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model based on the market price of the underlying common stock as of the date of grant, the expected term, stock
price volatility and expected risk-free interest rates. This model requires subjective assumptions, including expected
stock price volatility and expected time until exercise, which affect the calculated fair value on the grant date, as
well as the market price of the underlying common stock as of the date of grant and expected risk-free interest rates.
Expected volatilities are based on methodologies utilizing equal weighting involving both historical periods equal to
the expected term and implied volatilities based on traded options to buy the Company’s shares. The assumptions
utilized to compute the fair value of stock option grants for fiscal 2007 and 2006 were:

All Other Plans Purchase Plan

2007 2006 2007 2006
Expected volatility ......cocooonvniiinniiinsiinnnns 30% - 38%  352%-56.6% 29%-31% 37%
Weighted average expected volatility ................ 34% 47% 30% 37%
Expected dividends ..., — — — —
Expected term (in YEars).......coovevivecisirnnnininnene 14-44 24-44 0.24 -0.5 0.5
Weighted average expected term (in years)....... 323 3.25 0.49 0.5
Risk-free Tate........cccovvinirrinereere e 4.51%-4.95% 5.18%-5.23% 5.01%-5.08% 4.82%

A summary of restricted stock awards activity for fiscal year 2007 is presented below:

Weighted
Average Grant
Number of Date Fair
Shares Value

Awards outstanding and unvested at July 2, 2006..........cccooiveviinr oo 305,000 $ 17.98
AWAFAS ZIANLEG. .. veriaieeveerereieamceecimieeeetest st s sy e s A nrs Seasssmsnenestits st eiates 1,174,726 $ 18.32
AWALAS VESIEW 11vivieriereeeeeeeeceeeeet vt stet et snsnie s stesae e b s e se e e s e seeba it b b s be b e et {101,900y $ 1836
AWATAS FOTTEIEU vevveeeceeceiee et srerin et e ssne e sr e m s e e e ettt e a s n e ar e neees (63.050) S 18.58
Awards outstanding and unvested at July 1, 2007 ..o 1,314,776 3 18.22
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As of July 1, 2007, there was approximately $22.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the plans. That cost is expected to be recognized
over a weighted-average period of 1.17 years.

The weighted average fair value of option and restricted stock awards granted in fiscal 2007 and 2006 were
$9.71, $8.49 respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised in fiscal 2007 and 2006 were
approximately $24.,1 million, $10.4 million respectively. The total fair value of restricted stock awards vested in
fiscal 2007 was approximately $2.1 million, and there were no shares vested in fiscal 2006.

Cash received from share option exercises under stock-based plans for the 12 months ended July 1, 2007 and
July 2, 2006 was approximately $19.0 million and $10.0 million, respectively. The actual tax benefit realized for the
tax deductions from option exercise and vested restricted awards of stock-based plans totaled approximately
$9.6 million and $4.0 million for the 12 months ended July 1, 2007 and July 2, 2006, respectively.

The modified prospective transition method of SFAS No. 123R requires the presentation of pro forma
information, for periods presented prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, regarding net income and net income
per share as if the Company had accounted for its stock plans under the fair value method of SFAS No. 123. For
fiscal 2005, the assumptions utilized to compute the fair value of stock option grants were:

2005
RiSK-TTe8 IAEIEST TALE ........eciitiiiestiermenmere e s e sme e ctesn e seeretese s e e e sre e eae s s s b e s re b e srrree e 2.0%-4.0%
SEOCK VOLATIEY ...ooveeiiteeseericeic e sttt e re s s m e era s n e e e e 35.1%-84.0%
Dividend YIel......cooovoiieiiiicre st R e s 0.0%
Average expected HVes (YEAIS) ..oooo ettt e eee s e ene e 0.5-2.9
Weighted-average fair value per Option granted ...........oeeeeerceeiiiieninieneese e e $3.49-36.08

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and net income per share if the Company had accounted
for its stock plans under the fair value method of accounting under SFAS No. 123 for fiscal 2005 :

2005
(In thousands,
except per
share data)
INEL INCOME S TEPOTIEA ......c.ocveuerereererrarertierrererrereneeesesesaaassasaresasssasaeasesesaresasssasasssasessestneasnsansanssens $ 71,589
Add: Total employee stock-based compensation expense included in net income as reported,
net of related 1aX effECS ... ....cccerererer vttt ettt ee et en 2,742
Deduct: Total employee stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value
method for all awards, net of related tax effects ..........ooooiineiiimiiit e (22,877
Pro fOTma Net INCOME.......ccoiiireei ettt rarsest st en st bbb bbbt 3 51454
Pro forma net income per share
Basic — 25 TEPOMRA.........ecveeeeccirirsmsrnrstic s rnessesensssesereseressserssenssssssnssssnimssnesssensnnnnens 9 0,86
BASIC — PIO fOMMIA.....ce s e s st eb e e b e bt b ae e s e s eananeain § 062
Diluted — a8 TEPOIE..........ccovicererertiriniresne s e se s sb s e eae bbb e r e e rasressanensssnsasas $ 080
Diluted — Pro fOrmMa..........ccciierire e e bbb bbb e s e $ 0538
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Note 12 Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense are as follows:

2007 2006 20058
(In thousands)

Federal:

CUITENL 1eovviveiiieerscevresvsesresressaseentarsarsesesressteransssassses sans asesassresanssssasnsans § 28907 § 35173 § 25,723
DEfRITEA .....ocve e se s sassta s e e e e re e e er s s vs e ssse s emeeenesreeennenas (11,961) 1,496 12,413
State: :

CUITEIIE «ee e et e v s savasesasassaseasssaa s bassssastesssrssaessrarenersassnnees 3,633 4,304 3,162
DEfRITEU ...vviviiieiii it esaes e ssn i e errerrr v s e e e s e s v e e e s ey seeemeeaneeneennenan 9.001 (1,621) (1,149)
Foreign:

CUITEIE .oceeeevie et srt e s b e st e e s e e rerereesreraraessasssassnasanessnns ranacen seenenn 69 112 72
Total iNCOME LAX EXPEIISE ..covvrvererereresnernrsneraisnstsssssesssssesavnssrssnres seeeas $..29649 § 39464 § 40221

The income tax expense in fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005 excludes excess tax benefits recorded directly to
additional paid-in-capital in the amounts of approximately $8.0 millior, $3.3 million, and $1.9 million, respectively,
related to exercises of stock options under the Company’s stock option plans.

Income before income taxes consists of the following:

2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)
DIOMMIESHIC. .....ovevevievrereenesrseeraresesnsmrnsscseceoescomsee s e ssss s besbebee et b msee e es s b $ 58,852 § 79,542 § 111,570
FOPBIRI. vttt et et e e emsa s st ees 231 373 240
TOMAL oot e e s se s se st e e et ee e $ 59,083 § 79915 $111,810

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities are presented below:

2007 2006
{In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Capitalization of INVENLOTY COSES.o.vmrimrecerinrenisccrcrinciciarinininimmsniisssessinsinsonenens 9 2178 159

Reserves not currently deductible ..ot s s 11,848 13,002
Share-based COMPENSAON ... s e s s 11,387 5,866
Net operating 1088 carryforwards ........oooveueimrece e s 24,847 28,092
General business and state credit carryforwards ..., 15,198 11,697
Capitalized research and development expenditures................cocovniinnnn.. 3,771 1,943
Capital loss carryforwards............cuvviinimnn 2,625 931
Property and eqQUIPINENL .......ocoveriuiemin ettt st e 144 —
L0 11 1T OO 964 343
Total gross deferred 1aX SSELS ... .cvorrcecier i e 71,001 62.033
L2355 VAIUALION BILOWANCE ..vvveeesreecereeeeeeeeaeee e e eee et e eeatesessastatstssateseenns e s sasnenasnnseesanns (2.625) (931)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation alloWance .......ccvievecrrecierinrinis cvreeiecnniianieens 68.376 61.102
Deferred tax liabilities:
VATiOUS SEALE LAXES 1.vvviiiiiiinrriciiirisirisreessesrissessns s ssseesnesssressrnesssnssssnssansessessantssisnssinnann 5,580 4,107
Intangible assets — customer relationships ... 5,358 7,821
Intangible assets — core technology and patents..........cceoviicicccee 36,563 20,104
Property and eqUIPIMENT .......cc.ovcriirrerrrniserestssiss st et st er st sne e saeas — 904
Total gross deferred tax Habilities ...........cceieriiiccc e 47,501 32,936
Net deferred tAX @SSEE....currrerereeeecce oo bs bbb $ 20875 3 28,166
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As the purchase price allocation associated with the acquisition of Sierra Logic is preliminary and the final pre-
acquisition tax returns are not yet complete, the associated deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are also
subject to change.

Based on the Company’s historical and anticipated future pre-tax results of operations, management believes it is
more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefit of the approximately $20.9 million net deferred tax
assets existing as of July 1, 2007. Management believes the existing net deductible temporary differences will
reverse during periods in which the Company generates net taxable income; however, there can be no assurance that
the Company will generate any earnings or any specific level of continuing earnings in future years. Certain tax
planning or other strategies could be implemented, if necessary, to supplement earnings from operations to fully
realize recorded tax benefits.

The Company has approximately $6.5 million of capital loss carryforwards available as of July 1, 2007. If
unused, approximately $1.5 million and $5.0 million of the carryforwards would expire in fiscal years 2011 and
2012, respectively. Management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will not be able to generate
sufficient capital gain income to realize these benefits prior to the expiration of these capital loss carryforwards,
Therefore, a valuation allowance of approximately $2.6 million is recorded as of the end of fiscal 2007. The
Company generated capital loss carryforwards of approximately $5.0 miltion and $1.5 million during fiscal years
2007 and 2006, respectively.

The actual income tax expense (benefit) on pretax income before income taxes differs from expected federal
income tax expense for the following reasons:

2007 2006 2005
. {In thousands)
Expected income tax expense at 35%.......ccovevencinicieeie e $ 20679 § 27970 $ 39,133
State income tax expense, net of federal tax benefit............cocveeveieececnnn 1,785 2,318 1,240
Impairment of 200AWIll.......ocoiiiiirnr e — — 383
In-process research and development expenditures..........c.c.ceen..... s 6,729 6,045 —
Change in valuation allowance allocated to income tax expense................. 1,693 — 931
Extraterritorial income eXCIUSION.......c.oviviviniiio i eet e e (2,066) {90) (142)
Research and Other CTEiS ... ..coceeeeeeee e st b e sesaese e (1,607) (357  (1,706)
Stock-based COMPENSALION. ... oeeoee e e e sse s 2,928 3,220 —_
ORREE, NEL ...ttt e rvserests e ent s e enee s entaresatereeneernenes (492) 358 382
Total INCOME LAX EXPENSE .....vivereiereeeeiereevverrre et be s s s essesnees $ 29649 § 39464 3§ 40,22]

As of July 1, 2007, the Company had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$58.9 million and $48.1 millicn, respectively, which are available to offset future federal and state taxable income.
If unused, the federal net operating loss carryforwards will expire during the fiscal years 2015 through 2023, and the
state net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in fiscal 2009. Included in the federal net operating loss
carryforwards are Aarohi losses of approximately $32.6 mitlion, Sierra Logic losses of approximately $17.3 million,
and other acquired companies losses of approximately $9.0 million. The annual utilization of these net operating
loss carryforwards is limited due to restrictions imposed under federal law due to a change in ownership.

As of July 1, 2007, the Company had federal and state research and experimentation credit carryforwards of
approximately $4.9 million and $10.1 million, respectively, which are available to reduce federal and state income
taxes. If unused, the federal carryforwards expire during the fiscal years 2013 through 2022, and certain state
carryforwards will begin to expire in fiscal 2018. For federal tax purposes, the Company has approximately
$0.1 million of foreign tax credit carryforwards available through fiscal 2009.

During the year, the Intemal Revenue Service completed audits of the Company’s Federal income tax returns for
the taxable years ended June 27, 2004 and June 29, 2003. The Company paid approximately $0.2 million in tax
assessments to close these audits. The statute of limitations for the June 27, 2004 tax year will expire during the
Company’s fiscal year ending June 29, 2008. The Company is also undergoing routine audits by other state
Jurisdictions. Management does not expect a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial staternents as
a result of these audits.
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EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 13 Revenue by Product Families, Geographic Area, and Significant Customers
Revenues by Product Families

The Company designs and markets three major distinct product families: Host Server Products (HSPs),
Embedded Storage Products (ESPs) and Intelligent Networking Products (INPs). HSPs mainly consist of standard
HBAs, custom form factor mezzanine cards for blade servers, and application specific integrated circuits {ASICs)
used in server applications. ESPs mainly consist of serial advanced technology attachment (SATA) bridges and
routers, Fibre Channel embedded switches, and single and multi protocol embedded controller products for
enterprise class storage systems. INPs mainly consist of multi protocol intelligent storage virtualization platforms
that can be deployed as 10Cs, mezzanine cards, or appliances, and contract engineering.

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Net revenues: :
HOSt SErVET PrOQUELS...cviiiieieereeeveesssssssrareseesseeseeeee s ssissias e sasssnssssnvess $ 357,279 § 340,566 § 320,171

Embedded Storage Products ..ot 107,578 59,203 49057
Intelligent Networking Products ... ivennas 3,907 29 —
(711 T=: o PTURUU SO ST U PO U USRS 1,423 3,015 6.425
TOtA] NEL TEVETIUES ..eveviicreisievesineeirerseessseeseeesssssssasssasesssesssmeesensssannesnsens § 470,187 § 402,813 § 375,653

Revenues by Geographic Area

The Company’s net revenues by geographic area based on bill-to location are:

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
United SLALES ..ovvveieriveiriiereceeemreseeteieseeesreseenesresearins $ 218996 47% § 219911 55% $ 205,633 55%
Pacific RiM e sss s 80,637 17% 52,811 13% 56,550 15%
Europe and rest of world ... 170,534 _36% 130.091 _32% _ 113,470 _30%
Total NEt FEVENUES ....ccceieererrrresreeec e esessanssanes $_470,137 100% $_402,813 100% §_375,653 100%

In fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, net revenues sold to the United Kingdom, based on bill-to location, were
approximately 15%, 13%, and 12%, respectively, and no other country in the Pacific Rim, Europe or the rest of the
world accounted for more than 10% of net revenues during these periods.

Significant Customers
The following table represents direct sales to customers accounting for greater than 10% of the Company’s net

revenues or customer accounts receivable accounting for greater than 10% of the Company’s accounts receivable.
Amounts not presented were less than 10%.

Accounts
Net Revenues Receivable
. 2007 2006 2005 2007 _2006
Hewlett-Packard .......ccvvv et rrer e ss s s e nsasn s 13% 10% 12% — —
(12, (O OO U U SO 22% 29% 31% 26% 28%
1] £ 30, O U O PO 17% 21% 17% 15% 20%
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EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

In addition to direct sales, some of the Company’s larger OEM customers purchased or marketed products
indirectly through distributors, resellers, or other third parties. Customers with total direct and indirect revenues,
including customer specific models purchased or marketed indirectly through distributors, resellers, and other third
parties, of more than 10% were as follows:

Net Revenues
2007 2006 2005

E M ettt ee bt bbb e e e e n e e aa S et e e e e et e e een e e eneeeeeneeneerraabine e 18% 23% 20%
Hewlett-PaCKard.........ooiiiieeeeeeeeetee it e vase ettt e e e e e e e e eeeen e e e eeneeeneenraeabeeane 13% 10% 14%
IBM e e ket ee e e e e et e e et et b e b e e e e e e s e e s e e e naaeeemranateits 25% 29% 31%

Note 14 Net Income per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share:

2007 2006 2008
{In thousznds, except per share data)

Numerator;

INELIMCOIMIE 1.ttt et e e catesasas e s b bs s e e e eeemeee e s et tsabaaanaens $ 29434 § 40451 § 71,589
Adjustment for interest expense on convertible subordinated notes, net

OF AKX it e et an s sta e rnas e saesassenamesansasararasvasssaieasenencnses 702 1477 2,683
Numerator for diluted net income per Share............ccooovvevvevevvieereneenae. $ 30136 35 41,928 § 74274
Denominator:
Denominator for basic net income per share — weighted average shares

OUESTANAIIE .o+t vererereeeiere e st s ta i res b e s esae s sb e bt b s s eesem e saeeeeabseabtistean 84,545 83,920 82,819
Effect of dilutive securities:
Dilutive potential common shares, using treasury stock method .......... 2,023 1,876 1,384
Dilutive common shares from assumed conversion of convertible .
SUBOIAINAEd NOTES....ciiriiirecrestetee e s re e sensenas 2,521 5463 8.767

Denominator for diluted net income per share — adjusted weighted

AVETAZE SHATES oot re e ree s s e e ssesbes s aseabarssavmtereseenens 89089 _ 91,259 92,970
Basic net income per Share.............coveriiereeeeeeere e $ 035 § 048 § 086
Diluted net INCOME PET SHATE L....vvviiiveeeeeeeccrrenss e rees S 034 $ 046 § 080
Antidilutive options excluded from the computations .......c...c...oovvereneee. 8,486 9258 __ 8944
Average market price of common Stock ... 5 ig881 § 1881 § 1479

The antidilutive options were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share as the options’
exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common shares during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and
2005.
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Note 15 Unaudited Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data

Selected unaudited quarterty consolidated financial data for fiscal years 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

2007:

Fourth quarter
Third QUarter .......ccocoecov i
Second QUATLET .....cocerevreiiieriiiiressriss e
FITSE QUANET ..ot

2006:

Fourth quarter..........coc oo
Third QUANET ..c.cecereerrr i resmeeeesreaec et maite e
Second QUATET ......cevivveei i
FIESt QUATET ....c.cccccrerarierec e

Diluted
Net Income

Net Net Income (Loss)
Revenues  _ Gross Profit (Loss) per Share

(In thousands, except per share data)

$ 126,268 8 77042 % 13,162 $ 015

120,211 70,585 11,386 0.13
121,390 65,782 (10,076)1)  (0.12)

102,318 61.199 14,962 017

$ 470,187 § 274608 § 29434

$ 98371§ 57962 S (4787)1) $ (0.06)
89,205  53372(2) 11,593 0.13
110,268  64,909(2) 17,209 0.19
104,379 62.577(2) __ 16,436 0.19

S 402,313 § 238,820 $_4045]

(1) Includes In-process research and development charges of approximately $21.6 million and $17.3 million for
the second quarter of fiscal 2007 and the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, respectively. See Note 2 for additional

(2)

information.

Approximately $3.6 million, $3.6 million, and $3.7 million of amortization expense resulting from the
acquisition of technology intangible assets for the third, second, and first quarters of fiscal 2006, respectively,
have been reclassified from Amortization of other intangible assets to Cost of sales.
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Schedule 11

EMULEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
Years ended July 1, 2007, July 2, 2006, and July 3, 2005

Classification

Year ended July 1, 2007:

Allowance for doubtful accounts.........

Sales returns, allowances and reserves

WAITANLY TESETVE.....vveeirecsisirisasesansssmssesassaamecssatasssd ot st s rerassssssennsnant s

Year ended July 2, 2006:

Allowance for doubtful accounts.........

Sales returns, allowances and reserves

Warranty reServe.....oeinemnienisiaranns

Year ended July 3, 2005:

Allowance for doubtful ACCOUNTES.......ciiirivveieeeecseeresrerernrr s rarsreme e rasran s

Sales returns, allowances and rESEIVES .......covieirienisecnnsssesisssseneniraneeneas
WAITANLY FEEETVE....cievereermemcsisbsssssmsnsssasssas s e T

of Period

Amounts
Charged

Additions
Balance at Charged to
Beginning Costsand  Against

Expenses Reserve
{In thousands)

Balance
at End
of Period

$ 1,908 8§ —§ 63 1,902
$ 3.178 § 11840 § 11,688 § 3,330
$ 2949 § 3685 § 28025 3832

$ 1919 8 _=—23§ 11 $ 1,908
$.10,523 § 10,787 § 3178
$_ 2874 § 40105 2,949

§ —§ 162§ 1919
3 16438 § 16,202 $ 3,442
$§ 3043 5 3.004 5 4,085

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

EMULEX CORPORATION

By: fs/ JAMES M. MCCLUNEY

James M. McCluney
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: August 23, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on August 23, 2007.

Signature Title
Principal Executive Officer:
/s/ JAMES M. MCCLUNEY Chief Executive Officer, President and Director

(James M. McCluney)
Principal Financial and Accounting Officer:

/s/ MICHAEL J. ROCKENBACH Executive Vice President,
(Michael J. Rockenbach) Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
/s! PAUL F, FOLINO Executive Chairman

(Paul F. Folino)

{s/ FRED B. Cox Director and Chairman Emeritus
(Fred B. Cox)

/s/ MICHAEL P. DOWNEY Director
(Michael P. Downey)

s/ BRUCE C. EDWARDS Director
(Bruce C. Edwards)

/s/ ROBERT H. GOON Director
{Robert H. Goon}

/s/ DONM. LYLE Director
{Don M. Lyle)

{s/ DEAN A. YOOST Director
(Dean A. Yoost)
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to Exhibit 3.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Forra 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
December 31, 2000).

Amended and restated Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 30, 2005).

Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participatirg Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2, 1989).
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Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2, 1989).
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Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed March 2, 2001).
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Appendix B to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of Stockholders
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by reference to Appendix B to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of
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Emulex Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to
Appendix D to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of Stockholders
held on November 18, 2004).
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to the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of Stockholders hetd on
November 18, 2004).

Standard Commetcial Lease between the Flatley Company and Giganet, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K).

Form of Key Employee Retention Agreement between the Company and its executive officers other
than Paul F. Folino and James M. McCluney (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2006).

Key Employee Retention Agreement for Paul F. Folino. as amended, effective September 5, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compzny’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
September 6, 2006)

Key Employee Retention Agreement for James M. McCluney, as amended, effective September 5,
2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
September 6, 2006)

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
current Report on Form 8-K filed May 17, 2005).

Real Estate Lease dated September 12, 2000, between LM Venture, LLC and Emulex Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s 2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K).
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August 30, 2005).
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Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed August 30, 2005).

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for grants made pursuant to the 2004 Employee Stock
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K filed August 30, 2005).

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for grants made pursuant to the 2004 Employee
Stock Incentive Plan

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August
30, 2005).

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options and Stock Option Agreement for grants made pursuant to
both the Employee Stock Option Plan and 2004 Employee Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 30, 2005).

Office Lease Agreement dated August 25, 2005 by and between 24000 Development, LLC and
Emulex Design & Manufacturing Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 31, 2005

Description of Compensation Arrangements with Non-Employee Directors.

Description of Compensation Arrangements for Certain Executive Officers (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.26 1o the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 2,
2006).

Executive Bonus Plan of Emulex Corporation, as amended and restated effective September 5, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
September 6, 2006)

Aarohi Communications, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed May 8, 2006)

Form of Aarohi Communications, Inc. Stock Option Agreement(incorporated by reference to Exhibit
99.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed May 8, 2006)

Form of Aarohi Communications, Inc. Stock Option Agreement (alternate form) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 5-8 filed May 8, 2006)
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Form of Aahrohi Communications, Inc. Notice of Grant of Stock Option (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed May 8, 2006)

Form of Emulex Corporation Stock Option Assumption Dozuments for holders of options granted
under the Aarohi Communications, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
99.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed May 8, 2006)

Emulex Corporation 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the
Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on November 30,
2006)

Form of 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended April 2, 2006)

Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Award under 2005 Equity (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended April 2, 2006

Second Amendment to Lease dated May 26, 2006 by and between Brass Creekside, L.P. and Emulex
Design & Manufacturing Corporation (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed June 5, 2006)

Sierra Logic, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on October 5, 2006)

Form of Sierra Logic, Inc. Stock Option Agreement and Motice of Grant of Stock Option (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on October 5,
2006)

Form of Emulex Corporation Stock Option Assumption Documents for holders of options granted
under the Sierra Logic, Inc. 2001 Stock Option Plan (incerporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 1o the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-8 filed on October 5, 2006)

Standard Form Business Center Lease dated March 18, 2003, and its Amendment No. One, Addendum
Two, and Addendum Three by and between Eureka Development Company LLC and Sierra Logic,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Corapany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended December 31, 2006)

Amendment No. 4 to Sublease Agreement by and between Emulex Communications Corporation and
WJ Communications Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on August 2, 2006)

Deed of Lease between Aarohi Communications Private Limited and M/s M.K. Chakrapani & Co.
relating to the Company’s offices in Bangalore, India (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 1o the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended October 1, 2006)

List of the Company’s subsidiaries.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14 (a), as Adopted
Pursuant to §302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14 (a), as Adopted
Pursuant to §302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Acopted Pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002,

* [ndicates a management contract or compensation plan or arrangernent.
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EXHIBIT 31A

CERTIFICATIONS

I, James M. McCluney, certify that;
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Emulex Corporation;

2, Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13-a-15(f) (15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control aver financial reporting, or cause such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: August 23, 2007
/s/ James M. McCluney

James M. McCluney
Chief Executive Officer and President
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EXHIBIT 31B
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Michael ). Rockenbach, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Emulex Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untruz statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other firancial informatton included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible fcr establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules [3a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13-a-15(f) (15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or cause such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial stat:ments for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controis and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s intemnal controls over financial reporting.

Date: August 23, 2007

/s/ Michael J. Rogckenbach
Michael J. Rockenbach
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32
EMULEX CORPORATION

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Emulex Corporation (the Company) on Form 10-K for the period ended
July 1, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), [, James M.
McCluney, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant
to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

{2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

/s/ James M, McCluney
James M. McCluney
Chief Executive Officer and President
August 23, 2007

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Emulex Corporation (the Company) on Form 10-K for the period ended
July 1, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), 1, Michael J.
Rockenbach, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant
to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

/s! Michael J. Rockenbach
Michael J. Rockenbach
Chief Financial Officer

August 23, 2007
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stock price information

( * Sales Prices ™
Fiscal 2007t High Low
Q4 $23.42 $17.89
e wom so
Q—2_ o 521_6; $17.85
Qi - - $18.52 $14—.07 7
Fiscal 20067 High Low
Q4 $19.00 $15.58
Q\?; $22.00 $16.00
Q2 A $21.22 $17.17
701 o 7$22.68 7 ;]77'.14;
. L

* As reporied on the New York Stock Exchange
t Fiscal year ends in June

Emulex's common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol ELX. OnJuly 1, 2007, there were approximately 360 stockholders
of record and the closing price was $21.84.

The Company is subject to the New York Stock Exchange listed Company
manual Section 203.01 requiring an annual report, and the attached
Form 10-K is part of this annual report, including the Sarbanes-COxley
Act Section 302 certifications attached as Exhibits 31A and 31B. A
certification was provided by the Company's CEO to the New York Stock
Exchange on December 1, 2006 certifying that he or she was not aware
of any violation by the Company of New York Stock Exchange corporate
governance listing standards as of the date of that centification, and this
natice is included in this annual report as required by the Listed Company
Manual Seclion 303A.12(a).

Trademarks

This report refers to various progucts and companies by their trade names,
In mest, if not all, cases these designations are claimed as trademarks or
registered trademarks by their respective companies,

Company Literature

. Additional copies of Emulex's Annual Report on Form 10-K to the
Securities and Exchange Commission, and other company literature will
be furnished without charge upon request to:

Emulex Corporation, Investor Relations
3333 Susan Street, Costa Mesa, CA 92626
(714) 662 5600

Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

KPMG LLP

600 Anton Boulevard, Suite 700
Casta Mesa, CA 92626

{714) 850 4300

Transfer Agent & Registrar

Mellon Investor Services

PO Box 3315

South Hackensack, NJ 07606
(800) 356 2017
www.meloninvestor.com

Worldwide Offices

Costa Mesa, California
La Mesa, California
Roseville, California

San Jose, California
Walnut Creek, California
Longmont, Colorado
West Palm Beach, Florida
Alpharetia, Georgia
Libertyville, lllingis
Bolton, Massachusetts
Newton, Massachusetts
Walpole, Massachusetts
St. Anthony, Minnesota
New York, New York
Austin, Texas
Richardsen, Texas
Sugar Land, Texas

The Woodlands, Texas
Lehi, Utah

Bothell, Washington
Beijing, China

Paris, France

Munich, Germany
Bangalore, India
Wokingham, United Kingdom
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